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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
5= R

Dear Shareholders,

Looking back on the extremely extraordinary year of 2022, the year
when the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China was
successfully held, the year when the three-year action of state-owned
enterprises reform ended, and the year when the Group forged ahead
under pressure and overcome the morass. In the face of the COVID-19
pandemic and the severe test of reform and development, the Group
adhered to the general tone of seeking progress while maintaining stability,
made every effort to focus on operation, seek development and resist
risks, effectively turned around the unfavourable conditions of losses of
operating results in the previous year, and successfully turned losses
into profits.

In 2022, the Group took the initiative to respond to the adverse situation
of shrinking market scale of environmental protection business in
the traditional coal-fired power industry. On the basis of continuously
maintaining the leading position in the domestic industry in the
environmental protection facility concession operation, denitrification
catalysts and other core businesses, the Group aimed at and constantly
developed the new track, and made new progress in emerging industries
such as energy storage, distributed photovoltaic and gypsum reuse. The
Group changed its thinking, innovated its ideas, and opened a new situation
in the changing situation.

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will implement the “1461"
development strategies, adhere to keeping pace with the times, reform
and innovation, forge ahead with unity and perseverance, firmly establish
the concept of safe development, accelerate the pace of transformation
and upgrading, promote and deepen the reform progress, push ahead the
improvement of management efficiency, reshape the competitiveness of
the traditional business market, and achieve breakthroughs in the marketing
of new industries. The Group will strive to build the Company into a
leading enterprise and a top-rated integrated energy and environmental
governance service provider providing comprehensive energy solutions
and systematic solutions to environmental issues.

Chairman of the Board
Zhu Liming
24 March 2023
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COMPANY PROFILE
NSIlG

The predecessor of the Company (stock code: 1272) was China Datang Corporation Group Environment Technology Co.,
Ltd. (PFEIREEBERERIMAR A F]), which was established in July 2011. Since the establishment of the Company and
after several years of rapid development and a series of business restructuring, the Company has been successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 15 November 2016. As at 31 December 2022, the Company had
a total of 2,967,542,000 issued Shares, among which the Controlling Shareholder, China Datang, holds, directly and
indirectly, an aggregate of approximately 78.96%.

RAB(RMDRSE - 1272)R1 & A2011F7 AR R BEREERBIRREMBR AR c RARKIAR @ FEBEFHIRERER
R—RIINEBEHR - AREIH2016F11 A58 REBRAERKD £ o R2022912A8318 - ARAIREITRGOBE S
2,967,542,000/% + HAIFARAR R B K E B Kk A & Hi5H £978.96 % H () °

The Group is the sole platform for the development of environmental protection and energy conservation business
under China Datang Corporation, one of the major state wholly-owned power generation groups in the PRC. The
principal business of the Group includes environmental protection facility concession operation, denitrification catalysts,
environmental protection facilities engineering, water treatment business, energy conservation business and renewable
energy engineering business.

AEEREZEAABMABEREEE , —WHBEAREEE TEERROEEBHE—FE - AEENFZLLEBBRERR
R RTALE - BREECAl  RRRBIELIR - KB EL - B RUBERRIEED -

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's major corporate structure was as follows:
2022128318  RARIEEREZENT :

China Datang Corporation Ltd. Other public Shareholders

(PRC)
- = A of H Shares
100% (PEARERARAT) FUBHR A BIE
China Datang Group Capital Holding Co., Ltd.
(PRC) 78.17% 21045
(EF@K%;'%E}EK%HQEISEQET)
(Rl
[ 079% The Company
(FRR)
(HE)
65% 56% 100% 92.11% 65% 100% 50%

Datang (Beijing)
Energy Saving
Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(KE (ex) &g
RIEERAR)
()

China Datang
Technologies &
Engineering Co., Ltd.
(PRC)
(PEAEEERETE
ARADA])
(R )

Datang (Beijing) Water
Engineering &
Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(KB (30) ABTR
iTARAR)
()

Datang Nanjing
Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(REMFURRRR
BREERR)
(R E)

Zhejiang Datang
Tiandi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.

(PRC)

CITRERMIRR
REARAT)
(B

Datang (Jiangsu)
Environmental

Equipment Co., Ltd.

(PRC)
RE OT#)
BREBELRAF

Datang Linzhou
New Energy Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

R HTER
AREERR)
()

100%

Datang Technologies & Engineering India

Private Limited

(India)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB5,322.7 million, representing an increase of 0.6%
as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the gross profit of the
Group amounted to RMB789.4 million, representing an increase
of 131.2% as compared with last year; the gross profit margin of
the Groups was 14.8%, representing an increase of 8.3 percentage
points as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the parent amounted to RMB273.4
million, representing an increase of 230.2% as compared with last
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group continued to be
the largest desulfurization and denitrification concession operator
and the largest manufacturer of denitrification catalysts in the PRC.

The Board shall convene another Board meeting, expected to be
at or before the end of April 2023, to consider the declaration of
a final dividend for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2022.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS
B N E SRR
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The following table sets forth the Company's consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the periods indicated:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 154 &

Year ended 31 December

TREFIARBAATHENAFREREMES

Wak

HEZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20215 20205 20195 20185
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Revenue WA 5,322,722 5,288,416 6,821,071 6,414,621 8,588,070
Cost of sales HERA (4,533,301) (4,946,985) (5,652,769) (5,334,656) (7,238,113)
Gross profit £ 789,421 341,431 1,168,302 1,079,965 1,349,957
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHERR (18,718) (18,151) (23,041) (36,898) (42,237)
Administrative expenses TBREX (387,802) (478,694) (483,796) (549,695) (279,419)
Other income and losses HAREE 111,465 80,436 82,240 132,290 169,414
Other expenses, net 2By - 38 (8,561) (42,145) (106,603) - -
Finance costs i s (199,335) (221,959) (270,291) (252,841) (200,518)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment £ BEENAREERE
losses) on financial and contract BE/(REBX) 38
assets, net 10,325 (39,130) (44,153) (69,678) (59,775)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREHTE/ (BR) 296,795 (378,212) 322,658 303,143 937,422
Income tax expenses FERRAY (58,672) (65,058) (111,298 (57,766) (154,199)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERFIE/ (HR) 238,123 (443,270) 211,360 245,377 783,223
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ERRfaakE/ (FR)
INCOME/(LOSSES) FOR (MEsiE)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1,518 (1,080) (40) 967 758
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ERnGals/ (BR)4E
INCOME/(LOSSES) FOR
THE YEAR 239,641 (444,350) 211,320 246,344 783,981
Profit/(loss) Attributable to: B/ (BE)GBR
Owners of the parent SYNILZ 7N 272,425 (208,332) 302,872 218,942 766,736
Non-controlling interests SRR (34,302) (234,938) (91,512) 26,435 16,487
238,123 (443,270) 211,360 245,377 783,223
Total comprehensive BANE/(FR)EES
income/(losses) attributable to: B :
Owners of the parent SRAHEA 273,367 (209,881) 303,319 219,666 768,183
Non-controlling interests FiERER (33,726) (234,469) (91,999) 26,678 15,798
239,641 (444,350 211,320 246,344 783,981
T _FFERSE
AERBEEEERMHERAR



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)
MR (&)

The following table sets forth selected items from our consolidated  TZ(FIATR BRI A I ISAR N R 892 H
statements of financial position as at the dates indicated: ENIRIEE -

31 December

128318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20215 2020 20194 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ASSETS BE

Total current assets MYEELE 10,937,596 10,570,721 11,778,902 12,459,102 12,172,973
Total non-current assets FERPEELE 7,410,661 7,857,665 8,401,956 8,711,657 8,287,008
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 18,348,257 18,428,386 20,180,858 21,170,759 20,459,981

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERER
Total current liabilities TBARELEE 10,533,347 9,478,199 9,927,604 10,574,779 10,195,621
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 918,161 2,194,611 2,913,976 3,362,099 2,945,038
Total equity fereday 6,896,749 6,755,576 7,339,278 7,233,881 7,319,322
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ~ BERERLR 18,348,257 18,428,386 20,180,858 21,170,759 20,459,981

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated statements ~ N&R&IIFMREEKMNEHRSREREMN
of cash flows for the periods indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BZ1N2ANALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20226 2021% 2020% 2019 20185
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
Net cash flows generated from/lused  E2E8)F1E/ (EF)BLR
in) operating activities EFE 531,346 987,035 1,838,799 (183,225) 487,782
Net cash flows used in investing REGHFRRERETFE
activities (315,406) (396,588) (608,905) (1,045,933) (839,589)
Net cash flows (used inlfgenerated ~ BEEBI(ER)/FiE
from financing activities RENEFHE (589,504 (876,728) (1,276,650) 1,133,442 370,295

2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As an environmental protection and energy conservation solution provider
for coal-fired power generation enterprises, the principal business of the
Group includes environmental protection facility concession operation,
denitrification catalysts, environmental protection facility engineering,
water treatment business, energy conservation business and renewable
energy engineering business. Customers of the Group spread over 30
provinces, autonomous regions and municipal cities in the PRC as well
as eight countries.

I INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Since 2021, under the guidance of the “1+N" policy and system
of carbon peak and carbon neutrality, various major energy
conservation and environmental protection policies related to energy
conservation, consumption reduction and emission reduction under
the “14th Five-Year Plan” have been intensively released, and
China’s ecological civilization construction has entered a critical
period with carbon reduction as the key strategic direction. The
environmental protection industry will usher in new opportunities
in coordinating new and obsolete pollution control, ecological
protection and restoration, and responding to climate change, etc.
Based on the overall performance of the environmental protection
industry in 2022, the following highlights and industry trends are
worth mentioning:

1.  The report of the 20th National Congress of
the Communist Party of China has drawn a
grand strategic development guide for the
environmental protection industry

The report of the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China calls for firmly establishing and practicing the
concept that lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable
assets, and planning for development from the perspective
of harmonious coexistence between human beings and
nature. The Company adheres to the integrated protection
and systematic treatment of mountains, rivers, forests,
farmland, lakes, grass, and sand, coordinates industrial
restructuring, pollution control, ecological protection, and
responds to climate change, and promote carbon reduction,
pollution reduction, greening and growth in a coordinated
manner. The environmental protection industry is extending
from end-of-pipe governance to whole-process pollution
reduction and carbon reduction and clean production,
achieving full coverage of the entire chain of pollution
governance, resource utilization, energy conservation and
carbon reduction. The resulting environmental protection
industry segments have considerable development space,
and businesses such as air treatment, water treatment and
solid waste treatment will be expanded in a more detailed
and specialized new direction.
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The role of” anchor” of coal-fired power
brings new opportunities for traditional
businesses

Under the goal of energy security, the Chinese government
has made specific arrangements to accelerate the
construction of advanced coal-fired power and promote
the “two co-operation” of coal and coal-fired power, as
well as coal-fired power and renewable energy, centering
on the clean and efficient utilization of coal and giving full
play to the basic guarantee and systematic regulation role
of coal-fired power. In 2022, the investment in thermal
power projects nationwide amounted to RMB90.9 billion,
representing an increase of 28.4% yearon-year; and the
total installed capacity of newly approved coal-fired power
projects in China exceeds 65GW, more than three times the
total approved capacity in 2021. The accelerated investment
in thermal power and the accelerated approval of coal-fired
power indicate that the basic support role of traditional
thermal power in the new power system has once again
been valued and strengthened, and the market scale of
traditional advantageous businesses such as desulfurization,
denitrification and dust removal is expected to be further
expanded.

The vision of carbon peak and carbon neutrality
promotes the comprehensive upgrading of
the ecological and environmental protection
industry

The Action Plan for Accelerating the Promotion of High-
quality Development of the Ecological and Environmental
Protection Industry and Deepening the Battle of Pollution
Prevention and Control to Fully Support the Carbon Peak
and Carbon Neutrality was officially released, proposing
to establish a modern ecological and environmental
protection industry that meets the requirements of
environmental pollution prevention and control, ecological
protection and restoration, efficient resource recycling,
carbon peak, and promoting comprehensive green
transformation of economic and social development, and
making corresponding arrangements for promoting the
technological innovation, standardization and intelligence
of ecological and environmental protection industry and
environmental services industry, which shall not only reflect
the transformation and development of the ecological and
environmental protection industry, but also take into account
the requirements of serving the green and low-carbon
transformation of the national economy. It is preliminarily
predicted that the compound annual growth rate of operating
revenue of China’s environmental protection industry will
reach 12% in 2022-2027, and it is expected to exceed
RMB?5 trillion by 2030. There is a huge market space for
new environmental protection industry.

2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2022, the Group recorded steady development in each business
segment and maintained the leading position in business segments
of environmental protection facility concession operation and
denitrification catalysts. Based on the cumulative operating unit
capacity as of the end of 2022, the Group continued to maintain its
position as the largest flue gas desulfurization and denitrification
concession operator in the PRC. Based on the total output of
denitrification catalysts in 2022, the Group remained as the PRC's
largest producer of denitrification catalysts.

In 2022, all of the Group's desulfurization concession operation and
denitrification concession operation projects under construction
have transferred into operational stage in respect of the
environmental protection facility concession operation business.
While consolidating its leading position in the environmental
protection field of thermal power segment, the Group actively
developed environmental protection governance businesses in
steel, cement, metallurgy and other non-electric fields to expand
its business scope and influence.

1. Environmental Protection and Energy
Conservation Business

1.1 Environmental protection facility concession
operation business

The Group's environmental protection facility
concession operation business covers desulfurization
and denitrification concession operations and its
major assets are located along east coast and in the
areas with relatively robust economic development
and strong demands for electricity.

The following map shows the geographical layout
and cumulative capacity of the Group's concession
operation as at 31 December 2022:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEERE w1 (48)

Desulfurization Concession Operation
B EE

[l Deniifcation Concession Operation
RS

In operation: 1,920MW.
1218: 1,920MW

ﬁ: In operation: 2,640MW
- ]

198: 2,640MW
In operation: 7,440MW
3 7,440MW

In operation: 1,000MW
138: 1,000MW

1338: 1,000MW

ﬁ: In operation: 1,200MW
23E: 1,200MW

P In operation: 1,200MW.
1238 1,200MW

In operation: 1,400MW
12IE: 1,400MW
[Flim In operation: 1,400MW
E: 1,400MW

ﬁ: In operation: 6,380MW

1218: 6,380MW

[Fililm n operation: 3,820MW
1218: 3,820MW

i In operation: 1,000MW

In operation: 10,120MW
1538: 10,120MW

i !n operation: 2,370MW.
HiE: 2,370MW

.

In operation: 1,920MW
38: 1,920MW
=7 #iE: 1,920

ﬁ: In operation: 1,320MW

B
B 208 1.320MW

As at 31 December 2022, the cumulative
installed capacity in operation for desulfurization
concession operations of the Group reached
50,180MW. The cumulative installed capacity in
operation for denitrification concession operations
reached 41,210MW and the installed capacity of
the desulfurization entrusted operation projects
reached 1,960MW. Among them, there are three
projects other than China Datang Group, with the
desulfurization installed capacity of 3,240MW and
denitrification installed capacity of 1,320MW.

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

In operation: 4,040MW
1538 4,040MW

[l In operation: 4,040MW
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In operation: 5,260MW
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[l In operation: 3,960MW
18381 3,960MW

In operation: 5,780MW
123%: 5,780MW
[l In operation: 5,140MW
: 1218: 5,140MW

R 7 OPCration: 2,400MW
118 2,400MW

In operation: 2,000MW
123%: 2,000MW

ﬁ: In operation: 5,200MW

1238: 5,200MW

[l In operation: 5,200MW
1238: 5,200MW
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth the status of the Group’s
desulfurization and denitrification concession

operation projects as at 31 December 2022:

CONTINUED)
i

(CON
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NRINRR2022F12 A
31 HAEE BT R B
AHEERBIERN

Category of concession Installed
Project location Project name operation capacity
15 B et HE BB FRT AR & R KERE
(MW)
Guangdong Chaozhou Desulfurization and denitrification 3,200
R A WiER - BiAE
Leizhou Desulfurization and denitrification 2,000
M WA~ B hE
Jiangsu Lvsigang Desulfurization and denitrification 2,640
L&k = PO A ~ B A
Nanjing Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
E2p WiEE - BiAs
Xutang Desulfurization 1,300
TRyE BiAR
Shandong Huangdao Desulfurization and denitrification 1,340
= =55 Biak - Ao
Binzhou Desulfurization and denitrification 700
M AT AT
Dongying Desulfurization and denitrification 2,000
R Biam ~ Ao
Zhejiang Wushashan Denitrification 2,400
ipan S2L i
Ningxia Pingluo* Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
=B 7> Wim ~ R A
Henan Xuchang Desulfurization 2,020
A Eil= BiAR
Sanmenxia Desulfurization and denitrification 1,050/2,950
=PIk BT ~ BihH
Anyang Desulfurization 1,270
Z5 B AR
Shouyangshan Desulfurization 600
Sl B AR
Xinyang (entrusted) Desulfurization 1,960
155 (&5E) R B
Gongyi Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
Z2R BT ~ R fE
Hebei Wangtan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,200
kb T Bian ~ BiAH
Zhangjiakou Thermal Power Desulfurization and denitrification 600
KRR A EE Bian - BiAH
Zhangjiakou Desulfurization 2,560
REK M i B
Yuxian Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
55349 e ~ RithH
Tangshan Beijiao Desulfurization and denitrification 700
& LB Biai ~ RithH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B JE A A £

DT (&)

Category of concession Installed
Project location Project name operation capacity
15 B Frfe it HE BB R R HERE
(MW)
Tianjin Jixian Desulfurization and denitrification 1,200
RE LA B ~ BihE
Anhui Luohe Desulfurization and denitrification 2,500
2 & B ~ BihE
Ma'anshan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
o5t gl BiaR - BihE
Hushan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
il BiaR -~ BihE
Tianjia'an Desulfurization 640
HXE B AR
Shaanxi Binchang Desulfurization and denitrification 1,260
pREE 2 BT - BihH
Baoji Desulfurization and denitrification 660
E5 BT ~ BihH
Inner Mongolia  Tuoketuo Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320/6,120
e it BT~ BihH
Xilinhot Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
B RF BT ~ BihH
Jiangxi Fuzhou Desulfurization 2,000
PN M i A%
Shanxi Shentou Desulfurization and denitrification 1,000
178 ZEL Bean - B A
Xinjiang Hutubi* Desulfurization 600
i I [ BE B AR
Wu Cai Wan* Desulfurization 1,320
R E B AR
Liaoning Shendong Desulfurization and denitrification 700
HE ER Beaw - B A
Huludao Desulfurization and denitrification 700
HHES Beaw - B A
Note: The projects marked with * are projects other 7 NA*ETRHIEBEE AR
than China Datang Group. A B K & & BASR
HH

12 2022 Annual Report
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1.3

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (
BEER

Denitrification catalysts business

In 2022, the Group’'s denitrification catalysts
business remained stable. The following table
sets forth the breakdown of the key figures of the
Group's denitrification catalysts business in 2022:

Production volume Sales volume

12.

Delivery volume

CONTINUED)
i B2 A (48

RIEEL B R

20224 - AN 5 B R A fE
LB ZEBRFERE - TX
F| 7R 2022 F 7N & & fi
(LB H 7 = BEEA
4

(Unit: m3)

S
/oK)

(E5fiy :

QL= AV
Delivery volume to
customers other than

China Datang Group

FEAEEE

EE fHE T E UHNEERFE
25,560.64 36,414.35 46,436.52 20,889.78
In 2022, the Group sold 12,476.71m? of catalyst 20224 « ANEBE[AF
to customers other than China Datang Group and AEEEMINEFIHERE
entered into 89 contracts, among which, 16 contracts L7 12,476.71 32 77 K -
were entered with overseas customers with the FEIAF89E - Efif
aggregate sales volume of 4,197.21m?3, while 49 ST ZEET 1618 - RET
contracts were entered with customers from non- $HE4,197. 213 K 3
electric industry such as glass and alumina sectors BEM - S LREIFEEIT
with the aggregate sales volume of 1,268.7m?. EET49H - REHEE
Meanwhile, the Group has made steady progress 1,268.73 5 K ° [AIBF -
in the disposal of waste catalysts with a total amount REBETEERICEESE
of 10,911.6m3 of waste catalysts disposed in 2022. FEBSHEE - 2022F 7%

F10,911.637 )5 K S & f&

EBIEE TE -
Environmental protection facility engineering 1.3. BRRBBIEEY

business

In 2022, the Group continued to carry out its
environmental protection facility engineering
business, including desulfurization, denitrification,
dust removal, ultra-low emission, and industrial
site dust management, and actively explore the
environmental market of non-electric industry such
as petroleum, coking, steel and cement.

20224 - AN B EE R
BREEKRR - BHAE - B
B BEEREIERE
2R TR TE N A IR IR 5% e
TRER  WEGEHREE
o e WE KR
ZIRBITENRRMES ©

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B JE A A £

1.4.

DT (&)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of
the environmental protection facility engineering
business in the power industry of the Group as at
31 December 2022:

Projects awarded and
signed in 2022

NRINTRR2022F12 A
BNHAEEENITERR
& TIREHRRBIH
il

Projects under
construction as of
the end of 2022

2022 FERKFEIIER 2022F KEEER
Amount Amount
(RMB (RMB
Number million) Number million)
x| -t
(AR (AR
Project 15 B 2 BET) HE BET)
Desulfurization B 1 151.92 3 366.60
Denitrification filiRiz 1 1.93 6 387.08
Dust removal PREE 1 145.60 1 52.05
Others Efth 4 113.98
Water treatment business 1.4. KEXEHE
In 2022, the Group entered into 5 contracts for 2022%F - REEFFIK
waterworks projects, with a total contract amount BIiRIBEGME - B5ta
of RMB103 million, among which, the entering RAeBARK1.03ET -
into of the Wuhan Hanneng desalination water Hrh - RETRR2REMRE
project was the Company's first breakthrough KIBEH RARA HIXNREK
into the market of Hanneng Group and had the EEEEETS - EERHE
groundbreaking meaning for proving reliable MEE B BEEREZE
reference for subsequent development of the B iR EA EREEL
market of that group. The entering into of the Datang B o KEMBBEKS
Xinyu zero discharge of desulfurization wastewater e RZER - FIER
contract enabled the “low-temperature and multi- Z AR +hesE L8 |
effect flash + rotary atomization drying” portfolio HETHEKE—HFHE
procedures beling further applied and verified in S FERMERE
mega-unit, which was conducive to the Company's BYRARNRIEZLEAE
further absorption, digestion and upgrading in this ARy E#E— 2RI - H
procedure portfolio technology. {EFF 4 -
2. WBINEH

2. Overseas Business

As at 31 December 2022, the NPP5A, NPP9 and PTG
projects in Thailand and the desulfurization project in
Cuddalore in India which the Group have undertaken
overseas ran steadily after officially put into operation. In
the “2021 Golden Key Action — SDG Solutions” hosted
by the Ministry of Commerce of China, the PTG project
in Thailand ranked among the top 3 and was received the
Outstanding Winner Prize.

2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (
BEER

Renewable Energy Business
3.1 Engineering Business

In 2022, the Group entered into 3 renewable
energy engineering projects, all being photovoltaic
engineering projects with installed capacity of
501.2MW.

3.2 Investment Business

In 2022, the Group entered into 8 distributed
photovoltaic investment projects with total installed
capacity of 8.57MW, which are expected to be
commenced in 2023.

Research and Development

In 2022, the Group continued to intensify sci-tech innovation,
conducted in-depth research on cutting-edge technologies
in six technological directions, such as recycling economy
and carbon capture, conducted online exchanges and on-
site visits with more than 50 universities and colleges,
scientific research institutions and leading enterprises in
the industry, and established six special working groups for
new business transformation to push ahead relevant work.

In 2022, the Group was awarded 56 patent authorizations in
aggregate, including 16 invention patent authorizations. As
of the end of 2022, the Group is preparing 2 international
standards as a leading role, and 2 domestic standards as
a leading role, and has completed the leading preparation
and publication of 3 international standards.

The “Development and Engineering Demonstration of
Smart Denitrification Key Technologies under Ultra-Low
Emission Coal-fired Units (B {EHE B BEMEAR 25 RE 5 AR R S 12
17 %% & T2/~ %0)" independently developed by the Group
won the Golden Bridge Award of the eleventh session of the
China Technology Market Association. The “Technology of
Treating Wastewater Containing Heavy Metals with Ferrite
Microcrystals (S8 a2 IR & &4 BRE/K Bl " has been
appraised and determined as world leading by the China
Electricity Council (“CEC"), and won the first prize of Golden
Apple Award of the China Electricity Technology Market
Association. The project of “Research and Application
of Key Technologies of Synergistic Denitrification and
Dehydration Catalysts (17 BB fif B 2k 16 b 2 B 4R H i fiff 75 e
FEF3)" won the innovation achievement award of power sci-
tech management (five stars), and the project of “Research
and Industrialization of Key Technologies of Synergistic
Denitrification and Dehydration Catalysts (17 &) fit i i < {8
{eEIRE S BT 75 ELEE %/b)" won the second prize of the
environmental protection sci-tech award of Jiangsu Society
for Environmental Sciences.

CONTINUED)
i B2 A (48

AL RERER
3.1 IEXE

2022%F  REEFHFT
BAERRIIEZEE3ME -
HAENKIREEER @ H§
AE501.2)KE -

32 REEFK

2022F - AEEHED
R NRBEEREEES
& - AR E857IKE -
FTE12023F A L& ©

5

2022 - AEBEEMARHA]
MANE - RARMT BREE
iz 478 &= S5 6 18 B2 47 75 [7) B9 AT A 7%
il BE0BRR SR ~ BB EM
RITERBEREEETTREIR
MEHELR - WK T6EME
FEABRBETEA  HEEET
fE o

2022%F - AEBHESERRE
5678 - HABPAER#EI16IH
HE20202FK AEBERFE
REBPRIZAE2IE - FIREIRNIEAE2
1B B2 EERERIT M
BIBRAEZEITH o

AEE B ERBOBIEBBRE
HAT R R MR E R T
TR REF +— B BT
BHheeRiE - [HAaM&EE
EEESBEKEM]  KHEE
HheEHae((HEBRDETE
BERBERALKT - AEHE
BEORMmEHeemRE—F
5% o [ 155 R Al A ok 1 L I R S 4
M ER TRE EENRHRE
BEFRRE(LE)  UER[BE
P i Jd 2R 12 4 £ 75 B 3 B T T 5% £
EFRERBEIHEREHNER
SIRIBREN SRR _FE -

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENwmEDI(E)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

There are inter-segment sales among the Group’s segments and
sub-segments, and accordingly the Group records intra-segment
elimination and inter-segment elimination among these segments/
sub-segments for the relevant revenue and cost of sales. In this
annual report, unless otherwise specified herein, (i) all discussion
about total revenue, total gross profit and overall gross profit
margin are based on the amounts after all intra- and inter-segment
elimination among the segments/sub-segments (being the figures
reflected in our consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income), and (ii) all discussion about the revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin of business segments and
sub-segments are based on the amounts before any intra- or
intersegment elimination of such segment or sub-segment.

1. Overview

The Group’s revenue increased by 0.6% from RMB5,288.4
million in 2021 to RMB5,322.7 million in 2022. The Group's
profit for 2022 amounted to RMB238.1 million, representing
an increase of RMB681.4 million as compared with RMB
-443.3 million in 2021. Profit attributable to owners of the
parent amounted to RMB272.4 million. The Group’s cash and
cash equivalents decreased by 29.9% to RMB872.2 million
as at 31 December 2022 as compared with RMB1,244.9
million as at 31 December 2021. The Group's total assets
decreased by 0.4% to RMB18,348.3 million as at 31
December 2022 as compared with RMB18,428.4 million as
at 31 December 2021. The Group's total liabilities decreased
by 1.9% to RMB11,451.5 million as at 31 December 2022
as compared with RMB11,672.8 million as at 31 December
2021. The Group’s return on total assets for 2022 was
1.3%, as compared with -2.3% in 2021.

2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

2. Results of Operations

2.1

22

2.3

24

25

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 0.6% to
RMB5,322.7 million in 2022 as compared with
RMB5,288.4 million in 2021, primarily due to the
increase in revenue from environmental protection
and energy conservation business.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 8.4% to
RMB4,533.3 million in 2022 as compared with
RMB4,947.0 million in 2021, mainly due to the
decrease in costs of engineering business.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses
increased by 2.7% to RMB18.7 million in 2022 as
compared with RMB18.2 million in 2021.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by
19.0% to RMB387.8 million in 2022 as compared
with RMB478.7 million in 2021. This was mainly due
to the reduction of the Company’'s labor dispatch
personnel.

Other income and losses

The Group’s other income increased to RMB111.5
million in 2022 as compared with RMB80.4 million
in 2021. This was mainly due to the decrease in
loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment compared with last year.

NTINUED)

R ETRED N (E)

22

2.3

24

25

KA

REBAUW A 202151
AR¥5,2884H & LiE
110.6% E£2022F ) AR
B53227EHEBIL £ 2
R IRRETREETFA A
M o

HERF

REE R HEKARH2021
FHOAR®A4947.08 &
TCE 2 8.4% 2022 F HY
AR#45333H8 T
FERRITREBKRAR

b o

HERDHMAZ

REEREE RS HEAY
2021 FMARKE18.28
BT N2.7% F 20224
MAREE18TEHETT °

fThAsE

REERITHARFH2021
FMARKAISTEE T
FA19.0% E20224F K A
R#¥3878EHEB L £ 2
THRARRHEKEA
B FTEL o

Hifz

NEE R EMUEER2021
FMARKESLIEE T
EANE2022F W AR
1MBBEBIL ET2HRK
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KR EFRDATE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEwmEDNT ()

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2022 Annual Report

Other expenses, net

The Group's other expenses decreased by 79.6% to
RMB8.6 million in 2022 as compared with RMB42.1
million in 2021, mainly because Datang Hami 13th
Division Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“Datang
Xinjiang") signed a compensation agreement with
China Datang Technologies & Engineering Co., Ltd.
("Technologies & Engineering Company "), which
stipulated that Datang Xinjiang would pay a total of
RMB49,432,000 in compensation to Technologies
& Engineering Company for the termination
of a construction contract and Technologies &
Engineering Company recorded the compensation
in other income accordingly.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by 10.2%
to RMB199.3 million in 2022 as compared with
RMB222.0 million in 2021, mainly due to the
decrease in the balance of long-term interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group and the replacement
of high-interest bank borrowings through the
issuance of super short-term commercial papers,
which lowered the finance cost.

Profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group’s
profit before tax increased by 178.5% to RMB296.8
million in 2022 as compared with RMB-378.2 million
in 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense was RMB58.7
million in 2022, representing a decrease of 9.8%
from RMB65.1 million in 2021, mainly due to the
decrease in profit before tax.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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2.12

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C
BEEENwWEDT ()

Profit for the year

The Group’'s profit for the year increased by
RMB681.4 million from RMB-443.3 million in 2021
to RMB238.1 million in 2022. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group's profit for the year
as a percentage of its total revenue increased to
4.5% as compared with -8.4% in 2021.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

The profit attributable to owners of the parent
increased by RMB480.7 million to RMB272.4 million
in 2022 as compared with RMB-208.3 million in
2021.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

The profit attributable to non-controlling interests of
the Group increased by 85.4% to RMB-34.3 million
in 2022 as compared with RMB-234.9 million in
2021.

2.10

2.11

2.12

NTINUED)
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AEERFAFEH2021
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Results on Business Segments

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
revenue by segment or sub-segment and each segment
or sub-segment as a percentage of total revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, as well as the

percentage of change:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENwmEDI(E)

RESERIA

REBEFZE2022F 20214
12A31H It FEREEB D Pk
FHHBWARE - & B HBIKRA
MBS REBCE DL TRA

N

For the year ended 31 December

HENANALEE
2022 201
20226 20215
Percentage of Percentage
total revenue of tota
before revenue hefore
Revenue elimination" Revenue  elimination’ Change
LR bR
LoN:4il WAL t
Environmental Protection and Energy Conservation RREHERLZ
Solutions:
Total revenue of environmental protection and energy  BREGBAFEELAANA 5200433 9.1 5,003,199 929 39
conservation solutions before elimination
Intra-segment elimination® pratic (112,389) (90,171)
Total revenue of environmental protection and FREOGBAAENPNESER 5088044 4,913,028 36
energy conservation solutions after intra-segment el
elimination
Inter-segment elimination PHEEH - -
External revenue of environmental protection and  EREEBRFEHMBUA 5,088,044 4,913,028 36
energy conservation solution
Renewable Energy Engineering: BARRIR
Total revenue of renewable energy engineering BELS R TN 195,533 36 307,767 57 -36.5
business
Inter-segment elimination e g - -
External revenue of renewable energy engineering T B£ R TREMIKA 195,533 307,707 -365
Thermal power engineering: KEIR:
Total revenue of thermal power engineering NETRENA - 0.0 97 0.0 -100.0
Inter-segment elimination AR = -
External revenue of thermal power engineering KEIRYMNBBA - 927 -100.0
Other businesses: EfhH
Total revenue of other businesses HfhHKapA 70211 13 73,989 14 51
Inter-segment elimination® AP (31,066 (7,295 325.9
External revenue of other businesses EEREMPRA 39,145 66,694 43
Total revenue before elimination® EERbALEY 5,466,177 1000 5385882 1000 15
Total intra- and inter-segment elimination® ABRAA R LR 143 455 (97 466)
Total revenue WA&E 5,322,122 5,288,416 0.6

2022 Annual Report
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C
BIRE S A L

Represents the revenue of each business segment
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment
elimination) as a percentage of the total revenue before
any intra- or inter-segment elimination.

Intra-segment elimination of revenue from sub-
segments under environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions segment mainly arises from the
intra-segment sales between denitrification catalysts
sub-segment to energy conservation sub-segment and
environmental protection facility concession operation,
respectively.

Inter-segment elimination of revenue from other
businesses segment mainly arises from the inter-
segment sales between other businesses segment
and environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions.

Represents the aggregate amount of the revenue of
all segments/sub-segments before any intra- or inter-
segment elimination.

Represents the aggregate amount of all intra- and inter-
segment elimination.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EI2

DT (&)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
gross profit by segment/sub-segment and gross profit margin
of each business segment/sub-segment for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021,
change in gross profit:

as well as the percentage of

TREF|NEETEE2022F K&
2021512 A31B It FE & D=k

FHEEF - EFERBALK
EFBRE -

For the year ended 31 December

HENRNBLEE
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Gross profit Gross profit Change of
Gross profit margin®  Gross profit margin gross profit
ZF0 EF ik £ £H& ZH|gy
VB0 RUB000
Total gross profit of environmental protection and  BRFEBRHEAEH
energy conservation solutions 880,381 17.3 297,943 6.0 1955

Total gross profit of renewable energy engineering B4 ERIRAET (75,625) (387) 225 0.1 33,7111

Total gross profit of thermal power engineering X EIRAZH - - (35) (38) -100.0

Total gross profit of other businesses Rtr¥REEA (15,335) (39.2) 19,190 259 1799

Total gross profit and overall gross profit margin® B REF =0 789,421 148 341,431 6.5 131.2

Notes: Bfet -

(1) Calculated based on the revenue of each segment (1) ERE D F 5 FEIUA
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment ({75 & N3k 5 &6 K 8
elimination) minus the cost of sales of such segment Al )R 5% D B+ 9 &P EY
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment HEKA(ER 5 EBAK S
elimination). EEEERD A ERTE

(2) Calculated based on the gross profit of each segment or (2) &E”%ﬁﬁﬁz-?"*ﬁﬁﬁgi
sub-segment calculated according to note (1) divided by AP EEC1)FHEAFHEER
the revenue of such segment or sub-segment (before SRR AL D BT 2 HEY
any intra- or inter-segment elimination). WA (R 5 & Ak 5 2B fE

EIHAD T EFH -
3) Total gross profit equals total revenue (being the (3) BEN SR B U A (BD = B

revenue reflected on our consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income) minus
total cost of sales (being the cost of sales reflected on
our consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income). Overall gross profit margin
equals total gross profit divided by total revenue.

2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash Flows

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents decreased by 29.9% to RMB872.2 million as
compared with RMB1,244.9 million as at 31 December
2021, mainly attributable to the decrease in the cash flow
generated from operating activities of the Group.

Working Capital

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net current assets
decreased by 63.0% to RMB404.2 million as compared with
RMB1,092.5 million as at 31 December 2021, primarily due
to the decrease in contract assets, trade receivables and
cash and cash equivalents.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's borrowings
decreased by 5.3% to RMB5,640.2 million as compared
with RMB5,952.8 million as at 31 December 2021.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure increased by 33.5% to
RMB172.2 million in 2022 as compared with RMB129.0
million in 2021. Capital expenditure mainly comprises costs
of long-term assets including acquisition or construction of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Financial Ratios

The following tables set forth certain of our financial ratios
as at the dates and for the periods indicated:
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9. Significant Investment

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made
no significant investment.

10. Material Acquisition and Disposal

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no
material acquisition or disposal.

11. Contingent Liabilities

(a)

2022 Annual Report

India Gujarat Project

On 16 March 2019, the Group's subsidiaries,
Technologies & Engineering Company and Datang
Technologies & Engineering India Private Limited
("Technologies & Engineering India”) signed
construction contracts for desulfurisation and wet
chimney with Gujarat State Electricity Corporation
Limited (“"GSECL"). Due to the impact of COVID-19,
the construction progress was delayed and GSECL
issued a formal notice which stated that it might
take measures such as terminating the contract,
redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
entrusting the work to others to complete. The
Group fully accrued provisions of RMB75,848,000
for the redemption of the performance guarantee
letter, and also considered that the corresponding
advance receipts of RMB25,835,000 would no longer
be obligated to be returned after the redemption of
the performance guarantee letter, and incurred other
expenses of RMB50,013,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 accordingly. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the performance guarantee
letter of RMB75,848,000 has been fully redeemed.
The likelihood of occurrence of other compensations
about these contract disputes cannot be estimated
reliably.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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(b)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C
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India NLC Project

On 6 March 2020, Technologies & Engineering
Company signed a construction contract with NLC
India Limited (“NLC India”). Due to the impact of
COVID-19, the construction progress was delayed,
and NLC India issued a formal notice to request to
terminate the contract and redeem the performance
guarantee letter amounting to RMB47,303,000.
In addition, the claims brought by NLC India also
include the costs incurred in re-tendering and the
arbitration progress. The Group fully accrued a
provision of RMB47,303,000, for the request of
redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
incurred other expenses of RMB47,303,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 accordingly. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the performance
guarantee letter of RMB47,303,000 has been fully
redeemed. The likelihood of occurrence of other
compensations about these contract disputes
cannot be estimated reliably.

(b)
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RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks on environmental protection and energy
conservation policies

The Group provides substantially all of its products and services in
the PRC, and the development of its business is greatly dependent
on the environmental protection policies of the PRC.

Environmental protection industry is one of the major industries
that benefit from the constant support of the PRC government.
The market demand for the Group’s environmental protection
and energy conservation products and services and the revenue
generated therefrom are directly affected by the environmental
protection policies of the PRC. However, there is no assurance that
such policies will continue to be available to the Group or there
will be no adverse change. If there is any adverse change, it may
result in a material and adverse effect on the business prospects,
results of operations and financial condition of the Group. The
management of the Group is of the view that, given the severity
of pollution in the PRC, it is unlikely for the PRC government to
revise such environmental protection policies regarding the adverse
effect or to withdraw any resources invested in the environmental
protection industry. Moreover, the Group, as a trendsetter and
leader of the environmental protection and energy conservation
for the PRC's electric power industry, has participated in the
formulation of various industrial policies and standards, which
allows it to catch the latest industry trends and respond in a
timely fashion.

Risks on connected transactions with China
Datang Group and its connected persons

The Group has been conducting various transactions with China
Datang Group and its connected persons, and will continue to
enter into such transactions in the future. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the total value of goods sold and services
provided by the Group to China Datang Group and its connected
persons was approximately RMB4,733.11 million, representing
approximately 89% of the total revenue of the Group. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the total value of goods purchased
and services received by the Group from China Datang Group and
its connected persons was approximately RMB1,874.24 million,
representing approximately 41% of the total cost of the Group. The
Group has been actively expanding its client base. For example,
during 2022, the Group entered into contracts in the amount of
RMB368 million with clients other than China Datang Group and
its connected persons, representing approximately 39.86% of the
total contract amount of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

Liquidity risks

The Group had positive operating cash flows of RMB531.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group cannot assure
that its operating cash flow for any future period will be positive.
The Group's ability to generate adequate cash inflows from
operating activities in the future will depend largely on project
schedule and billing arrangement, its ability to collect receivables
from customers in a timely manner and the credit terms available
to the Group. If the Group is not able to generate sufficient cash
flows from operations or obtain sufficient financing to support
its business operation, the Group's growth prospects may be
materially and adversely affected. The Group plans to implement
diversified measures to collect receivables in order to improve
operating cash flow. In addition, the Group has been proactively
seeking financing to support the development and expansion of
its business. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had available
bank facilities of RMB13.063 billion.

Industry risks

The Group’s business primarily focuses on the environmental
protection and energy conservation for coal-fired power plants,
and therefore the market demand for the Group's environmental
protection and energy conservation business relies heavily on the
growth rate of the coal-fired power generation output in the PRC.
In particular, the revenue generated from concession operations
will be directly affected by the power generation output of coal-
fired power plants. As pollution has become an increasingly severe
environmental issue in the PRC, the PRC government has shown
considerable concern for the adjustment to the national energy
structure and development. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that coal-fired power generation output in the PRC will continue
to grow at the current pace. If the increase in coal-fired power
generation output in the PRC slows down, it may result in a
decrease in utilization hours of coal-fired power generation units,
or a lower demand for the Group’s products and services, which
in turn will materially and adversely affect our business prospects,
results of operations and financial position. The management of the
Group is of the view that, in terms of the power generation portfolio
in the PRC, coal-fired power generation still dominates the market.
In addition, the vast majority of the Group’s concession operations
locate in coastal areas and economically developed areas, where
the utilization hours of coal-fired power generation are higher than
the average level nationwide. The Group plans to actively explore
clients in the iron and steel, cement and petrochemical industries.

NTINUED)
EREHBED (R

B & i B W b

AREFEZE2022F12 318 IEFEHK
EREREAARELIIEET * A%
E A REBMMEMRRBARNEE RS
MEBBES - NEBRKEELEETE
FATEIR &R AL 8 K E D BURR
HERBEREKFARENZE AEBE K
%ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%mﬁmmﬂ&$ﬁl
BEESHEERR - WASBERERE
BEPFEATENRSRELEISTEN
BMENZRHEBLEE  ASEERA
RAEIINERTHNTZE - AEEEE
R ZEE AR EWRFOSWIIE -
ENRELEEEM - B - ANEH—
ERBEEBERULERSK@E -
M2022F12A31H » AEBEHBEARE
130.631E LRI A AIRITIRERE -

1T EBR

REBHRBHEBEFRNREERH
%%ﬁ% H AN E EIRR AL EIEH
FRARREE LR B 5
f*mﬁﬁf ﬁ%%ﬁﬁwéiﬁm
WAEMEEHRESEEEEE - B0
SRR ATEBBBRENREMNE P
BBRNERTHETERAZERNRERES
BRER  -Hit - XEBTRE
BAEREECHERRAREER -
MREREMEBESNERRE - BIE
Al Be & E BB B B AR T B /N T PR
FHAEBOERMBRBEERTER - Y
BPMEBIS « CEEBEMB AR
BEREATHFE - ASENETERER
B RPENBREEENS  MEEE
TMRmH ENERER o Lo - AEE
Ky%%%ﬁ%%%%I%¢¢Fﬁi
M matEim - PR BT F A
REEFHKFE - $%lﬁ%%ﬁ%@
e KERABICITENRE °

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR



28

Risks on overseas business

The Group is aggressively developing its overseas business,
especially in the Belt and Road Initiative countries, deeply explores
Southeast Asia, South Asia and other core markets, and focuses
on the deployment in India, Thailand and other countries. The
Group's global business expansion may be hindered by risks such
as: lack of availability of overseas financing, possible difficulties in
the management of overseas personnel and business operations,
lack of understanding of the local business environment, financial
and management system or legal system, volatility in currency
exchange rates, cultural differences, changes in political, regulatory
or economic environments in the foreign countries or other regions,
as well as the risk of barriers. If the Group fails to manage the
above risks effectively, its overseas expansion may be hindered,
which may in turn result in a material and adverse effect on its
business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.
The management of the Group is of the view that, the PRC
government has been actively establishing friendly diplomatic
relations with the Belt and Road Initiative countries and improving
the overseas investment atmosphere. The Group has extensive
experience in project management in certain countries, such as
India and Thailand, which can serve as examples for its future
overseas development. Moreover, the Group has established rather
mature risk management and internal control systems to mitigate
risks on overseas business to the greatest extent possible.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK ON THE GROUP’S FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

In order to fully implement the requirements of the report of
the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China on
the construction of a “harmonious and symbiotic modernization
of mankind and nature”, comprehensively build a world-class
enterprise with “product exellence, brand eminence, innovation
leadership and governance modernization”, and comprehensively
start a new journey of high-quality development, the Group proposed
“1461" development strategies of realizing “one development
vision”, building an “enterprise with four excellences”, improving
“six capabilities” and completing “one transformation”. The details
are as follows:

- To realize “one development vision”, that is, guided by
the “dual carbon” goal of serving the country and taking
the construction of Beautiful China as an opportunity, the
Group will seize the opportunity of integrated protection
and systematic remediation of mountains, rivers, forests,
farmlands, lakes, grasslands and deserts, and adhere to
become a benchmark enterprise for green and low-carbon
development. Through industrial structure adjustment and
reshape, the Company will be built and become a top-rated
integrated energy and environmental governance service
provider with “technology advancement, product exellence,
industry synergy and intelligent efficiency”.

- To build an “enterprise with four excellences”, that is the
one with excellent core technology, excellent talent team,
excellent industrial layout and excellent profitability.

- To improve “six capabilities”, namely, technological
innovation capability, market development capability, value
creation capability, capital operation capability, compliance
operation capability and modern governance capability.

- To complete “one transformation” from traditional
environmental protection engineering enterprises to a
top-rated integrated energy and environmental governance
service provider.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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According to the above development strategies and the current
development situation, the Group will focus on three aspects in
2023:

1. Consolidate the industry position of core
business and deepen the improvement of
quality and efficiency

For concession operations, the Group will improve the
lean management in the whole process, well manage the
limestone, urea and other bulk materials, improve the
level of energy conservation and consumption reduction of
environmental protection facilities and operating efficiency,
explore the potential of various controllable costs, and
ensure that the index management ranks top in the industry.
Furthermore, the Group will grasp the opportunities of
the acceleration of the approval of coal-fired power and
the speed-up of investment, and actively expand the
scale of operation business, striving to achieve newly
installed capacity of concession operation of no less than
2,000MW during the “14th Five-Year” period. The Group
will accelerate the promotion of transformation of gypsum
disposal projects into comprehensive utilization projects, and
further support the development and expansion of gypsum
comprehensive utilization industry, striving to achieve the
production capacity of over 800,000 tones by 2025. For
denitrification catalyst business, the Group will insist on
becoming a leading enterprise in the industry, promote the
construction of the second production base according to
the domestic first-class and international leading standards,
and ensure additional disposal recycling production capacity
of 10,000m? of honeycomb catalyst and 20,000m?® of spent
catalysts during the year. The Group will focus on the gas
turbine market and other new fields, vigorously promote
the research and development of new products, and ensure
that the new catalysts maintain the generation separation
advantage over the existing similar providers. The Group
will improve the construction level of the whole industrial
chain of catalyst manufacturing, disposal, regeneration and
detection, and maintain the leading position in the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (
BERE

Accelerate the transformation and upgrading
of engineering business and go all out to
break through difficulties

The Group will speed up the establishment of a new energy
design institute, complete the allocation of design leading
talents and other relevant personnel during the year to
form a complete new energy design talent team, obtain
the Class B design qualification, the highest qualification
for new energy power generation design in China, have
the ability to undertake the design of 300MW photovoltaic
and wind power, and have the annual design capacity of
over 2,000MW and general contracting capacity of over
500MW. At present, significant progress has been made
and relevant professional talents have been in place. The
Group will develop “three forces” of project management,
namely, the standardized and normalized design force, the
cost control force of lean management, and the trustworthy
execution force to overcome difficulties. The Group will
build the engineering segment into “three platforms”,
namely, a diversified new energy development platform that
provides implementation and verification of “photovoltail
+", a low-carbon environmental protection service platform
that provides a “package” of pollution reduction and carbon
reduction services, and a sci-tech innovation implementation
platform that realizes the industrialization application of new
technologies.

Seize development opportunities and
develop rapidly in emerging industries

The Group will vigorously promote new breakthroughs
in the photovoltaic industry, focus on the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region and key enterprises in terms of industrial
and commercial projects, and the cooperation and
development with leading enterprises in the industry in
terms of household projects, and explore the business
model of photovoltaic BOT, further increase investment
income, exert the regional synergy, and promote the
diversified layout of the photovoltaic industry, so as to
ensure the newly install capacity of no less than 50MW
in 2023, and no less than 200MW as at the end of the
"14th Five-Year Plan”. The Group will develop integrated
products of electrochemical energy storage system, take
EPC as the starting point, master the integrated design
capability and product manufacturing capability of energy
storage system, and accelerate the implementation of
electrochemical energy storage products with its own brand
and proprietary technology. The Group will accelerate the
promotion of carbon detection business, develop products
officially certified by national detection institutions, and
form a complete set of proprietary intellectual property right
system technologies for industrial marketing.
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Adhere to strong talent base and innovation-
driven, and enhance core competitiveness

Based on the achievements of the three-year reform of
state-owned enterprises, the Group will give full play to the
role of scientific research platforms such as postdoctoral
workstations, cultivate and elect leading experts in
professional fields, proactively introduce top scientific
research and design talents, establish and improve the
high-level expert talent service guarantee and incentive
guarantee system, provide strong talent guarantee and
intellectual support for transformation and development,
and guide future industrial development and expansion
with technological innovation. The Group will promote the
upgrading of flue gas treatment in the field of energy
conservation and environmental protection, carry out the
development and application of technologies such as solid
waste treatment and comprehensive utilization, wastewater
treatment, carbon monitoring and capture in power plants,
and low-carbon fuel coupled combustion. In the field of
new energy, the Group will carry out the comprehensive
treatment of retired wind farms, centralized photovoltaic
optimization and improvement, and ecological restoration,
new energy solid waste treatment and utilization, and safe
and long life-cycle energy storage integration. In the field
of comprehensive energy services, the Group will carry out
the development of intelligent energy system integration
application technology for low-carbon parks and urban
complexes with distributed photovoltaic as the main body.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board hereby presents this report of Directors and the annual report
as well as the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the
year of 2022 prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs").

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as a joint stock Company in the
PRC with limited liability on 25 July 2011. Basic information about
the Company is set out in the sections headed “Company Profile”
and “Corporate Information” on page 3 and pages 289-292 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is the sole platform for the development of
environmental protection and energy conservation business under
China Datang Group, one of the 4 major state wholly-owned power
generation groups in the PRC. The principal business of the Group
includes environmental protection facility concession operation,
denitrification catalysts, environmental protection facilities
engineering, water treatment business, energy conservation
business and renewable energy engineering business.

Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 140-141 of
this annual report. The financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 is set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position on pages 142-143 of and in Note
40 to the financial statements in this annual report. The cash flows
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of cash flows on pages 145-146
of this annual report.
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A discussion and analysis of the Group's business review, results
and performance during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the discussion and analysis of the key factors of its results and
financial performance, risk factors and risk management and the
prospect for future development are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7-32 of this
annual report, and the “Report of Directors” on pages 33-73
of this annual report. The description of relationship between
the Group and employees is set out in the section headed
“Human Resources” on pages 130-131 of this annual report. The
indemnity provisions of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ liability insurance and the permitted indemnity
provisions” under the corporate governance report on page 89 of
this annual report. The aforementioned sections form part of the
report of Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

AND

As an environmental protection technology company, the Group
strictly abides by the environment and social-related laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation
to its businesses, including provision of environmental protection
and energy conservation services, monitoring of the pollutants
generated by coal-fired power plants, and provision of renewable
energy services, etc. Meanwhile, as a responsible company, the
Group proactively performed its social responsibility in 2022,
and conducted business by taking fulfillment of the concept of
sustainable development as its duty. It also adheres to mutually
beneficial cooperation with customers and employees to seek
for common development, and strives to maintain a balance of
harmony with ecological environment and social environment.
The Group will keep on undertaking social responsibilities and
exerting advantages as an environmental protection enterprise
and making consistent efforts to forage an environment with blue
sky and white clouds.

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the Company
will be set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the "ESG Report”) to be issued by the Company separately
pursuant to Rule 13.91 and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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sEgmE(E)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS XA - @R EERRENR

As an H share company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liabilities and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company is governed by various applicable domestic laws and
regulations including the Company Law of the People’'s Republic
of China (“Company Law"), the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Standards for Corporate Governance
of Listed Companies ( { LT ARAIE%RI) ) promulgated by the
CSRC, the Guideline on Comprehensive Risk Management of
Central Enterprises ( (FRMEZEEREIEIES]) ) promulgated
by the SASAC, as well as the Listing Rules and the SFO. The
Group has implemented risk management and internal control
measures to ensure its compliance with such laws and regulations.
Having reviewed the business performance of the Group, the
Board is of the view that the Group has been in compliance with
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in all material
respects.

The discussion and analysis of legal risks exposed to the
Company are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors and
Risk Management” on pages 26-28 of this annual report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 15 November 2016. The net proceeds from the
initial public offering and partial exercise of the over-allotment
option, after deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$2,032.3 million, which
will be used in the ways stated in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the announcement
of the Company dated 30 December 2021 (the “Announcement”)
in relation to the change in use of net proceeds.
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The following table sets forth the use of net proceeds from the
initial public offering as at 31 December 2022:

Intended use of
net proceeds
disclosed in the
Prospectus

BRERREN
FRmEFEN
RERR

TREFIEZ2022F12A31HIEEH XA
MBS SR FREAERABR

Revised use of

net proceeds  Actual use of Unused net  Expected time
asatthe net proceeds up  proceeds up to of full utilization
date of the to 31 December 31 December of remaining

Announcement 2022 2022 balance
B22020%
12A318
REAERH Fri85ug HZ200E
e RaN FENER  1283BRER ZAER

BiIRE  RARREE  FERERE  RENRARE
(HKS (HKS (HKS million/

To finance the capital expenditures for expanding ~ BRME RS FEL£5EE
the desulfurization and denitrification concession FRARRY

operations 1,219.50 1,219.50 1,219.50 0.00 -
To develop new sources of growth in the revenue ~ SEERARMFIERNERS 0
and profit, including but not limited to EMC BTRRAERER
business for coal-ired power plants, water ARRREREE ki
treatment business, and providing customers with ~ £HHARFREB(E
overall solution plans of ultra-low emissions HHEERINR 304.80 304.80 304.80 0.00 -
To repay some of the existing bank loans in order to  EEIABARTER -
lower the finance costs and improve the financial ~ MBEHERARSE
leverage ratio BisERILE 203.20 203.20 203.20 0.00 =
For working capital and other general corporate EEESRAM—RARRS
puUrposes 203.20 203.20 203.20 0.00 -
For research and development expenditures BT December 2025
101.60 93.60 61.31 32.29 2025%12
Investment in renewable energy projects AELHERERE December 2023
- 8.00 01.00 8.00 2023E12
Total a3t 2,032.30 2,032.30 1,992.01 4029

VIl. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had no investment
properties or properties held for development and/or sale with one
or more of the percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9)
of the Listing Rules) exceeding 5%.
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T =
BE2REE)
SHARE CAPITAL N\~ BBRE
As at 31 December 2022, the total registered share capital of the K2022F 12 A318 » AR A /&
Company was RMB2,967,542,000, divided into 624,296,200 H RiEEE ANRE2,967,542,0007T * 95
Shares and 2,343,245,800 Domestic Shares. Details of the changes 624,296,200/%HA% }2.2,343,245,800A% 1A
in issued share capital of the Company during the Reporting Period B o AR RIMEBITRARBEHNRN
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements in this annual VB BRI A FE BRI B RERMITEI0 ©
report.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS h - BEERE
As at 31 December 2022, there were no provisions for pre-emptive R2022F 128318 » ARIER K HEA
rights under the Articles of Association or the relevant PRC laws, BAEEAREBLIBEEEELEAE - UE
which require the Company to offer new Shares to existing RN N AR IR R A #5 IR B 01 A1 3R B R
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings. REEHR -
RESERVES + - W
Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and of the Company REERKNAGNRREBHAFEERNE S
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated HIBEHREHEREBRRAFRIE
statement of changes in equity and in Note 40 to the financial HFEMIFEL0 ©
statements in this annual report.
RETAINED PROFITS +— Ko EFHE
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, where there are differences BIBARERBRTE - FESEESFER
between Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of the ([FESESTELA ) HARETERE
PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the IFRSs, the retained profits shall be ERMBEZR  KHEFBEUARG TE
the lower of the amounts shown in the two different financial W MEPREEBEE - KEERIE
statements. There is no discrepancy between the net assets at R B b 3 2 51 E B 0 B B B 74 R 5 22 R
the end of 2022 as calculated in accordance with PRC GAAP and FATER2022F RFEEEEZR - A5H
the IFRSs. The retained profits of the Group as of 31 December HZE2022F12 A31 B R H EFEE R
2022 is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. EHEZREHR - EETTERIRBAF
The Board proposes to set aside 10% of the profit after tax as the ER AT ERERBEFBE10%ERE
statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the Company Law ERHBRAES  TRIEEQAES © It
and the Articles of Association, and not to set aside discretionary FRBIRR2022FERFBFASER
reserve. This proposal will be submitted to the 2022 AGM for Kb o
consideration and approval.
2022 FINAL DIVIDEND 12 2022 KRR
The Board has not resolved to recommend payment of a final EEHARBRRERIREHE2022F
dividend for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2022 (the 12A31 AL BEENRARKRE(TEE
“Proposed 2022 Final Dividend") but shall convene another 2022FERHBE])  ERERTER
Board meeting, expected to be at or before the end of April 2023, Bx e (FETR2023F4 AKsZAT)
to consider the declaration of the Proposed 2022 Final Dividend. LAZ B EIRE#H2022F E RHIRL S o 4
If the Board decides to proceed, the declaration will be adopted EESATET  ERBEUESER
and recommended by Board resolution for the approval of the AR RS - HARRBE o

Shareholders.

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR

37



38

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFETHEE)

Xl

TAX

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC ( {FZE A
RHAMBEREFSFE) ) and its implementation regulations (the
"EIT Law"), the tax rate of the enterprise income tax applicable
to the income of a non-resident enterprise deriving from the PRC
is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares registered in the name of
non-individual enterprises, including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other agents or trustees, or other organizations or groups, shall
be deemed as shares held by nonresident enterprise Shareholders
(as defined under the EIT Law). When the Company distributes
dividends to non-resident enterprise Shareholders, it is liable to
withhold enterprise income tax on their behalf at an interest rate
of 10%. If H Shareholders need to change their Shareholder’s
status, they shall consult with the agents or trustees on the
procedures. In strict compliance with laws and requirements of
relevant government authorities, the Company will withhold the
enterprise income tax according to the register of members of the
H Shares of the Company as at the record date.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has
been legally incorporated in the PRC or which was established
pursuant to the laws of foreign countries (regions) but has
established effective administrative entities in the PRC, and whose
name appears on the Company’s register of members of H Share
should deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident
enterprise furnished by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official
chop of the law firm issuing the opinion affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to the H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, if they do not wish to have
the 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf
by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy and Administration
of Individual Income Tax after the Abolishment of Guo Shui Fa
(1993) No. 045 Document ( B EIAE 3% (1993)0455% S EE IE 18 A
BEAFTSHEERREAEL) )issued by the State Administration
of Tax on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed by the PRC
non-foreign invested enterprises which have issued shares in Hong
Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject
to the individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general.
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If the individual H Shareholders are residents of Hong Kong or
Macau or those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with
the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will
finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of these Shareholders. If the individual H Shareholders
are residents of those countries which have entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than
10%, the Company will make applications on their behalf to seek
entitlement of the relevant agreed preferential treatment pursuant
to the relevant tax treaty. Under the above circumstances, if the
relevant individual H Shareholders want a refund of the extra
amount withheld (the “Extra Amount”) due to the application
of 10% tax rate, the Company can apply for the relevant agreed
preferential tax treatment provided that the relevant Shareholders
submit the evidence required by the notice of the tax treaty to the
H Share Registrar. The Company will assist with the tax refund
after receiving approval of the competent tax authority. Should
the individual H Shareholders be residents of the countries which
have an agreed tax rate of over 10% but less than 20% with the
PRC under the tax treaty, the Company will withhold and pay
the individual income tax at the agreed actual rate in accordance
with the relevant tax treaty. In the case that the individual H
Shareholders are residents of the countries which have an agreed
tax rate of 20% with the PRC, or which have not entered into any
tax treaty with the PRC, or otherwise, the Company will withhold
and pay the individual income tax at a rate of 20%.

The Company will strictly comply with the laws and requirements
of the relevant government authorities and withhold and pay
enterprise and individual income tax on behalf of the Shareholders
based on the Company's register of members of the H Shares on
the record date. The Company assumes no liability whatsoever in
respect of and will not entertain any claims arising from any delay
in, or inaccurate determination of, the status of the Shareholders
or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding of enterprise
income tax. The Company assumes no liability whatsoever in
respect of any claims arising from any delay in, or inaccurate
determination of the status of the Shareholders or any disputes
over the mechanism of withholding.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has repurchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's listed securities.
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XV. MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total sales to the Group's
five largest customers represented approximately 23.97% of total
revenue of the Group for the year of 2022, among which total sales
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 6.36% of total
revenue of the Group for the year of 2022. The super-majority of our
top five customers during the Reporting Period were subsidiaries
of China Datang, and the Group was heavily reliant on sales to
China Datang Group as its principal source of revenue. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the total value of products and services
provided by the Group to China Datang Group and its connected
persons represented approximately 90.89% of the total revenue

of the Group for the corresponding period.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total purchase from the
Group's five largest suppliers represented approximately 11.69%
of total cost of sales of the Group for the year of 2022, among
which total purchase from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 3.59% of total cost of sales of the Group for the
year of 2022. During the Reporting Period, the Group procured
certain products and services from China Datang Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the total value of products and
services procured by the Group from China Datang Group and
its connected persons represented approximately 41.35% of the
total costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, except for certain
subsidiaries of China Datang that were among our top five
customers or suppliers, none of the Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management, their close associates or any Shareholders (to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, who holds more than 5% of the
issued Shares) have any interest in the five largest customers or

suppliers of the Company during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained good relations
with its customers and suppliers. The Company kept contact with
its customers and suppliers, and maintained communication with
them via various channels, such as telephone, email and physical

meetings, to receive feedback and suggestions.

XVI. BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER LOANS

The details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 29 to the financial

statements in this annual report.
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XVII.STAFF

XVIII.

XiX.

Staff is the key for the Group's sustainable development. Details of
the staff of the Group are set out in the sections headed “Profile
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” and “Human
Resources” on pages 115-129 and pages 130-131 respectively in
this annual report.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TERM
DEPOSITS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no entrusted
deposits with financial institutions in the PRC, or term deposits
which were overdue but unrecovered.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management from 1 January
2022 to the date of publishing of this annual report:

Tt

T\
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sEgmE(E)

BT

BTAAREEAFHEXENRRE - 5
REBHNETERFED AHNAFRE
MEEEE1298 RE130EEF 1318
[BF  EERaATEEHNIRIAS
BRIZEA

RAFRRBMEMER

HZE2022F12A3MBIEEE - A&EE
BELREEANSREETRERT
F o METHERE B M X RERE
BB ©

ER EFERSRERE
TREIBE2022F1 A1 BEREERS

MRS EF  BENAKEEEN
BHER -

Date of appointment/resignation as a

Name Position in the Company Director/Supervisor/Senior Management
HE EAR A EEARS I/ BIERES EE SREEENAY
Directors
=
ZHU Liming Chairman of the Board December 2022
AR EA qER 20224128
Executive Director December 2022
HITES 20224124
Authorised representative December 2022
REAR 20224124
SHEN Zhen General manager May 2022
2EE HaE 202245 A
Executive Director June 2022
HITES 202246 A
WANG Junqi Non-executive Director September 2021
FERRR FERITES 202149 A
WU Daging Non-executive Director September 2021
RRE EHMITESE 202149 A
CHEN Kan Non-executive Director September 2021
PR A FEMITES 202149 A

SONG Yunpeng

REBE

e

Non-executive Director

September 2021

(Employee representative Director)

FHWITEF
(BRIRRE=S)

202149 A
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Date of appointment/resignation as a

Name Position in the Company Director/Supervisor/Senior Management
HE EARQAEERNBE I/ BERAES EE SRAEEENAY
YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director June 2015
-3 B IEHITES 201546 A
MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director June 2015
E5EZ BIUFRITES 201546 A
GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director April 2016
SER BYERITES 201654 A

WANG Yanwen

FEX

TIAN Dan
B F+

Supervisors
Ex
HUANG Yuan

IR

ZHANG Xuefeng
R

LUO Li

oo

T
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Former chairman of the Board and
executive Director

AEERFNITES

Former non-executive Director

RIZEITES

Former authorised representative

AR &K

Former non-executive Director

RIZEITE S

Former general manager and
executive Director

AIAKERRITES

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

and Supervisor

EEerRRES
Supervisor
BEE

Employee representative Supervisor

BTRRES

Resigned in June 2022

202246 A& E

Resigned in December 2022
2022512 AT

Resigned in December 2022
2022512 AT

Resigned in June 2022
202246 A& fF

Resigned in May 2022

202245 A BT

September 2021

2021494
September 2021
202149A
January 2021
20211 A



Name

HE

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Position in the Company

AR D ARENRE

sEgmE(E)

Date of appointment/resignation as a
Director/Supervisor/Senior Management

EE BIEALES BEE SRAEEBNEEH

Senior Management ™
EREEED

CHEN Song

FER #2

LIU Chundong

ElE=

ZHOU Ce

AR
LIANG Xiuguang
RER

Note:

m The list of Senior

Chief accountant

FE—E i

Deputy general manager

BlaagIE

Secretary of the Discipline Inspection
Committee

HERELZEgER

Deputy general manager

BlaagIs

Secretary of the Board, Joint Company
Secretary and authorized representative

BxgwE  BEAT
WE RIEER K

Management excludes those who are also

serving as Directors or Supervisors.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
nonexecutive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that each
of the independent non-executive Directors is independent of the

Company.

July 2019
201947 A
July 2020
202078
March 2020

202043 A3
March 2018
2018437
November 2020

2020%11 A
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XX. CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

From 1 January 2022 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
the changes in information of Directors are set out as follows:

o Mr. WANG Yanwen resigned as the chairman of the Board
and re-designated from an executive Director to a non-
executive Director from June 2022, and resigned as a
non-executive Director from December 2022.

o Mr. ZHU Liming served as the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director from December 2022.

o Mr. SHEN Zhen served as an executive Director from June
2022.
o Mr. TIAN Dan re-designated from an executive Director to

a non-executive Director from May 2022, and resigned as
a non-executive Director from June 2022.

o Mr. YE Xiang, an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd. (BB #R1TA 5 BBR 2 A]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2558) from
December 2022.

o Mr. WANG Jungi, a non-executive Director, appointed as
the director, general manager and deputy secretary of the
Party committee of Datang Hainan Energy Development
Co., Ltd.* (KEEMERFAZEARAR) from November
2022.

2022 Annual Report
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From 1 January 2022 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, there is no change in information of Supervisors.

From 1 January 2022 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes in information of Senior Management are set
out as follows:

o Mr. TIAN Dan resigned as a general manager from May
2022.
o Mr. SHEN Zhen served as a general manager of the

Company from May 2022.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 May 2022, 30 June 2022 and 8 December 2022 with
respect to the changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management respectively.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 115-
129 of this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the Directors. According to the Articles of Association, the
term of office is three years. The principal particulars of these
service contracts comprise (a) the term of office commencing
from the effective date of their appointments to the date of the
next general meeting for the re-election of Directors; and (b)
termination provisions in accordance with their respective terms.
Service contracts can be renewed in accordance with the Articles
of Association and applicable regulations.

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a contract with the
Company in respect of, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observations of the Articles of
Association and provisions on arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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XXll. REMUNERATION OF

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management during the Reporting Period are set out in Notes 10
and 36(d) to the financial statements and in the section headed
"Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”

on page 105 of this annual report.

XXIV. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
SUPERVISORS |IN

ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2022, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company was involved in
its establishment either directly or indirectly, in which a Director
or Supervisor or an entity connected with a Director or Supervisor
had material interests, and with which the Company's business is
connected, subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

XXV. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. WANG Jungi, a non-executive Director
also acted as a director of Datang Huayin (a subsidiary of China
Datang and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600744). Mr. WANG Jungi was not involved in daily operations of
Datang Huayin. As at 31 December 2022, Datang Huayin held partial
interests in EMC business and energy conservation EPC business
that competes with our principal business. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling

Shareholder” in the Prospectus.

Mr. WANG Jungi will abstain from voting for decision making

involving any competing business with Datang Huayin.

Even if he abstains from voting, there will still remain eight
Directors (including two executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors (one of whom is an employee representative Director)
and three independent non-executive Directors in the Board which

will enable effective decision makings.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that, as of 31
December 2022, none of them had any interest in any business
which competes or might compete, either directly or indirectly,

with our principal business.
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XXVIl. INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES ANDDEBENTURES OF THECOMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code

E=gHRE(E)
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XXVI. INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the following persons (other
than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and, which were entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Ztt ERBRR B HERAR G
PRERMRE

M2022F12A318 - BEHEL—U&
BEREMEM  TIAL(RES - &
B ARNRFEZITHABRIN R R
TR D R A ERIRE S KA E KA
EXVEBE2REIDHBRAARRGBFEEILLE
SERR AR A AIRIRFE & K B E 1451 58336
BAEGEENECLMANERSAR

As at 31 December 2022
120225128311

Number
of Shares/
underlying Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant  Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share

Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital capital ?
EESmE Yl
BENRG HRIRA ERAEY
TERFRER BRAE5 g HEROHE Epsall BA?
(Share) (%) (%)
China Datang Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 2,343,245,800 100 78.96
REIRE NER ERHEEA {Long position)
(#2)
Anbang Investment Holdings Co., Limited ® H Shares Beneficial owner 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
ZAREERER AR HA EREEA {Long position)
(#8)
Anbang Group Holdings Co. Limited © H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
ZHEEIERER A Hi& RS EE R {Long position)
(4 #)
Dajia Life Insurance Co., Ltd. © H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
ARASRBRHDERA R HA& REGAEER (Long position)
(#8)
Dajia Insurance Group Co., Ltd. © H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
AERBREEERAELAF HE R AR R {Long position)
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As at 31 December 2022
12022%12831H

Number
of Shares/
underlying  Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share

Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital capital @
B % il
HENRG, HRIRA EREBH
TERRER R85 & HERGHE BN B
(Share) (%) (%)
China Chengtong Hong Kong Company H Shares Beneficial owner 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
Limited ¥
REHRESARA A HAi& ERfEA {Long position)
(##)
China Chengtong Holdings Group Ltd. ¥ H Shares Interest in controlled 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
corporation
PEHREREEERARY HA& R EE R (Long position)
(#8)
China Energy Engineering Corporation H Shares Beneficial owner 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
Limited
HEERER EBER AR HAi& EREBEA {Long position)
(##)
State Grid Yingda International Holdings H Shares Beneficial owner 61,467,000 9.85 2.07
Group Ltd. ©
BRERERERERER AR HA& ERfEA {Long position)
(##2)
State Grid Corporation of China © H Shares Interest in controlled 61,467,000 9.85 2.07
corporation
EEEF =N HA% Rt ER {Long position)
(&)
Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. ® H Shares Beneficial owner 59,506,000 9.53 2.01
ZREREREBEFEAR HA% ERfEA (Long position)
(##)
China Three Gorges Corporation © H Shares Interest in controlled 59,506,000 9,63 2.01
corporation
HRERII=KEE QA HAR X AR ER {Long position)
(#8)
China Huaneng Group Hong Kong Limited ” H Shares Beneficial owner 49,002,000 7.85 1.65
REERESEEEERAR" HR ERBAA {Long position)
(178)
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As at 31 December 2022

12022128318
Number
of Shares/
underlying Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share
Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital capital @
B % il
HENRG, HRIRA EREABH
TERRER RBER g HERGHE Epial Epiad
(Share) (%) (%)
China Huaneng Group H Shares Interest in controlled 49,002,000 7.85 1.65
corporation
REERRENR Hik R AEER (Long position)
(4 &)
China Huadian Hong Kong Company H Shares Beneficial owner 48,628,000 7.79 1.64
Limited ©
FEEEEEFRARY HA EREEA {Long position)
(#8)
China Huadian Corporation © H Shares Interest in controlled 48,628,000 7.79 1.64
corporation
hEEEEE AR HA% Rt B gL {Long position)
(#8)
Taiping General Insurance Co., Ltd. © H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
AFHERBERAF" HA ERBEBA (Long position)
(#2)
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited © corporation
REATRBIERER AR HA Rt EER {Long position)
(#8)
China Taiping Insurance (HK) Company H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited © corporation
REAEREEE(FE)ERARY Hi& RS EE R {Long position)
(4 #)
China Taiping Insurance Group Ltd. © H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
corporation
REATRBREBEREEQA HA& R EE R (Long position)
(#8)
China Life Franklin Asset Management H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Co., Limited "0
HEASEHRHEEERERAR HA% EREEA {Long position)
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As at 31 December 2022

12022128318
Number
of Shares/
underlying Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share
Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital capital @
B % il
HENRG, BRIRA EREBH
TERRER R85 5 HERGHE BN B
(Share) (%) (%)
(F3)
China Life Asset Management Company ~ H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited"? corporation
FRASEEEERRARM HA Rt B ER (Long position)
(##)
China Life Insurance Company Limited'®  H Shares Beneficial owner 20,519,000 3.29 0.69
REASRBROERAR HAR ERfEA {Long position)
(#8)
Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
corporation
R EEER {Long position)
(##)
China Life Insurance (Group) Company"®  H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
REASRR(EE) Q7" HA& ERfEEA {Long position)
(#2)
Interest in controlled 20,519,000 3.29 0.69
corporation
R EE R {Long position)
(##8)
Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
corporation
RS EEER {Long position)
(4 2)

Notes: Bitat -

(1) The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding (1) AR 202212 831 8B %5 5l &
in a total of 2,343,245,800 Domestic Shares and a total of H 2,343,245800 8 W & & &
624,296,200 H Shares respectively as at 31 December 2022. 624,296,200k HAxHI A #E B D LL A&

(2) The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding in (2) A 2022 F12 A 31 H A& X

a total of 2,967,542,000 Shares as at 31 December 2022.

2,967,542,0008% i {7 B A& B 2 Lo
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Anbang Investment Holdings Co., Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Anbang Group Holdings Co. Limited. Anbang
Group Holdings Co. Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Dajia Life Insurance Co., Ltd., which is wholly-owned by Dajia
Insurance Group Co., Ltd..

China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Chengtong Holdings Group Ltd..

State Grid Yingda International Holdings Group Ltd. is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of State Grid Corporation of China.

Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Three Gorges Corporation.

China Huaneng Group Hong Kong Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Huaneng Group.

China Huadian Hong Kong Company Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Huadian Corporation.

Taiping General Insurance Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of China
Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited. China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited is a subsidiary of China
Taiping Insurance (HK) Company Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Taiping Insurance Group Ltd.

China Life Asset Management Company Limited is a controlling
shareholder of China Life Franklin Asset Management Co.,
Limited. China Life Asset Management Company Limited is a
subsidiary of China Life Insurance Company Limited, which is
controlled by China Life Insurance (Group) Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors were not aware of any
persons who had interests and/or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and which were entered in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or Supervisors or any of their respective
associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire the Shares or debentures of the Company or any
other corporate body, or had exercised any such right.

FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY
RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, there is no financial, business or
family relationship among the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

As at 31 December 2022, the Company maintained effective
Directors’ insurance for the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not enter
into any contract in respect of the management or administration
of the entire or any significant part of the business of the Company
nor any such contract subsisted.
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XXXIl. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted the following
connected transactions:

Non-Exempt Connected Transaction

On 14 January 2022, the Company and China Datang Group
Overseas Investment Co., Ltd. (FEAEEEFIMTEAR
/2 7)) (“Datang Overseas Investment”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Datang, entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, the Company
has agreed to transfer, and Datang Overseas Investment
has agreed to acquire the 10% equity interest in China
Datang Overseas Power Operating Co., Ltd. (FEIAE
B GHNE N iEE AR AF]) held by the Company.

China Datang directly or indirectly held approximately
78.96% equity interest of the Company and is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Datang Overseas Investment
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Datang,
and hence is regarded as a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the Equity Transfer Agreement and
the transaction contemplated thereunder constitute a
connected transaction of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios of the transaction
exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transaction
contemplated thereunder is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements, but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the information with respect to the
connected transaction mentioned above, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 14 January 2022.
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Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transaction of the Group as set out below is
exempt from the requirements of reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Trademark Licensing Agreement

The Company and China Datang renewed a trademark
licensing agreement on 27 July 2018 (the “Trademark
Licensing Agreement”), with effect from 1 January 2019.
Accordingly, China Datang agreed to grant the Group a
non-exclusive license to use any of certain registered
trademarks owned by China Datang for purposes of
the Group's production equipment, products, services
and profile documents, as well as using such licensed
trademarks in the Company's business names, trade names
or domain names. The term of the Trademark Licensing
Agreement is three years, which can be renewed upon
agreement by the parties. The trademark license is granted
by China Datang at nil consideration.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not pay any
royalty fees to China Datang for the use of the licensed
trademarks.

In December 2021, the Company and China Datang
renewed the Trademark Licensing Agreement for a term
of 3 years with effect from 1 January 2022 on substantially
the same terms.

China Datang will remain as the Controlling Shareholder,
and therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules. The transaction above
is entered into on normal commercial terms. The Directors
currently expect that the applicable percentage ratios of
the above transaction for the respective years are nil.
By virtue of Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transaction above is exempt from the
requirements of reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from Circular
and Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

Framework agreement under which China Datang Group
leases properties to the Group

The Company and China Datang entered into a property
leasing framework agreement on 1 December 2015 (the
“Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which China Datang Group will lease certain properties to
the Group. The Property Leasing Framework Agreement
is for a term of 20 years and takes effect upon the Listing
and is subject to renewal.

The rental of any leased property shall be ascertained
through negotiation between the Group and China Datang
Group primarily based on the actual costs of the property
and taking into consideration the market price of similar
properties in the same region where applicable and the
relevant depreciation cost. The rental shall be provided as a
fixed amount in the separate lease agreement to be executed
in writing and between the Group and China Datang Group
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement. If, due
to any change of national policies or market fluctuation that
affects the fairness and reasonableness of the rental of a
leased property under any lease agreement, the Group and
China Datang Group may adjust the rental based on arm’s
length negotiations with reference to the new market price,
and ensure the compliance with relevant requirements of
the Listing Rules (if necessary).

The transactions under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement were negotiated on normal commercial terms.
China Datang remained as the Controlling Shareholder, and
therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement and the transactions
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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As the Company and China Datang will continue to conduct
transactions under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, on 3 December 2021, the Company discussed
with China Datang and determined on the proposed
annual caps of the transactions under such agreement for
2022 to 2024. Given that one or more of the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules) of the transactions calculated with reference to the
relevant proposed annual caps under the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement are more than 0.1% but all are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement and the relevant
proposed annual caps are subject to reporting, annual
review and announcement but exempted from independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the disclosure as set
out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” of
the Prospectus and the announcement of the Company
dated 3 December 2021.

The exempt cap for the year of 2022 for the aforementioned
property rent paid by the Group to China Datang Group and
its associate(s) as approved by the Board was RMB100
million.

The actual total amount of property rent paid by the Group
to China Datang Group and its associate(s) under the
aforesaid agreement in 2022 was RMB33.9 million.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The following transactions are or will be conducted on
normal commercial terms in the daily operations of the
Group. Save as otherwise provided, the Directors currently
expect that, each of the applicable percentage ratios of
relevant transactions calculated for the purpose of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules will exceed 5% on an annual
basis, and the annual transaction amount will exceed
HK$10 million. Accordingly, each of such transactions will
constitute a non-exempt continuing connected transaction
of the Company subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Renewed Integrated Product and Service Framework
Agreement between the Group and China Datang Group

On 3 December 2021, the Company and China Datang
entered into a renewed integrated product and service
framework agreement (the “Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement”) which was approved
at the general meeting of the Company and took effect on
1 January 2022 with a term of three years and can be
extended or renewed for three years as agreed by both
parties. According to the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement, (i) the Group provides
China Datang Group with products and services including
service provision business such as environmental protection
facility concession operation, water treatment operation
and energy management contracting business, product
business such as the denitrification catalyst business, and
engineering business such as environmental protection
facilities engineering business, renewable energy
engineering and other services; and (ii) the products and
services procured by the Group from China Datang Group
include service procurement business such as operational
ancillary business, technology and information service, and
other services and equipment and raw material procurement
business such as supply of water, electricity and steam,
procurement of equipment and raw materials and other
products and services. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2021 and the circular of extraordinary general meeting of
the Company dated 8 December 2021.

The pricing policies of various products and services are
as follows:

(a) Products and services to be provided by the
Group to China Datang Group

In most circumstances where China Datang Group
purchases products and/or services from the
Group, bidding procedures shall be applied for
the determination of prices. Only in exceptional
circumstances, bidding procedures can be skipped
by China Datang Group. These circumstances
primarily include (a) reoccurrence of lack of sufficient
number of bidders attending the bidding procedure;
and (b) urgent purchase by China Datang Group
that does not allow the bidding procedure to be
completed.
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The pricing policy for service provision business
under the concession operations (desulfurization
and denitrification) services:

The tariff for desulfurized and denitrified electricity
under the concession operation services shall be
determined based on government-prescribed price,
which shall be formulated and adjusted by the
National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC (the “NDRC"). Provincial environmental
protection administrative department shall send
written document to the provincial pricing department
to implement environmental electricity tariffs
on the coal-fired generating companies installed
with environmental protection facilities from the
approval date of acceptance check on the facilities.
Benchmarking prices including environmental
electricity process issued by the NDRC are
implemented for the entities with synchronized
constructions of new coal-fired generating units and
environmental protection facilities. The price of by
products shall be determined based on market price
(which is obtained through quotations from public
market and three independent service providers
through bidding process and other negotiated prices
through market mechanism in relation to provision
of similar types of services in similar industries,
having taken into account comparable conditions
including but not limited to the technology and
quality of the services).
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The pricing policy for other service provision
business:

The price of the services other than the concession
operation (desulfurization and denitrification) to be
provided by the Group to China Datang Group in
accordance with the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement shall be
determined based on the bidding results, or if, in
exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
services. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no recent
bidding prices for comparable services can be found
in its database, China Datang Group will make
reference to prices of services of the similar nature
published on official bidding websites operated
by the PRC's government to ascertain the price.
Meanwhile, if no bidding process is conducted, apart
from making reference to prices on official bidding
websites, the Group will also make reference to
the price quotes offered by, or available from,
three third party customers so as to make relevant
comparison with the price quotes offered by China
Datang Group.
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The pricing policy for product business:

In accordance with the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement, the price for
the products, primarily denitrification catalysts, to be
provided by the Group to China Datang Group will
be determined based on the bidding results, or if,
in exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
products. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no
recent bidding prices for comparable products
can be found in its database, China Datang Group
will make reference to prices of products of the
similar nature published on official bidding websites
operated by the PRC’'s government to ascertain
the price. Meanwhile, if no bidding process is
conducted, apart from making reference to prices
on official bidding websites, the Group will also
make reference to the price quotes offered by, or
available from, three third party customers so as
to make relevant comparison with the price quotes
offered by China Datang Group.

The pricing policy for engineering business:

The price for the engineering business will be
determined based on the bidding results, or if, in
exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure is
conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
products. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no
recent bidding prices for comparable products
can be found in its database, China Datang Group
will make reference to prices of products of the
similar nature published on official bidding websites
operated by the PRC’'s government to ascertain
the price. Meanwhile, if no bidding process is
conducted, apart from making reference to prices
on official bidding websites, the Group will also
make reference to the price quotes offered by, or
available from, three third party customers so as
to make relevant comparison with the price quotes
offered by China Datang Group.
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(b) Products and services to be procured by the
Group from China Datang Group

In most circumstances where the Group purchases
products and/or services from China Datang
Group, bidding procedures shall be applied for
determination of the price. Only in exceptional
circumstances, bidding procedures can be skipped
by the Group. These circumstances primarily include
(a) reoccurrence of lack of sufficient number of
bidders attending the bidding procedure; and (b)
urgent purchase by the Group that does not allow
the bidding procedure to be completed.

The pricing policy for service procurement business:

In respect of the ancillary services under the
concession operations of desulfurization and
denitrification, the price shall be determined based
on cost of human resources involved, the relevant
management expenses and the maintenance fees of
the equipment of relevant power plants after taking
into account the average level of the industry. If no
bidding process is conducted, apart from making
reference to prices on official bidding websites, the
Group will also make reference to the price quotes
offered by, or available from, third party customers
so as to make relevant comparison with the price
quotes offered by China Datang Group.

The pricing policy for other service businesses:

In most circumstances where the Group purchases
services from China Datang Group, bidding
procedures shall be applied for the determination
of prices. Only in exceptional circumstances, bidding
procedures can be skipped by the Group where the
purchasing price shall be determined by experts of
the Group based on fair market value and historical

records of procurement price.
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The pricing policy for supply of water, electricity
and steam:

The price for the products, primarily, water,
electricity and steam, supplied by power plants
under China Datang Group to the Group, will be
determined based on the actual costs which reflect
the market price of water and power for the supply
of water and power by power plants to third-party
desulfurization and denitrification concession
operation service providers per the government’s
prescribed requirements.

The pricing policy for procurement of equipment
and raw materials:

In respect of the procurement of equipment and
raw materials, in most circumstances, bidding
procedures shall be applied for determination of
the price. Such price is the bidding price provided
by the bid-winner. China Datang Group will charge
a fee (the “Service Fee") not exceeding 6% of
the purchasing price, which shall be determined on
the basis of the actual scope of services provided
by an independent third party service provider and
the pricing standard of the relevant services and
materials. The Service Fee shall be fairly agreed
between the parties and shall not exceed the fee
charged for similar services provided by China
Datang Group to an independent third party or its
affiliated entities. Only in exceptional circumstances,
such as in case of urgent procurement demand
of the Group, bidding procedures can be skipped
by the Group where the purchasing price shall be
determined by experts of the Group based on fair
market value and historical records of procurement
price.

The transactions under the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement were negotiated on
normal commercial terms. China Datang remained as the
Controlling Shareholder, and therefore a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Therefore, the Renewed Integrated Product and Service
Framework Agreement and the transactions thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The exempt cap for the year of 2022 for products and
services provided by the Group to China Datang Group
as approved by the Stock Exchange and independent
Shareholders was RMB8,093 million.
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The actual total amount of products and services provided
by the Group to China Datang Group under the aforesaid
agreement in 2022 was RMB4,837.6 million.

The exempt cap for the year of 2022 products and services
procured by the Group from China Datang Group as approved
by the independent Shareholders was RMB2,491 million.
The actual total amount of products and services procured
by the Group from China Datang Group under the aforesaid
agreement in 2022 was RMB1,874.3 million.

Renewed of Financial Services Agreement between the
Group and Datang Finance

On 3 December 2021, the Company and Datang Finance
entered into a renewed financial services agreement (the
"Renewed Financial Services Agreement”) for a term from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, pursuant to which
Datang Finance has agreed to provide the Group with loan
services, the deposit services (the “Deposit Services"”) and
financial and financing consultation and training services,
transfer and settlement services, insurance agency
services, entrustment loan and entrustment investment
services, note financing services, guarantee services and
underwriting services for the issuance of corporate bonds
to the Group (except for the loan services and the Deposit
Services, together the “Other Financial Services”) subject
to the terms and conditions provided therein. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 3 December 2021 and the circular of extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 8 December 2021.

Datang Finance has undertaken to provide the
aforementioned financial services to the Group based on
the following pricing principles:

(1) Loan services — Datang Finance, based on the
interest rate quotation of the loan market and taking
into comprehensive considerations of the factors
such as the terms, classifications and industrial
policies, determines the pricing. Under the same
condition, the loan interest rate shall not be higher
than the applicable interest rate for the same type
of loan service provided by state-owned banks to
the Group;
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(2) Deposit Services — Under the same condition, the
deposit interest rate provided by Datang Finance to
the Group shall not be lower than the interest rate
for the same type of deposit placed in state-owned
banks by the Group; and

(3) Other Financial Services — Datang Finance provides
other financial services to the Group at the rates
which shall not be higher than those charged by
other financial institutions in the PRC for the same
or similar financial services.

The loan services to be provided by Datang Finance to
the Group constitutes financial assistance provided by a
connected person for the benefit of the Group. As such
services are on normal commercial terms which are similar
to or more favourable than those offered by independent
third parties for comparable services in the PRC, and no
security over the assets of the Group will be granted
in respect of the loan services, the loan services are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules.

As each of the percentage ratio(s) applicable to the
Deposit Services is more than 5%, the Deposit Services
are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement,
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further, given
that one or more of the relevant percentage ratio(s) of
the Deposit Services is more than 100%, the Deposit
Services constitute a major transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

In respect of the Other Financial Services to be provided
by Datang Finance to the Group, each of the percentage
ratio(s) is below the de minimis threshold set out in Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules, therefore the provision of
Other Financial Services by Datang Finance to the Group is
exempt from the reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements of the Listing Rules.

The proposed caps of the deposit services for the Group's
maximum daily deposit balance (including any interest
accrued therefrom) in Datang Finance for the year 2022 was
RMB4,000 million after being approved by the independent
Shareholders. For the year of 2022, the Group's actual
maximum daily deposit balance (including any interest
accrued therefrom) in Datang Finance according to the
aforesaid agreement was RMB1,304.3 million.
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Financial Services Framework Agreement between the
Group and Datang Capital

On 3 December 2021, the Company and Datang Capital
entered into a financial services framework agreement (the
“Financial Services Framework Agreement”). According
to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, Datang
Capital agreed to provide the Company with commercial
factoring service, financial leasing, entrusted loan service,
asset securitization service, sales and leaseback service,
operating lease, brokerage and consultation service in
relation to transfer of property rights and assets and
bespoke financial service solution. Such agreement shall be
effective from 1 January 2022 and expiring on 31 December
2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 3 December 2021 and the circular of
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated
8 December 2021.

Datang Capital has undertaken to provide the commercial
factoring service, financial leasing, and entrusted loan
service to the Group based on the following pricing
principles:

(1) Commercial factoring service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The comprehensive interest rate relating to the
commercial factoring service provided by Datang
Capital to the Group shall be based on fair and
reasonable market pricing and normal commercial
terms. In particular, the rate shall not be higher
than the interest rate level provided via email by
independent third parties to the Group for the same
type of service during the same period or the interest
rate of the same type of service provided by Datang
Capital to third parties with same credit rating.

(2) Financial leasing service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The rent paid by the Group to Datang Capital includes
(i) procurement costs; and (ii) interests. The relevant
interests are determined based on the benchmark
interest rates for loan as implemented by the PBOC.
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Entrusted loan service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The entrusted loan interest paid by the Group to
Datang Capital includes (i) procurement costs; and
(i) interests. The relevant interests are determined
based on the benchmark interest rates for loan as
implemented by the PBOC.

China Datang is the Controlling Shareholder while
Datang Capital is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Datang. Datang Capital is therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the Financial Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Given that one or more of the relevant percentage
ratio(s) of the transactions (including financial leasing
service and commercial factoring service) calculated
with reference to the relevant proposed annual caps
under the Financial Services Framework Agreement
are more than 5%, the Financial Services Framework
Agreement, the transactions thereunder and the
proposed annual caps thereunder are subject to
the reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Further, given that one
or more of the relevant percentage ratio(s) of the
transactions (including commercial factoring service,
financial leasing service and entrusted loan service)
calculated with reference to the relevant proposed
annual caps under the Financial Services Framework
Agreement exceed 25% but less than 100%, the
Financial Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions thereunder constitute a major
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.
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In respect of the asset securitization service, sales
and leaseback service, operating lease, brokerage
and consultation service in relation to transfer of
property rights and assets and financial service
solution (the “Other FSFA Financial Services"”),
each of the percentage ratio(s) is below the de
minimis threshold set out in Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, therefore the provision of the Other FSFA
Financial Services by Datang Capital to the Group
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
of the Listing Rules.

4. Confirmation by Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
each of the above mentioned continuing connected
transactions conducted in the year of 2022 and confirmed
that:

(1) the transactions stated in the section headed
“"Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction” in
this annual report have been generated during the
Group's ordinary and usual course of business on
normal commercial terms (or more favorable than
normal commercial terms available for the Group),
and the terms governing the transactions under
the agreement are fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as
a whole; and

(2) the transactions and proposed annual caps stated
in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report have
been generated during the Group's ordinary and
usual course of business on normal commercial
terms (or more favorable than normal commercial
terms available for the Group), and the terms
governing the transactions under the agreement
are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
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Auditor’s Letter

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company, Moore Stephens
CPA Limited, to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on
its work, Moore Stephens CPA Limited has provided the
Board with a letter confirming that, with respect to the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions conducted in
the year of 2022:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual cap of each of the above disclosed
continuing connected transactions set by the
Company.
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6. Related Party Transactions

Please refer to Note 36 to the financial statements in this
annual report for details of the significant related party
transactions prepared in accordance with the IFRSs. For
the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the above
section headed “Connected Transactions” in this report of
Directors. Except for those disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors, the
other related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36
are not considered as connected transactions, or are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

XXXll. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION

AGREEMENT

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement with
China Datang on 1 December 2015 (the “Non-Competition
Agreement”). Under the Non-Competition Agreement, China
Datang irrevocably undertook that, other than the Retained Business
(as defined in the Prospectus), China Datang and its subsidiaries
(excluding the Group and listed entities under China Datang and
their respective subsidiaries) did not, during the term of the Non-
Competition Agreement, and would procure their close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, individually or jointly, with
other entities, or assist to engage in or participate in any business
which competes with Our Principal Business (as defined in the
Prospectus). Furthermore, China Datang undertook to grant an
option to the Company to acquire new business opportunities that
may compete, directly or indirectly, with Our Principal Business,
an option to acquire and a right of first refusal with regard to the
Retained Business and/or the New Competing Business in the
future (as defined in the Prospectus).

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
reviewing and determining whether to accept such new business
opportunity provided by China Datang or its associates by taking
into consideration factors such as geography and compatibility of
business nature of such new business opportunity to the Group's
strategy and prospect.

During the Reporting Period, there was no new business opportunity
provided by China Datang or its associate(s) in accordance with
the Non-Competition Agreement.
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The Company has received the confirmation letter from China
Datang, which confirmed that, in 2022, China Datang was in
compliance with all undertakings and provisions under the Non-
Competition Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the Non-Competition Agreement and confirmed
that China Datang has been in full compliance with the Non-
Competition Agreement and there was no breach by China Datang.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
SCHEME

Details of the Company's retirement and employees benefit
scheme are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

As a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Save as disclosed in this annual report, for
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Please
refer to the corporate governance report as set out on pages 74-
109 of this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far
as the Directors are aware, 21.04% of the issued share capital of
the Company was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable
Date, which was in compliance with the requirements and public
float waiver approved by the Stock Exchange under the Listing
Rules. For details of the public float waiver, please refer to the
section headed “Waivers from Strict Compliance with the Listing
Rules” in the Prospectus.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements of this
annual report, as at 31 December 2022, the Group was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration. So far as the Directors are
aware, no such litigation or claims are pending or threatened
against the Group.
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XXxvil. AUDIT COMMITTEE

XXXIX.

XL.

XLI.

The Group’s 2022 annual results and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared in
accordance with the IFRSs have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDITORS

On 30 June 2022, Moore Stephens CPA Limited and Da Hua CPAs
(Special General Partnership) were appointed as the international
and domestic auditors of the Company, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2022 at the general meeting of the
Company, with a term of one year. Moore Stephens CPA Limited
and Da Hua CPAs (Special General Partnership) have audited the
consolidated financial statements set out in this report, which
have been prepared in accordance with the IFRSs and PRC GAAP,
respectively.

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Ministry of Finance of
the People’s Republic of China and the SASAC, the service terms
of Ernst & Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP expired at the
conclusion of the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company (30
June 2022). The appointments of Moore Stephens CPA Limited
and Da Hua CPAs (Special General Partnership) as the international
and domestic auditors of the Company was approved at the 2021
annual general meeting of the Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2022 is set out on
pages 5-6 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the disclosure in Note 2 to the financial statements
of this annual report, there were no other changes in accounting
policies of the Company during the Reporting Period. Details of
the accounting policies are set out in Notes 3 and 4 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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XLIl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

XLII.

XLIV.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
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Btz EXKEH
Save as the above and as disclosed in the section headed M2022F R EXERAEESHE( 7
“Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors, none of the BERG|—HHPETEIN - NARISEE
Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into material contracts fA] — SR B 88 2 BT A AN 428 AR A% 3R 3l EL AT 1]
with the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries other —RBRAEBZINIMBRRRITERE
than the Group, nor was there any material contract between the B BASBY A FAEERRRESE
Group and the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries A —RBRAEB 2 SN B A 72 FiR

other than the Group in relation to provision of services in 2022. HRETMERER -

B RRSIAN

No equity-linked agreement was entered by the Company for the HZE2022F12A31BIEFE - ARQFF
year ended 31 December 2022.
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENT BtE . EXRAEER

As of the date of the report of Directors, the Group had no BHEAZEESREHY  A&EEEFE
significant events after the Reporting Period that needs to be WENERNREAREIER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always been committed to improving corporate
governance since its establishment. According to provisions of the
Code, it has established a modern corporate governance structure
comprising a number of independently operated bodies including
the general meetings, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and
the Senior Management in order to provide an effective check
and balance. The Company has also adopted the Code as its own
corporate governance practices.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company was not involved
in any material litigation liable by any Director. Each Director has
the necessary qualification and experience required for performing
his duty. The Company has purchased liability insurance for the
Directors.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company had been in
compliance with the principles and code provisions contained in
Part 2 of the Code. Corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are outlined as follows:

BOARD

The Board carries out its duties and exercises its powers in
accordance with the Articles of Association and in the best
interest of the Company and its Shareholders. It reports and is
held accountable to the general meetings, and implements the
resolutions thereof.

1. Composition of the Board

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board consisted of
nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors (including one employee representative
Director) and three independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out on pages 115-123 of this
annual report. There are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
between members of the Board. The structure of the
Board is well balanced, with each Director equipped with
profound knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the Company’s business operation and development.
All Directors are well aware of their joint and individual
responsibilities toward the Shareholders.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board had always
been abiding by the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and that independent non-executive
Directors shall represent at least one-third of the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Independence
Assessment Mechanism of the Board

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant
role in the Board as they bring an impartial view on the
Group's strategies, performance and control, as well as
ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are considered.
Allindependent non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic, professional qualifications or related financial
management experience. None of the independent non-
executive Directors held any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of
the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible
for maintaining high standards of supervision of the
Company, balancing the powers of the Board and exercising
effective and independent judgement on company actions
and operations. The Company has developed a mechanism
to ensure that independent views and opinions are available
to the Board. All independent non-executive Directors have
devoted sufficient time to attend all the Board meetings
and all the Board Committee meetings which he/she is a
member and have shared their views and opinions through
the meetings. Chairman of the Board also had a private
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors to listen the independent
views on issues concerning the Group during the
Reporting Period. Upon reasonable request, independent
professional advice would be provided to the independent
nonexecutive Directors to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company. The Board has confirmed that the
implementation and effectiveness of the independent non-
executive Directors in providing independent opinions and
advice to the Board for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the
independent non-executive Directors are made available to
the Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board are
committed to assess the Directors’ independence annually
with regards to all relevant factors related to the independent
non-executive Directors including the following:
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o required character, integrity, expertise, experience
and stability to fulfill their roles;

o time commitment and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

o firm commitment to their independent roles and to
the Board;

° declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;

o no involvement in the daily management of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement; and

o the Chairman meets with the independent non-

executive Directors regularly without the presence
of the executive Directors.

The qualifications of the three independent non-executive
Directors are in full compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A and 19A.18(1) of the
Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has received
annual confirmations dispatched by each independent
non-executive Director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules as to their respective independence.
Therefore, the Company is of the view that each
independent non-executive Director is independent as
provided in the Listing Rules.
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Current members of the Board are listed in the following

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTIN

UED)

rEERRE(E)

ERRAEKEIRNOT :

table:

Name Position Date of appointment

HE Btz EEZMEHES

ZHU Liming Chairman of the Board December 2022

SRR EER 2022124
Executive Director December 2022
HITES 20224128

SHEN Zhen Executive Director June 2022

2f HITES 202246 A
General manager May 2022
RS 202245 A

WANG Jungi Non-executive Director September 2021

F &R HEMITES 20215 9H

WU Daging Non-executive Director September 2021

RRE HEMITES 20215 9H

CHEN Kan Non-executive Director September 2021

BRAT HEMITES 20215 9H

SONG Yunpeng Non-executive Director September 2021

(Employee representative Director)
REMS FEMITES 2021494
(BIRKES)

YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director June 2015

9 BUIFHITES 201556 A

MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director June 2015

EER BUIHITES 201556 A

GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director April 2016

BRI BUIFHITES 201654 A
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2. Board Meetings

According to the Articles of Association, the Board is
required to hold Board meetings at least 4 times each
year to be convened by the chairman of the Board. Notices
of regular Board meetings shall be dispatched at least 14
days in advance. A quorum for the Board meeting can be
formed by half or more than half of the Directors attending
the meeting. Directors may attend the Board meeting in
person or appoint other Directors as his proxy pursuant to
certain requirements. Except for the circumstance provided
in the Articles of Association where the Board considers
connected transactions, resolutions of the Board shall
be passed by more than half of all the Directors. The
secretary of the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping minutes of Board meetings and making sure that
such minutes are available for reference by any Director.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held nine meetings,
details of which are set out as follows:

o The 5th meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 28 February 2022, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the formulation of the Implementation
Plan for Performing the Functions and Powers of the
Board of Directors of Datang Environment Industry
Group Co., Ltd.; and (2) the development plan during
the “14th Five Year Period"” of Datang Environment
Industry Group Co., Ltd. were considered and
approved.

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

EFEe

ﬁlhli

BREARERNRTE  EELH
FELAMANASHE  EE5CQ
ZHEEREE - THEZS S
FEEARANZED14REHBE
M- -BESGRAA-DZ K
N EMEEHFERT - EFAMN
HE2NMESFTE  AREET
REZAEMESRALFEES
T -RBRARERRATEZTCER
HERSHERIN EEERE
ERBBYHSEERAR BT
MEABRENREEES SR
i WHEREREHEHES

R -

BEHA  EFTGHBITARE
& ABRERET

. 2022%2 A28 ARITE=
EEEeFhNEE &
& R Bt (1) B R B EC R
ERREXEERRMNER
REEEEESHEER
FEMZEER: RQBR
AERREXEBRNE
BRAR WA |IZERRE

SET R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

The 6th meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 31 March 2022, at which, resolutions
regarding, among others, (1) work report on the
Board of the Company for 2021; (2) work report on
the general manager of the Company for 2021; (3)
the independent auditor’s report, audited financial
statements, results announcement and the annual
report for 2021 of the Company; (4) report on the
final financial accounts for 2021 of the Company; (5)
financial budget report of the Company for 2022; (6)
the profit distribution plan for 2021 and the proposed
distribution of 2021 final dividend of the Company;
(7) the re-appointments of the international and
domestic auditors of the Company for 2022; (8)
report on remuneration of Directors of the Company
for 2021; (9) report on remuneration of management
of the Company for 2021; (10) the investment plan
of the Company for 2022; (11) the financing plan of
the Company for 2022; (12) the bank comprehensive
credit of the Company for 2022; (13) the report on
the use of raised fund of the Company; (14) the
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company; and (15) the convening of the annual
general meeting of the Company for 2021 were
considered and approved.

The 7th meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 27 May 2022, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the issuance of the ESG Report
of the Company for 2021; (2) the appointment
of the general manager of the Company; (3)
the nomination of candidates for Directors of
the Company; (4) the change of Joint Company
Secretary and authorized representative; (5) the
formulation of three management systems including
the Administrative Measures for Performance
Assessment of Management Members of the
Company; (6) the formulation of the Administrative
Measures for Controlling Asset-liability Ratio and
Liabilities; and (7) the authorization and decision of
matters related to the investment in construction of
distributed photovoltaic power generation projects
were considered and approved.
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The 8th meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 15 June 2022, at which, the resolution
regarding the change of international and domestic
auditors of the Company for 2022 was considered
and approved.

The 9th meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 30 June 2022, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the re-designation of Directors and the
authorization of the general manager to perform
the duties of the chairman of the Board; (2) the
amendments to the Rules of Procedure of the
Strategy and Investment Committee of the Board;
(3) the adjustment to the members of special
committees under the Board of the Company;
(4) the 2021 performance appraisal results and
salary distribution plan of management members
of the Company; and (5) the index system for
2022 business performance responsibility letter
of management members of the Company were
considered and approved.

The 10th meeting of the third session of the
Board was held on 31 August 2022, at which,
resolutions regarding (1) the 2022 interim financial
statements, results announcement and interim
report of the Company; (2) the formulation of the
Investor Relations Management System of Datang
Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.; (3) the
amendments to the “Three Importance and One
Greatness” and the list of important decisions; and
(4) the investment in construction of honeycomb
catalyst manufacturing and disposal regeneration
project and establishment of Datang (Jiangsu)
Environmental Protection Equipment Co., Ltd.

The 11th meeting of the third session of the
Board was held on 10 October 2022, at which,
the resolution regarding the formulation of the
Administrative Measures to Report Information to
External Directors of Datang Environment Industry
Group Co., Ltd. was considered and approved.

The 12th meeting of the third session of the
Board was held on 18 November 2022, at which,
resolutions regarding (1) the nomination of
candidates for Directors of the Company; and (2) the
convening of the first extraordinary general meeting
of the Company for 2022 were considered and
approved.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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The 13th meeting of the third session of the Board . 2022F 12 ASHB1TE =
was held on 8 December 2022, at which, resolutions BEEEE+T=—REH -
regarding (1) the election of the chairman of the B MAEMNBRNEERD
Board of the Company; (2) the adjustment to the RIEFERMER  QBR
members of special committees under the Board of FEAREZSEMEE
the Company; (3) the appointment of the authorized FAEBREE  QBERNE
representative of the Company; and (4) the work EARBRERRAZE

proposal on internal control evaluation of the
Company for 2022 were considered and approved.

R (4R A FE2022F &

M ERFEHIRTE TIE D &M

]
Attendance/Number
Name Position of meetings held
HE s HESEBTRE
ZHU Liming Chairman of the Board and executive Director 1Al
RAEA BEEREWTES
SHEN Zhen Executive Director and general manager 5/5
FR PITES LR
WANG Jungi Executive Director 9/9
FlERS WITES
WU Daging Non-executive Director 9/9
RKRE EMITES
CHEN Kan Non-executive Director 9/9
BRA EMITES
SONG Yunpeng Non-executive Director (employee representative Director) 9/9
REME HFHTES(MIREKESE)
YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director 9/9
2! B IEMITES
MAO Zhuanjian  Independent non-executive Director 9/9
EHR BUIEHITES
GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director 9/9
SEX: B IEHMITES
WANG Yanwen " Former chairman of the Board and non-executive Director 5/8
FEXD AEEREIENITES
TIAN Dan @ Former non-executive Director and general manager 2/4
B RIFEMITE S R AL IE
Notes: Mt -
(1) Mr. WANG Yanwen did not attend three of the (1) FEXEERDT
meetings as he was on a business trip. HERSBMEF=
REF °
(2) Mr. TIAN Dan did not attend two meetings as (2) AAEEERAKD
he was on a business trip. ERZ2NMMARE
T FEFERE

AERREXEERHERAR

81



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

3%

BIaEmE (&)
3. Powers and Responsibilities of the Board

and the Management

The powers and responsibilities of the Board and the
management of the Company are specified in the Articles of
Association, providing a sufficient balanced and restrained
mechanism for corporate governance and internal controls.

The Board shall be responsible for and shall have general
power to manage and develop the Company’s business.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the functions and
duties of the Board include, among other things, convening
general meetings and reporting the Board’s work to the
general meetings, implementing the resolutions of the
general meetings, determining business plans, investment
plans, detailed annual business objectives of the Company
and financing plans other than by ways of issue of corporate
debentures or other securities and of listing, formulating
annual budget, final accounts, profit distribution plan
and plan for recovery of losses, proposals for increase
or reductions of the Company's registered capital and
the issue of corporate debentures or other securities and
listing.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s corporate
governance. The Company has formulated its corporate
governance policy pursuant to the requirements of
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board performed its duties according
to the corporate governance policy of the Company. In
2022, the Board mainly reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policy and practices, reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management, reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policy and practices in respect of compliance
with laws and regulatory regulations, developed, reviewed
and monitored the code of conduct and compliance manual
for employees and Directors, and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Code and the disclosures made in the
Corporate Governance Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Joint
Company Secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making a request to the Board.
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The management of the Company, led by the general
manager of the Company, is responsible for implementing
all the resolutions issued by the Board and organising
management of the Company's day-to-day operation.

Chairman and the General Manager

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the general
manager of the Company (i. e. chief executive officer under
the terms of the Listing Rules) of the Company are held
by different persons in order to ensure independence,
accountability of their respective functions and balanced
distribution of power and authority between them.

During the period from January 2022 to June 2022, Mr.
Wang Yanwen served as the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Wang Yanwen ceased to be the chairman of the Board since
June 2022, and Mr. Shen Zhen, the then general manager
of the Company, performed the duties of the chairman of
the Board during the period from June 2022 to December
2022. Mr. Zhu Liming served as the chairman of the Board
since December 2022.

During the period from January 2022 to May 2022, Mr. Tian
Dan served as the general manager of the Company. Mr.
Tian Dan ceased to be the general manager of the Company
since May 2022, and Mr. Shen Zhen replaced him to be
the general manager.

During the period when Mr. Shen Zhen, the general manager
of the Company, performed the duties of the chairman of the
Board, notwithstanding the deviation from code provision
C.2.1, the supervision of the Board (then comprising
one executive Director, five non-executive Directors
(including one employee representative Director) and three
independent non-executive Directors) was sufficient to
ensure a proper structure of checks and balances of power
and to provide sufficient checks to protect the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. In addition, since
December 2022, Mr. Zhu Liming served as the chairman of
the Board, and Mr. Shen Zhen as the general manager of the
Company. Accordingly, the Company currently has been in
compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1.
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The chairman of the Board, who led the Board, decided on
the Company’s overall development strategies, ensured the
effective operation of the Board, performed his bounden
duties, and brought all important matters to discussion in
a timely manner, ensuring that the Company had in place
good corporate governance practices and procedures and
that the Board acted in the best interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. He resigned in and with
effect from December 2022. The general manager of the
Company was mainly responsible for the overall business
operation and management of the Company.

Appointment, Removal and Re-election of
Directors

As provided in the Articles of Association, Directors are
elected by general meetings for a term of three years
and are eligible for re-election and re-appointment. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
regarding the appointment of new Directors in the Articles
of Association. The nomination of new Directors is firstly
discussed by the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) which then submits its
recommendation to the Board, and is subject to approval
via the election in general meeting.

The Company has entered into service contracts with all
its Directors (including non-executive Directors) for a term
commencing from the date of appointment to the date of
the next general meeting for the re-election of Directors
and subject to termination in accordance with the terms
under respective service contracts.
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Board Diversity
Board Perspective

The Company believes that the increasing diversity at the
Board level is one of essential elements in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Therefore, the Company formulated board
diversity policy in October 2016 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). While determining the composition of the Board,
the Company shall consider the diversity of the Board
from various perspectives, including, without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision of the Board will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will
report the composition of the Board at the diversity level in
the annual report each year, and monitor the implementation
of this policy. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

The existing Directors, who are different from each
other in background, can deliver corporate governance
on a supplement basis and promise a relatively complete
corporate governance system. The Board's nomination
policy is still being refined and we will select qualified
candidates who meet those needs in line with our growing
business requirements to support our Company's future
development.

As a single gender board will not be considered to have
achieved diversity from 1 January 2022, we will review
the structure and composition of the Board, and appoint a
Director of a different gender on or before 31 December
2024. The Company recognizes that, as the majority of the
Directors are male, the gender diversity of the Board needs
to be improved, and the Board expects to increase the
proportion of its female members, with the ultimate goal of
achieving gender parity in the coming years. The Board will
continue to search for potential successors to the Board to
achieve gender diversity by screening and nominating such
candidates through the Nomination Committee.
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Employee Perspective

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's total number of
employees is 1,008, of which 739 employees are male,
accounted for approximately 73.31%, and 269 employees
are female, accounted for approximately 26.69%. Most
of the in-service employees were men as most of the
candidates were men subject to the industry nature of the
Company. However, the Company aims to refrain from any
form of harassment and discrimination with respect to age,
gender, race, nationality, religion, marital status or disability
in the workplace via implementation of human resources
management policy and ensure that every employee is
treated equally and fairly. We also ensure that we will
promote gender diversity in middle and senior employees’
recruitment and provide them with more appropriate on-
the-job training, so as to provide a pipeline for female
management and have potential successors to the Board
in the near future.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of Directors is reviewed by the remuneration
and evaluation committee of the Company (the
"Remuneration and Evaluation Committee”) and the
Board in accordance with criteria such as qualification,
working experience, working performance, positions and
market conditions, and determined by the general meeting
based on criteria such as qualification, working experience,
working performance, positions and market conditions.
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8. Training for Directors and Joint Company
Secretaries

(1)

Training for Directors

All Directors always attend to the Directors’ duties
and personal integrity, and the business activities
and developments of the Company. In 2022, the
Directors had been updated on a monthly basis
with information relating to the performance,
state of affairs and prospects of the Company. In
addition, the Company provided Directors with the
latest developments in the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory regulations, to make sure the
Directors were able to keep making contribution to
the Board with extensive information and appropriate
expertise.

Compliance training for Hong Kong listed company
was provided by Zhong Lun Law Firm LLP, the legal
advisor of the Company as to Hong Kong laws, to
Directors and management of the Company during
the Reporting Period (the “Compliance Training”).

In 2022, all Directors attended the continuous
professional development programme, developed
and refreshed their knowledge and skills to ensure
that they continue contributing to the Board with
complete information and expertise as needed.
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(2)

2022 Annual Report

Trainings received by all Directors during the year

2022 are as follows:

BER2022F EETNE
SEE T ¢

Name Position Training topics
®A Bz ISR

ZHU Liming Chairman of the Board and executive Director Compliance Training
SRFIER EEREMTES &R

SHEN Zhen Executive Director and general manager Compliance Training
FAEE HITES RAaKE SR

WANG Junqi Non-executive Director Compliance Training
Fl&R EHITES SR

WU Daging Non-executive Director Compliance Training
RRE EWITES SR

CHEN Kan Non-executive Director Compliance Training
BRAT EWITES AR

SONG Yunpeng

Non-executive Director
(Employee representative Director)

REMS FEMITEF
(BIRKESF)

YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director
33 BUIFHITES

MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director
EEE BUIFHTES

GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director
BRI BUIEHTES

Compliance Training

BREl

Compliance Training
SRl
Compliance Training
SRl
Compliance Training
SRl

Training for Joint Company Secretaries

The Company appointed Mr. LIANG Xiuguang as
the Joint Company Secretary in November 2020.
In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. LIANG Xiuguang, the Joint Company Secretary,
had undertaken relevant professional trainings of not
less than 15 hours for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Ms. WONG Sau Ping, another Joint Company
Secretary resigned in May 2022, the Company
appointed Mr. LEUNG Chi Kit (manager of the listing
services department of TMF Hong Kong Limited)
as the Joint Company Secretary in place of Ms.
WONG Sau Ping since May 2022. In compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. LEUNG Chi
Kit had undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
profession training for the year ended 31 December
2022. His primary internal contact in the Company
is Mr. LIANG Xiuguang.
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Directors’ Liability Insurance and the
Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company has always been in strict compliance with
the principles and requirements of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2022, the Company was not involved in
any material litigation liable by any Director. Each Director
has the necessary qualification and experience required for
performing his duty. The Company has purchased liability
insurance for Directors.

The permitted indemnity provisions of the Company are
set out in article 162 of the Articles of Association. The
Directors, Supervisors, general manager of the Company
and other Senior Management may be relieved of liability
for specific breaches of his duty with the informed consent
of Shareholders given at an annual general meeting
except for certain circumstances set out under article 59
of the Articles of Association. Such permitted indemnity
provisions are currently in force at the time of approval of
this annual report.

PROFESSIONAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE
BOARD

There are four professional committees under the Board, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee and strategy and investment committee the
("Strategy and Investment Committee”).

1.

Audit Committee

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee
consisted of three Directors, including two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. GAO Jiaxiang and Mr. YE
Xiang, and one non-executive Director, Mr. CHEN Kan.
Mr. GAO Jiaxiang currently serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, the following:

° To examine the accounting policies and practices
regarding the preparation of financial statements of
the Company;

° To monitor the preparation process of periodic
financial reports and examine the periodic financial
reports, financial results and relevant information
disclosed in other announcements;
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2022 Annual Report

To evaluate the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control framework, to consult with the
management level regarding the scope and quality
of the internal control system, and to ensure that
the management has performed their duties for
ensuring the internal control system being effective,
including whether the following are sufficient: the
resources required, qualifications and experiences
of such accounting and financial reporting staff,
and the training program and budget to relevant
employees;

To examine the internal investigation results and
responses from the management with respect to any
and all suspected dishonest acts, non-compliance
incidents, absence of internal control or suspected
violation of laws, regulations and rules;

To inspect and monitor the scope, effectiveness
and results of the functions of internal examination
and verification, to ensure the mutual coordination
between the internal and the external auditor(s), and
to ensure that the functions of internal examination
and verification can be provided with sufficient
resources and are in the appropriate position within
the Group;

To investigate the financial and accounting policies
and practices of the Group;

To consult with the external auditor(s) for examining
and verifying any recommendations arising from
audit works; to review such management proposal
regarding the status of examination and verification
whereas such proposal was proposed by auditor(s)
to the management; to check any material questions
regarding the accounting record, financial account
or control system put forward to the management
by the accounting firm, the feedback of the
management or other correspondence documents;
and to ensure effective communication between the
independent accountants and the management;

To ensure that the Board can timely respond to
the issues to be put forward in the management
proposal prepared by the external auditor(s);
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To understand the internal control and related
process implemented by the management and
guarantee that such financial reports and statements
obtained from the existing financial system are
in compliance with the relevant standards and
requirements and are examined, verified and
approved by the management;

To check and examine the following arrangements
made by the Company: the employees of the
Company may secretly raise concerns in relation
to possible occurrence of inappropriate actions
in respect of financial reporting, internal control
or other aspects; to ensure that appropriate
arrangements will be made to conduct fair and
independent investigation and appropriate action
will be adopted regarding such matters; and

To report to the Board regarding the matters
concerning the provisions of the Code.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held HREHA - B EEEH£BH=
Sy

three meetings, details of which are set out as follows: REE - BRAFERINGT :

The third meeting of the third session of the Audit
Committee was held on 31 March 2022, at which
resolutions, among others, (1) Resolution regarding
the Independent Auditor’s Report and the Audited
Financial Statements, Results Announcement and
Annual Report for 2021; (2) Final Financial Accounts
of the Company for 2021; (3) Financial Budget
Report of the Company for 2022; (4) Resolution
regarding the Profit Distribution Plan for 2021 and
the Proposed Distribution of Final Dividend of the
Company for 2021; (5) Resolution regarding the
Re-appointments of the International and Domestic
Auditors of the Company for 2022; (6) Resolution
on the Connected Transactions of the Company
in 2021; (7) Evaluation Report on the Risk and
Internal Control of the Company in 2021; and (8)
2021 Corporate Governance Report of the Company
were considered and approved.

The fourth meeting of the third session of the Audit
Committee was held on 15 June 2022, at which
the resolution on the change of international and
domestic auditors of the Company for 2022 was
considered and approved.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three Directors, including two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. GAO Jiaxiang and Mr. MAO
Zhuanjian, and one executive Director, Mr. ZHU Liming
(appointed in December 2022). Mr. ZHU Liming currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
WANG Yanwen resigned as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in June 2022, and Mr. Shen Zhen performed
the duties of the chairman of the Nomination Committee
during the period from June 2022 to December 2022.

(1) The main duties of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things, the following:

o To put forward a proposal regarding the
structure of the Board, its scale and
constitution (including technique, knowledge
and experience) to the Board based on the
Company's operational activities, asset scale
and equity structure;

o To study the standards and procedures
for the selection of Directors and Senior
Management, and to put forward relevant
proposals to the Board;

2022 Annual Report
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° To extensively identify candidates qualified
for Directors and Senior Management;

o To investigate the candidates for Directors
and the candidates for Senior Management
and submit relevant proposals;

° Toreview and make recommendations on the
appointment of other Senior Management
that needs to be brought to the attention
of the Board;

o To evaluate the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and

o To submit proposals regarding the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
and the succession plan of Directors (and
in particular the chairman and the chief
executive) to the Board.

The process of the Nomination Committee to select
Directors and Senior Management is as follows:

° The Nomination Committee shall
communicate with relevant departments
of the Company and study the demand for
new Directors and Senior Management and
present such information in writing;

° The Nomination Committee may extensively
seek for candidates for Directors and
Senior Management within the Company,
its holding (associate) enterprises and the
human resources market;

° The Nomination Committee shall gather
information as to the occupation, academic
qualifications, title of the position, detailed
work experience and all the concurrent
positions of the candidates and present such
information in writing;

° The nominee shall not be deemed as the
candidate for Director or Senior Management
unless his/her consent for nomination is
obtained by the Nomination Committee;
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° The Nomination Committee shall convene
a meeting to review the qualifications of
the candidates in accordance with the
requirements for Directors and Senior
Management;

° The Nomination Committee shall make
suggestion to the Board regarding the
candidates for the Director and Senior
Management position and submit relevant
information to the Board ten days prior to the
election of new Directors and appointment
of new Senior Management; and

o The Nomination Committee shall carry
out other follow-up work according to the
decision of and feedback from the Board.

(3) Nomination policy:

The terms of paragraphs (1) and (2) above are the
main standards and principles to be considered
in the nomination of Directors and constitute the
nomination policy of the Company. During the
Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
three meetings, details of which are set out as
follows:

° The first meeting of the third session of
the Nomination Committee was held on 31
March 2022, at which (1) the Resolution
on the Composition of the Board and the
Implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
of the Company for 2021; (2) the Resolution
on the Independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company;
and (3) the Resolution on the Amendment to
Board Diversity Policy of the Company were
considered and approved.

o The second meeting of the third session
of the Nomination Committee was held on
27 May 2022 at which the Resolution on
the Nomination of Candidates for General
Manager of the Company was considered
and approved.

2022 Annual Report
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° The third meeting of the third session of
the Nomination Committee was held on 18
November 2022, at which the Resolution on
the Nomination of Candidates for Directors of
the Company was considered and approved.

The record of attendance is set out as follows:
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Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance

RE HEREEHERE

Wang Yanwen (Former chairman of the Nomination Committee)™ 2/3

FEX(ARREEGER)

Zhu Liming (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 0/0

KAAREZREEEERF)

Gao Jiaxiang 3/3

SERX

Mao Zhuanjian 3/3

FEE

Note: izt -

(1) Mr. Wang Yanwen did not attend one of the (1) ITEXRERTIE
meeting due to work adjustment. HERZMEH—

KRB °

The Board Diversity Policy is set out in the section
headed “Board Diversity” under the corporate
governance report on page 85 of this annual report.
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3. Remuneration and Evaluation Committee 3.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee consisted of three Directors, including
two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ye Xiang and
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian, and one non-executive Director, Mr. Wu
Daging. Mr. Ye Xiang currently serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee include, among other things, the following:

o With respect to the policy and structure of
remuneration regarding the Directors and Senior
Management and the establishment of such official
and transparent procedures for formulating such
remuneration policies, to propose a proposal to the
Board;

° To investigate and approve the proposal on the
remuneration of the Senior Management based on
the corporate principles and goals set by the Board;

° To determine the specific remuneration of all
executive Directors and Senior Management,
including but not limited to basic salary, warrant
and non-monetary interests, pension and bonus, and
indemnified amount (including the indemnification for
the loss or termination of position or appointment);

° To advise on the Board regarding the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

° To take consideration of the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, such time required to
be spent by the Directors, scope of duties of the
Directors, employment conditions for other positions
within the Group, and whether the remuneration
shall be determined based on the performance
thereof;

o To investigate and approve such compensation
required to be paid to executive Directors and Senior
Management due to the loss or termination of their
positions or appointment, in order to ensure that
such compensation shall be determined pursuant
to the relevant contractual terms. Should such
determination fail to be made pursuant to the
relevant contractual terms, such compensation
should be fair and reasonable and not excessive;
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o To investigate and approve such compensation
arrangements involving the termination of
employment or dismissal of the relevant Directors
due to the inappropriate act of such Directors, in
order to ensure that such arrangements shall be
determined pursuant to the relevant contractual
terms. Should such determination fail to be made
pursuant to the relevant contractual terms, such
relevant compensation should be reasonable and
appropriate;

° To ensure that no Directors nor any associates would
determine their own remuneration by themselves;

o To investigate the performance of duties by
Directors (non-independent Directors) and Senior
Management and conduct annual performance
appraisal regarding such Directors and Senior
Management; and

o To study share incentive schemes.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee held two meetings, details of which
are set out as follows:

o The first meeting of the third session of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee was
held on 31 March 2022, at which (1) the report
on remuneration of Directors of the Company for
2021; and (2) resolution regarding the report on
the remuneration of management members of the
Company for 2021 were considered and approved.

o The second meeting of the third session of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee was
held on 30 June 2022, at which (1) resolution
regarding the results of 2021 performance
appraisal and remuneration allocation plan for the
management members of the Company; and (2)
resolution regarding the indicator system of the
operating performance statement for 2022 for
the management members of the Company were
considered and approved.
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The record of attendance is set out as follows:

SRAFRENT

Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance
BB RS, HE R #
Ye Xiang (Chairman of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee) 2/2
HA(FMEEREZEEEE)
Mao Zhuanjian 2/2
EHE2
Wu Daging 2/2
RRE

4. Strategy and Investment Committee 4. HEAREERY
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Strategy and REAITHE - BEREIEEE
Investment Committee consisted of one executive Director, Bed—R29TESE - —BFH

one non-executive Director and one independent non-
executive Director including Mr. Shen Zhen (appointed in
June 2022), Mr. Wang Jungi and Mr. Mao Zhuanjian. Mr.
Shen Zhen currently serves as the chairman of the Strategy
and Investment Committee. Mr. Tian Dan resigned as the
chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee in
June 2022.

The main duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee
include, among other things, the following:

o To study and advise on the strategic plans for the
long-term development of the Company;

° To study and advise on the material investment and
financing proposals required to be approved by the
Board pursuant to the Articles of Association;

o To study and advise on the material capital operation
and asset operational projects that are required to
be approved by the Board pursuant to the Articles
of Association;

o To consider the investment and acquisition
development strategies and the annual investment
plans of the Company;

o To consider the Company's project evaluation
system, which includes effective evaluation
institutions and professionals, complete evaluation
procedures, reasonable evaluation criteria and other
factors;
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o To consider and determine the acquisition and
disposal of projects within the scope as authorized
by the Board;

o To study and advise on the material issues that may
impact the Company's development;

o To carry out examination and checking over the
above-mentioned matters; and

o To carry out other matters authorized by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Strategy and Investment
Committee held four meetings, details of which are set
out as follows:

o The third meeting of the third session of the Strategy
and Investment Committee was held on 28 February
2022, at which, resolution regarding the “14th Five-
Year Plan” of Datang Environment Industry Group
Co., Ltd. was considered and approved.

° The fourth meeting of the third session of the
Strategy and Investment Committee was held on 31
March 2022, at which, (1) resolution regarding the
2022 investment plan of the Company; (2) Resolution
regarding the 2022 financing plan proposal of the
Company; and (3) resolution regarding the 2022
consolidated bank credit facility of Company were
considered and approved.

o The fifth meeting of the third session of the
Strategy and Investment Committee was held
on 27 May 2022, at which, resolution regarding
the authorization to the Company to invest in the
construction of a decentralized photovoltaic power
generation project was considered and approved.

o The sixth meeting of the third session of the
Strategy and Investment Committee was held on
31 August 2022, at which, resolution regarding the
investment in the construction of a new cellular
catalyst manufacturing and disposal regeneration
project and the establishment of Datang (Jiangsu)
Environmental Protection Equipment Co., Ltd.
(RE (L& )IRREHEER A R]) was considered and
approved.
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The record of attendance is set out as follows:

SEAFREIT

Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance

RE R E, R

Tian Dan ™ 2/3
(Former chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee)

AR EREEEEFF)

Shen Zhen (Chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee) 11

RA(HREREZEEER)

Mao Zhuanjian 4/4

EHZ

Wang Jungi 4/4

F &R

Note: Mz -

(1) Mr. Tian Dan did not attend one meeting due to work (1) A A TERERZM

adjustment. —IREF o

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Supervisory Committee
comprised three Supervisors, one of whom is an employee
representative Supervisor, including Mr. Huang Yuan, Mr. Zhang
Xuefeng and Ms. Luo Li.

The functions and duties of the Supervisory Committee include
but not limited to reviewing the Company's financial reports,
supervising the performance of the Company’s duties of the
Directors and Senior Management and proposing the dismissal
of the Directors and Senior Management who are in breach of laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association or the resolutions of
the general meeting, requiring Directors, the general manager of
the Company and other Senior Management to rectify any actions
which impair the interests of the Company, proposing to convene
the extraordinary general meetings, convening and presiding over
the general meeting in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and preside over the general meetings,
putting forward proposals to the general meetings and reviewing
the periodic report formulated by the Board and putting forward
written opinions on audit.
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Each term of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she
may serve consecutive terms if re-elected. A Supervisor shall
continue to perform his/her duties in accordance with the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until
a duly re-elected Supervisor takes office, if re-election is not
conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of
office or if the resignation of Supervisors results in the number
of Supervisors being less than the quorum.

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee held one
meeting, details of which are set out as follows:

o The second meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 31 March 2022, at which, among
others, (1) work report of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company for 2021; (2) resolution regarding the independent
auditor's report, audited financial statements, results
announcement and the annual report of the Company
for 2021; (3) report on the final financial accounts of the
Company for 2021; (4) final budget report of the Company
for 2022; (5) resolution regarding the profit distribution plan
of the Company for 2021 and the proposed distribution
of final dividend in 2021; (6) resolution regarding the re-
appointment of the domestic and international auditors
of the Company for 2022; (7) resolution regarding the
connected transactions of the Company for 2021; (8) work
report on the risk and internal control of the Company for
2021; (9) report on the use of raised fund of the Company;
and (10) report on the remuneration of the Company’s
Supervisors for 2021 were considered and approved.

The record of attendance is set out as follows:

Member

o8-

rEERRE(E)

EEBEAHAE=F ATEBRET -
WEESAHEmERERFETER -
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EEEMNES LEALE -

HREHAN BEEeHABRTRgsm 0 A
8
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ﬁ% %%“i&ﬁﬁﬁim%
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fid F R R EZEDEL2021 F REMR
BERZEE (6)@NEIEARF2022
FEERNINETANZRE : (7)F
RARR02NFEBEIZ BN
HEE 0 (8)AFI2021 FEE A M
TERE  QBERRAIEEES
FRERNRS  &(1020214F
ERRESHMERRE -

e

Number of attendance/required
number of attendance

HERY,FEHEIRE

Huang Yuan (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
BR(ESEERE)

Luo Li

ZER

Zhang Xuefeng

IRE2IE

11

11
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources
to continue its business for the foreseeable future, and are not
aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is
responsible for presenting a clear and understandable assessment
of the annual and interim reports, inside information, price sensitive
information and other disclosures as required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management of the
Company has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an assessment
of the financial information and status of the Group before giving
its approval. The Group is not exposed to any material uncertainty
that may exert significant impact on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR DEALING IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY BYIT S DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for dealing in the securities of the Company by all Directors,
Supervisors and relevant employees of the Company (as defined
in the Model Code). According to the specific enquiries of all
Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and Supervisors confirmed
that they had strictly complied with the standard set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board will
examine the corporate governance practices and operation of the
Group from time to time to ensure that the Group is in compliance
with relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and that the
Shareholders’ interests are safeguarded.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Company has established complete and stable risk management
and internal control systems, and has formulated a series of rules
to ensure that the Company’s risk management and internal control
work are institutionalized and systematic. The Company has 9
functional departments responsible for works including financial
operation and monitoring, risk management, internal audit and
antifraud, in which the work related to risk management and internal
control shall be carried by the legal risk control department. The
Company has set up the comprehensive risk management leading
group and office, which are responsible for risk management
and internal control related work. The Company also establishes
full-time risk management positions. The general manager of the
Company holds the post of the group leader.

The Group will carry out risk assessment at the beginning of
each year, set objectives of risk prevention and control, revise
risk assessment standards, collect risk management information,
identify key risk sources, assess risk levels, develop risk prevention
strategies and improve measures for significant risks, ensuring
which are to be carried out by the functional departments. The
work report of risk control of the Company shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee of the Board for consideration in March
annually. The Company focuses on the prior control of major risks,
actively carries out comprehensive risk management, establishes
and improves the normalization mechanism of risk assessment,
and establishes special risk assessment system for important
matters such as significant domestic and foreign investment, major
capital operation and management of large amounts of capital
use in order to strengthen internal control. The Company has
formulated the “Information Disclosure Management System”,
which stipulates the duties and obligations of various departments
in the process of internal information processing, the procedures
for the disclosure of periodic reports and interim reports, and the
confidential measures and corresponding responsibilities.
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In case of inside information, all business management departments
of the Company shall fill in the inside information registration form
immediately and file it with the Company's inside information
management department. The registration and filing materials
of insiders should be kept for at least 10 years. The Company
should also make the memorandum on the progress of material
matters such as acquisition, major asset restructuring, issuance of
securities, merger, division and share repurchase, including but not
limited to the time of various key nodes in the course of planning
and decision-making, list of personnel participating in planning and
decision-making, and the means of planning and decision-making.
The relevant personnel involved in the memorandum should
sign on the memorandum for confirmation. If an insider violates
the system and discloses the Company’s inside information, or
uses the Company's inside information for insider dealing, or
suggests others to use the inside information for trading which
cause serious impact and losses to the Company, the Company
may, according to the seriousness of the circumstances, impose
disciplinary sanctions to the relevant responsible persons and
may investigate their corresponding legal liabilities. In the event
of causing material losses to the Company constituting a crime,
the responsible person shall be transferred to the judicial authority
for criminal responsibility according to law.

The Board is responsible for maintaining a proper risk management
and internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ investments
and Company’s assets and with the support of the Audit Committee,
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.
The risk management and internal control system is designed to
identify, assess and report on potential risks and implement control
measures, to mitigate rather than to completely eliminate the risks
associated with achieving our business objectives. These systems
provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group, including financial control,
operation control, compliance control, and risk management
system, and was not aware of any material problems or any
material mistakes. The Board believes that the current monitoring
systems of the Company are effective and adequate and that
the Company has sufficient experience and resources as to the
qualifications and experience of the staff, performing accounting
and financial reporting functions and the training programs of the
Company as well as setting the budget of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Moore Stephens CPA Limited and Da Hua CPAs (Special General
Partnership) (collectively, “Moore") were appointed as international
and domestic auditors of the Company to audit the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 prepared in accordance with IFRSs and the PRC GAAP,
respectively. Aggregate fees in respect of audit and audit-related
services provided by Moore payable by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were RMB2.26 million.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management is in place. The Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the
remuneration policies and plans of the Directors, Supervisors, the
general manager of the Company and other Senior Management,
and shall be accountable to the Board. Details of the remuneration
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for Directors, Supervisors and top five employees in respect of MI3E10 ~ 11 %36(d) - B £2022F12 A
remuneration are set out in Notes 10, 11 and 36(d) to the financial NBEILEE  SREEENGNEBES
statements in this annual report. For the year ended 31 December HIAT
2022, the scope of remuneration for the Senior Management is
set out below:

Number of Senior
Scope of remuneration (RMB’000) Management
FEE(ARETT) SREEE AR
0-500 4
500-1,000 6
Note: The number of the members disclosed above includes the Wi WEBRBABBRERRERERE

Senior Management and those who act as executive Directors
and Supervisors.
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X. GENERAL MEETINGS +. BREREX®
During the Reporting Period, the Company held a total of two WEMBRN - RRARIHEBITRARRERXR
general meetings, with attendance of Directors as follows: g - é%ﬁfﬂx%’éﬁ’; ERAT
Number of
attendance/required

Name Position number of attendance
®H Bz HERE R RE
Zhu Liming Chairman of the Board and executive Director 0/0
SRFIER EERAWTES
Shen Zhen Non-executive Director and general manager Al
FR R FENITE T M AEKIE
Wang Junai Non-executive Director 2/2
F &R FEMITES
Wu Dagqing Non-executive Director 2/2
C YN FEHITES
Chen Kan Non-executive Director 2/2
BRAT FEHITES
Song Yunpeng Non-executive Director 2/2

(Employee representative Director)
REMS FHMTEEF(RIRKES)
Ye Xiang Independent non-executive Director 2/2
=) BYIERITES
Mao Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director 2/2
EEZ BYIERITES
Gao Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director 2/2
SEX: B IEMITES
Wang Yanwen Former Chairman of the Board and non-executive 1/2

Director
FEXW AEFRMIENITES
Tian Dan @ Former non-executive Director and general manager 0N
BBl 732 RIZEMITE T AR IE
Notes: Hiat -
(1) Mr. Wang Yanwen did not attend one of the meeting due (1 FTEXRERTFRAERS MEF

to work adjustment. —IREE °
(2) Mr. Tian Dan did not attend the meeting due to work (2) EALERTERERZ2MES
adjustment.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has highly appreciated Shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organised various investor relations activities
to maintain connections with Shareholders and made timely
responses to the reasonable requests of Shareholders.

The Company has also adopted a set of dividend policy, and the
actual dividends declared and paid to Shareholders depend on a
series of factors. For specifics of the dividend policy, please refer
to the Prospectus.

1. Shareholders’ Rights

The Board is committed to communicating with
Shareholders and makes disclosure in due course about
the Company’s major developments to Shareholders and
investors of the Company.

The general meeting of the Company provides Shareholders
and the Board with good communication opportunities. A
twenty business days’ prior written notice for convening
the annual general meeting of the Company shall be given.
A ten business days or fifteen days’ (whichever is longer)
prior written notice for convening the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company shall be given. Business day
refers to the day on which the Stock Exchange is open for
securities trading. The date of the general meeting and the
date when the notice is dispatched shall not be included
in the calculation of the period for issuing such notice.

The Company's general meetings include annual general
meetings, which are held once each year within 6 months
from the close of the preceding financial year, and
extraordinary general meetings, which are convened in
compliance with the Articles of Association and whenever
the Board considers appropriate. Shareholders, individually
or jointly, holding a total of more than 10% (inclusive) of the
Company's issued and outstanding Shares carrying voting
rights are entitled to request in writing for convening an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to the procedures
set out in the Articles of Association. And such meetings
shall be held within 2 months after the requisition is
presented.
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Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals during the
general meetings may raise their hands and speak in the
order of registration at any time after the resolutions to be
considered at the meeting are announced. The Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management shall respond to the
questions and suggestions from Shareholders.

The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of all
committees under the Board (or, in whose absence, other
members of the committees) will answer question(s) at the
general meetings. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, any vote
of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll. Poll results are deemed resolutions of the meeting.

The Board encourages Shareholders to attend general
meetings to communicate directly concern(s) they may
have with the Board or the management of the Company.
Shareholders holding 3% or more of the Company’s Shares
with voting right have the right to put up ad hoc proposals
in writing to the Company, and the Company shall include
such ad hoc proposals into the agenda for such general
meeting if they are matters falling within the functions and
powers of general meeting. The ad hoc proposals raised
by Shareholders shall satisfy the following requirements: (i)
free of conflicts with the provisions of laws and regulations,
and fall into the terms of reference of the general meeting;
(i) with definite topics to discuss and specific matters to
resolve; and (iii) submitted or served to the Board in writing
10 days prior to the date of the general meeting.

Detailed voting procedures and resolutions being voted on
by way of poll are contained in the circulars dispatched to
Shareholders.
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2. Shareholders’ Inquiries

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings,
including share transfer, change of address or wish to
report loss of shares or dividend warrant, please write to or
contact the Company's H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at:

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8555

Fax: (852) 2865-0990

Enquiries: www.computershare.com/hk/en/online_feedback

3. Investor Relations and Communications

The Company set up a website at www.dteg.com.cn,
as a channel to promote communication, publishing
announcements, financial information and other relevant
information of the Company. Shareholders are welcome
to make enquiries directly to the Company at its principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner. The
primary contact of the Company is Mr. WANG Xiaofeng (at
email: ir@dteg.com.cn or tel: +86 10 5838 9858).

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy of
the Company, and considered that the current shareholders’
communication policy has been effectively implemented
through the above channel and approach.

CHANGE OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The constitutional documents of the Company have been published
both on the Stock Exchange’'s and the Company's website.
Certain proposed amendments to the Articles of Association to
be approved at the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company
were passed at the 15th meeting of the third session of the
Board on 24 March 2023. Please refer to the announcement dated
24 March 2023 for the summary of the amendments. Save for
such amendments, there has been no significant change in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENT

As of the date of this annual report, the Group had no significant
events after the Reporting Period that needs to be disclosed.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
& & IR

EVENTS RELATING TO INVESTOR RELATIONS
IN 2022

Investors’ Routine Visits

During the Reporting Period, the Group always gave detailed
answers to the queries raised by investors and analysts in
compliance with the information disclosure rules. As at the
end of 2022, the Company had adequate communications
and exchange of ideas with investors and analysts from a
number of institutions via meetings, telephone calls, emails
and WeChat.

Participation in Investment Summits

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively participated
in major summits and investment forums in the PRC and
Hong Kong organised by world-famous investment banks,
at which we had one-on-one or group meetings to promote
in-depth communication with important global investors.

Results Briefings

During the Reporting Period, the Company published its
2021 annual results and 2022 interim results. In March
2022, the management of the Company convened the
2021 annual results presentation and the conference call
with investors. In August 2022, the management of the
Company held the 2022 interim results presentation and
the conference call with investors.

OUTLOOK FOR MANAGEMENT OF INVESTOR
RELATIONS IN 2023

In 2023, the Company will focus more on demands of investors
and analysts, pay close attention to important policies of the
environmental protection and energy conservation industry, timely
make public disclosable information and continuously improve
the timeliness and completeness of data disclosure to provide
the public with timely access to complete business information.

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

2022 F R B H R EE

1.

HERBEENRED

WMEHARN  NEBEETEMREK
T HIEMATIR TARFARSER
BERDMEATIEEE - B2
2022 K  RREBBEE - B
o EBRMEESREERES
REENREERDITAIETT
FEORBBEI o

EmRige

BEHA - AREEE2NEER
HMERERTETERFTES
BRNEZREERRERE B
B NMEEEANTEAES
RERREEHEETRANEE -

BRRERNE

WEHA - AR R EM2021 4
FEEBER2022FFHES - 1
2022438  ARAEREBH
2021 FEXEH MY - HIEE
HETTEFEGZ - 1202258
R AREEREBR2022FH
H¥ERmE  BREEETT

iy
B A0 = Ak ©

2023 FRBEMEEERRE

M2023F - ARG EEFRIEEE R
AR - BT IRIR R ETREE %
MEZEHR  RREELHAREREERK
P 4B O = BUR B FR A R T 1 R SRR
EABEH RS EENERER -



REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

In 2022, all members of the Supervisory Committee earnestly performed
their supervisory obligations to safeguard the rights and interests of
the Group and the Shareholders in accordance with the Company Law,
the Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory
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Committee and the relevant provisions in the Listing Rules.

. CHANGES IN COMPOSITION

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the member
of the Supervisory Committee of the Company.

. MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period and as at the Latest Practicable Date,
the Supervisory Committee held two meetings, details of which
are set out as follows:

° The second meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 31 March 2022, at which, (1) work
report of the Supervisory Committee of the Company for
2021; (2) resolution regarding the independent auditor’s
report, audited financial statements, results announcement
and the Annual Report of the Company for 2021; (3) report
on the final financial accounts of the Company for 2021;
(4) the final budget report of the Company for 2022; (5)
resolution regarding the profit distribution plan for 2021
and the proposed distribution of 2021 final dividend of the
Company; (6) resolution regarding the re-appointments of
the international and domestic auditors of the Company for
2022; (7) resolution regarding the connected transactions
of the Company for 2021; (8) report on the risk and internal
control of the Company for 2021; (9) report on the use
of raised funds of the Company; and (10) report on the
remuneration of Supervisors of the Company for 2021 were
considered and approved.

° The third meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 8 December 2022, at which,
resolution regarding the internal control evaluation work
plan of the Company for 2022 was considered and approved.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

EEemE(E)

lll. PRINCIPAL INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION
WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
IN 2022

1. Members of the Supervisory Committee carried out
supervision and inspection of the financial position of the
Company and its financial management, risk management
and internal control systems, including regular inspections
of the financial reports and financial budgets and irregular
reviews of accounting documents and books of the
Company.

2. Members of the Supervisory Committee attended all general
meetings and Board meetings without voting rights during
the Reporting Period, exercising supervision in respect of
the lawfulness and compliance of the procedures of the
matters considered by the Board meetings.

3. The Supervisory Committee made no objection to the
reports and resolutions tabled at the general meetings and
were convinced that the Board had faithfully implemented
the resolutions approved by the general meetings.

IV. INDEPENDENT OPINIONS ISSUED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT
MATTERS

1. Operation and Management of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained
a stable development in its general operation, and
achieved a breakthrough in the business segments such
as denitrification catalysts and water treatment. The
management of the Company attached great importance
to safety management and ensured smooth situation
in production safety, actively promoted technological
innovation and achieved a series of research outcomes,
vigorously developed external markets and expanded client
bases significantly and continuously improved the level of
management in core business. The management of the
Company faithfully fulfilled their duties and responsibilities
as stipulated in the Articles of Association and earnestly
implemented the resolutions approved by the Board.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Financial Position of the Company

Members of the Supervisory Committee monitored and
examined the financial management system and the financial
condition and reviewed relevant financial information of the
Company. Upon examination, the Supervisory Committee
concluded that the Company had strictly complied with the
relevant financial laws, regulations and financial policies,
and that the financial management system was sound and
implemented effectively and the accounting treatment was
in line with the consistency principles and the Company’s
financial reports gave an objective and fair view of the
financial position and operating results of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the standard and
unmodified audit opinion issued by Moore Stephens CPA
Limited in respect of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 prepared
in accordance with IFRSs, and raised no objection to such
reports.

Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the connected
transactions between the Group and its respective
connected persons during the Reporting Period, and was
of the opinion that all the connected transactions complied
with the relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and
other applicable laws, and that the pricing of the connected
transactions was reasonable, open and fair and there was
not any matter prejudicial to the interests of the Company
or Shareholders as a whole.
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Implementation of the Resolutions of
General Meetings

The Supervisory Committee considered that the Board
earnestly implemented the resolutions approved by the
general meetings; the Company further perfected and
improved various risk management and internal control
mechanisms; significant information about the Company
was disclosed in a timely manner pursuant to the securities
regulatory requirements such that the information was
disclosed in a regulated manner and the securities trading
system for the informed parties of inside information was
conducted well; that the Directors and Senior Management
were able to implement conscientiously and thoroughly
relevant laws and regulations, the Articles of Association
and the resolutions of the general meetings and the
Board, performing the duties to the Company in a faithful,
and pioneering manner; and that no Directors or Senior
Management were found to have acts which violated laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association or harmed the
interests of the Company and the rights or interests of
Shareholders during the execution of their duties.

Internal Control of the Company

The Supervisory Committee made a special explanation
of the Company’s internal control. It was of the view
that the Company abode by the basic principle of internal
control based on its development strategies and regulatory
requirements, and further improved the risk management
and internal control systems in line with its own actual
situation so that the Company was able to give a reasonable
assurance that the internal control objective would be
achieved. In addition, the Company has established a
complete internal control organizational structure to ensure
that its risk management and internal control systems will
be monitored and implemented effectively and its control
and management capability will continue to increase.

Use of Proceeds by the Company

The Supervisory Committee monitored the utilization of
the proceeds by the Company. It was of the view that the
Company was able to manage and utilize the proceeds in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations as
well as the commitments made by it in the Prospectus.
The Supervisory Committee will continue to oversee and
inspect the utilization of the proceeds.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Huang Yuan
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

5%  EEkERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhu Liming

Born in October 1971, is the chairman, executive Director,
secretary of the Party Committee and the authorized representative
of the Company. Mr. Zhu is a member of the Communist Party
of China and a principal senior engineer with a doctor’s degree in
engineering. He has successively served as a technician of power
maintenance team, a technician and the deputy director of the
electric workshop of thermal power plant of Anging Petrochemical
Complex (Z B A @A/t T42K); the head of the production planning
and operation department of Henan Languang Environmental
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (AFEXIRRFEEERAA),; the
head of the human resource department of Wuhan Kaidi Power
Engineering Co., Ltd. (RZ9:#EHTIRBRAFR]); the general
manager of Henan Languang Environmental Power Generation
Co., Ltd.; the deputy general manager and the marketing director
of Wuhan Kaldl Electric Power Company Limited (FUZ8/#E
%13 BB 7]); the deputy general manager of Datang Xinjiang
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (KEFBEERAZEBRAR]); the
deputy general manager, a member of the party organisation,
the secretary of the party organisation, the general manager and
the deputy secretary of party committee of the Datang Xinjiang
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (KE¥@EEERAF]); the general
manager and the deputy secretary of party committee of the
Guangdong Branch of China Datang; the director of Guangdong
Planning and Development Center of China Datang Group (4 &
AEEBERMEZEREFL); the general manager and the deputy
secretary of the party committee of the Guangdong Branch of
Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd. (KEBIFR 2 E ML
AR /AF]); the chairman and the secretary of party committee
of Datang Sichuan Power Generation Company Limited (XEPD)I|
B EAMR AT, the director of Sichuan Tibet Planning Exhibition
Center of Chma Datang Group (FEIAESEE)IERIFERF L),
and the chairman of the Sichuan Branch of Datang International
Power Generation Co., Ltd..
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Mr. Shen Zhen

Born in April 1972, is an executive Director, the general manager
and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of the Company.
Mr. Shen holds a master’'s degree in business administration,
and is a member of the Communist Party of China and a principal
senior engineer. Mr. Shen successively served as a boiler engineer
of Beijing Electric Power Construction Company* (it =& 775&
%72 7]); manager of engineering management department of
Guohua Ebara Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.* (BZEHR
RIBETIREREME 2 7); deputy general manager (in charge) of
engineering and project management department (customer
service department), deputy general manager of desulfurization
business department, deputy general manager of cooling
technology business department and deputy director (in charge)
of general manager work department of Datang Environmental
Technology Engineering Co., Ltd.* (KERER TRERARF);
director of engineering management department, deputy general
manager of environmental protection branch and general manager
of desulfurization division of Technologies & Engineering Company;
general manager of environmental protection branch of China
Datang Corporation Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (FFEX
B EIRIERMIAR A F); deputy general manager and member of
the Party group of Datang Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (X
ERREZEE AR A F); deputy general manager and member of
the Party committee, and deputy secretary of the Party committee
and deputy general manager of the Company; deputy secretary of
the Party committee and deputy general manager of China Datang
Corporation Solar Energy Industry Co., Ltd.* (FFEIAE £ B AL
EZAMRA7)); deputy secretary of the Party committee and deputy
general manager, and general manager and deputy secretary of
the Party committee of Datang Hainan Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.* (KE/BMEEEIRFAEBRAT).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Jungqi

Born in September 1968, is a non-executive Director. He
holds a Master's degree in engineering, and is a principal
senior engineer and a member of the Communist Party of
China. Mr. Wang successively served as a technician of the
ontology team of the steam turbine maintenance branch
of Pingdingshan Yaomeng Power Plant; a technician in the
maintenance department, and steam turbine engineer in the
production department of Sanmenxia Thermal Power Plant;
deputy director, deputy chief engineer and deputy director of
production department, deputy chief engineer, chief engineer,
deputy general manager and chief engineer, and a member
of Party Committee of Sanmenxia Huayang Power Generation
Co., Ltd.; deputy general manager and chief engineer of Datang
Sanmenxia Power Generation Co., Ltd.; the secretary of the
Party Committee of Datang Luoyang Thermal Power Plant; a
Party member, deputy general manager, discipline inspection
team leader and chairman of the trade union of Datang Xinjiang
Power Generation Co., Ltd.; general manager of Datang Hutubi
Energy Development Co., Ltd.; secretary of the Party Committee
and deputy general manager of Datang Xinjiang Power
Generation Co., Ltd.; the general manager and deputy secretary
of the Party Committee of Shanxi Branch of China Datang; the
general manager and deputy secretary of the Party Committee
of Datang Shanxi Power Generation Co., Ltd.; chairman and
secretary of the Party Committee of Datang Henan Power
Generation Co., Ltd.. He currently serves as a director, general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party committee of Datang
Hainan Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (KE/EMERHZEER
/x\]), and concurrently serves as a director of Datang Huayin (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600744).
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Mr. Wu Daqing

Bornin June 1964, is a non-executive Director. He holds a Master’s
degree in engineering, and is a principal senior economist and a
member of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Wu successively
served as a reporter editor, deputy director member, and
director member of the Editorial Department of China Electric
Power Newspaper Office; manager of Beijing Zhongdianxing
Art Development Company; manager and director of Exhibition
Office of Beijing Zhongdianxing Art Development Company; deputy
director of Ideological and Political Work Department of China
Datang Corporation; secretary of the Party Leadership Group and
dean of China Datang Corporation Institute of Technology and
Economics; dean and secretary of the Party Leadership Group of
the Cadre Training Institute of China Datang Corporation; director
of the School Affairs Department of the Party School of the CPC
China Datang Corporation; director of the Party School of the
CPC China Datang Corporation; deputy secretary of the Direct
Committee of the CPC China Datang Corporation; director of the
Political Work Department and director of the News Center of
China Datang Corporation; general manager, deputy secretary
of the Party Leadership Group, chairman and secretary of the
Party Committee of Datang Hebei Power Generation Co., Ltd.;
leader of the Party Group Inspection Team of China Datang. He
concurrently serves as a director of China Datang Corporation
Energy Investment Co., Ltd..
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Mr. Chen Kan

Born in December 1964, is a non-executive Director. He holds
a Master's degree in engineering, and is a principal senior
economist and a member of the Communist Party of China.
Mr. Chen successively served as an assistant teacher in Water
Resources Teaching and Research Office of Wuhan College of
Water Resources and Hydroelectric Engineering; economist,
section chief, deputy director and director of the Operation
Management Office of Guangxi Yantan Hydropower Project
Construction Company; director and deputy general manager
of Planning Contract Department of Longtan Hydropower
Development Co., Ltd.; a member of Party Leadership Group and
deputy general manager of Longtan Hydropower Development
Co., Ltd.; director and deputy general manager (shareholding)
of Jinsha River Midstream Hydropower Development Co., Ltd.;
director of Guanyinyan Hydropower Project Preparation Office of
China Datang Corporation; general manager of Datang Guanyinyan
Hydropower Development Co., Ltd.; deputy secretary of the Party
Leadership Group and deputy general manager of Yunnan Branch
of China Datang Corporation; general manager and secretary of the
Party Committee of Datang Guanyinyan Hydropower Development
Co., Ltd.; secretary of the Party Leadership Group and general
manager of Yunnan Branch of China Datang Corporation; general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party Leadership Group of
Yunnan Branch of China Datang Corporation; deputy chief engineer
of Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd. and general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of Inner
Mongolia Branch of Datang International Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.; chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Inner
Mongolia Branch of China Datang; deputy chief engineer of Datang
International Power Generation Co., Ltd.; director of Inner Mongolia
Planning and Development Center of China Datang Corporation;
deputy director of Southern Business Department of China Datang.
He concurrently serves as a director of China Datang Corporation
Energy Investment Co., Ltd..
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Mr. Song Yunpeng

Born in April 1967, is a non-executive Director (employee
representative Director). He holds a Master's degree, and is a
member of the Communist Party of China and a principal senior
engineer. Mr. Song successively served as designer, main
designer, deputy chief, chief and deputy director of First Section of
the Thermal Automation Department of Northeast Electric Power
Design Institute (3R1L%E J7%5TFT); project manager and head of
the Integrated Management Department of Shenzhen Branch of
Beijing Guodian (It REIE FYI5 A F]); assistant to the dean and
associate dean of Jiangsu Nanjing Thermal Power Engineering
Design Institute of Datang Environmental Technology Engineering
Co., Ltd. (KERERE TR AR A F)); deputy general manager of
Design Center of Technologies & Engineering Company; deputy
general manager of the Environmental Protection Branch of China
Datang Corporation Environment Technology Co., Ltd. (FREIARE
BIBRMTAR A TF]); deputy general manager and member of the
Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch of Datang
Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERIREEEBAR A F);
deputy general manager, member of the Party Committee, deputy
secretary of the Party Committee (in-charge) and deputy general
manager of the Environmental Protection Branch of the Company,
and concurrently served as deputy general manager and member
of the Party Committee of Beijing Datang Hengtong Mechanical
Transport Technology Co., Ltd. (At R AEEBHEMEZERMAR
/A |]); deputy general manager (in-charge) and deputy secretary
of the Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch
of the Company (Beijing Datang Hengtong Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. Qt R REEBEHLHRR A R])). He concurrently serves as
deputy head (in-charge) of the Party and Mass Work Department,
head of the Party and Mass Work Department and head of the
Party Construction Work Department (Disciplinary Committee
Office and Inspection Office) of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ye Xiang

Born in January 1964, is an independent non-executive Director.
He holds a Doctor’s degree and is a chartered financial analyst.
Mr. Ye has successively served as an economist of the People’s
Bank of China, a senior analyst at the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (FB5&aEIEE), the executive director of Bank of
China International Holdings Limited (FFEREIB B BR A R), the
director of China Affairs of the SFC, an independent director of UBS
Securities LLC ((%iRFEHBREL2F]), a member of the Public
Shareholders Group of the SFC and the managing director of Vision
Gain Capital limited (FE{§ & H PR A 7]). He concurrently serves as
an independent non-executive director of Wuling Motors Holdings
Limited (A2 )R B £ EIZAE AR A F)) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0305), an independent director of Digita
China Group Co., Ltd. (f#MNEIEEERHBER AR (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000034), and
an independent non-executive director of 51 Credit Card Inc. (51
EA-RAMR AR (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2051). From August 2019 to December 2022, he served as
an independent non-executive director of Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd
(EERITR D AR 2 A)) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2558).
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Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Born in June 1953, is an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a Bachelor's degree, and is a professor-level senior engineer,
a core professional of CEC, and expert of environmental protection
and energy conservation professionals for the power industry
(BENITERREEEERERR), and a member of the Communist
Party of China. Mr. Mao successively served as the engineer
and director member of the environmental protection office of
the planning department of the Ministry of Water and Power
Industry (27K E ZB); the deputy head and senior engineer of the
Environmental Protection and Management Division (R3B{REEIE
BZ) under the environmental protection center for CEC (Ff EH#IR 1%
{RFEH 1)); deputy director of the Ministry of Electric Power, State
Grid Corporation of China and the CEC General Office, director and
consulting engineer of the technical consulting office; the manager
of environmental protection division and the manager of climate
change response division of the industry development and the
environment and resources department under the CEC; the vice
secretary for the National Collaborative Network for Desulfurization
and Denitrification Technologies for the Power Industry (2
B HITER IR T E4S); the deputy secretary and deputy
secretary general for the energy conservation and environmental
protection sub-division under the CEC; a senior expert of the
energy conservation and environmental protection sub-division
under the CEC; a member of the energy and environment
professional committee of China Energy Research Association; a
member of the electric power environmental protection committee
of the Chinese Society of Electrical Engineering; a member of the
low-carbon economy working committee of the China Equipment
Supervision Association (FF B:ZBESIE I E).
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Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

Born in January 1974, is an independent non-executive Director.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in accounting and a Master's degree
in business administration. Mr. Gao is a certified public accountant
and certified tax agent. Mr. Gao successively served as an audit
manager at Xinxiang Juzhongyuan Certified Public Accountants
(FHMEFRTTSHAMEBMARETART); the manager of audit
department at the Beijing branch of Nanfang Minhe Certified
Public Accountants; the department manager at Beijing Zhonghe
Dingxin Certified Public Accountants (1t 57 M & 1= & 51+ Ah E 15 F7);
the department manager at Beijing Tianyuanquan Certified Public
Accountants (3L R KBl 2@ EHEIS=T5FT); the chief financial officer of
Beijing Guanshi Foundation International Investment Management
Company Limited (It REREFBFEIREEEBRAA),; the chief
accountant of Risun Chemical Co., Ltd. (JBFZ{Lt THEAR]); an
executive director and the general manager of Beijing Huamai
Huizhong Technology Co., Ltd. (At REZEEREHI AR A F); and
the manager of the audit department of Beijing Guanshi Foundation
International Investment Management Company Limited (1t &

REXBBRKEERFRAA).
SUPERVISORS
Mr. Huang Yuan

Born in June 1972, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee,
deputy secretary of the Party Committee and chairman of the labor
union. He holds a Bachelor's degree in literature and a Master's
degree in engineering, and is a member of the Communist Party
of China and a senior political engineer. Mr. Huang successively
served as assistant editor and reporter of News Department, editor
and reporter of Special Edition Department, editor and reporter of
the Agriculture and Electricity Department, editor, reporter and vice
chairman of the labour union, secretary to the president, and vice
chairman of the labour union of China Electric Power Newspaper
Office; second-level staff, deputy director and director of Publicity
Division of Ideological and Political Work Department, director of
Publicity Division of the Political Work Department, deputy director
of News Center, deputy director of News Center of China Datang
Corporation, and director of Preparation Group for Datang Culture
Media Co., Ltd.; general manager, deputy secretary of the Party
Committee of China Datang Group Culture Media Co., Ltd., deputy
director of the News Center of China Datang; and deputy director
of the News Center of China Datang.
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Mr. Zhang Xuefeng

Born in September 1968, is a Supervisor. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in accounting, and is a principal senior accountant and a
member of the Communist Party of China. He successively served
as an intern in the Education Division and other divisions of Chifeng
Thermal Power Plant; an accountant in the Finance Division, a
cashier of Finance Division, general ledger statements and cost
accountant, and chief accountant of Hongshan Power Plant;
deputy director of Finance Division of related parent company
of Chifeng Thermal Power Plant; director of Finance Division of
Donglong Industrial Co., Ltd.; manager of Finance Division of
Auxiliary Industry Company; director of Finance Division of Datang
Chifeng Saihanba Wind Power Co., Ltd.; deputy chief accountant
and director of Finance Division of Datang Chifeng Saihanba Wind
Power Co., Ltd.; chief accountant, chief accountant and director
of Finance and Property Management Department, deputy chief
accountant and director of Finance and Property Management
Department of China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co.,
Ltd.; chief accountant, member of the Party Leadership Group,
chief accountant and member of the Party Committee of Datang
Guizhou Power Generation Co., Ltd.; chief accountant and member
of the Party Committee of China Datang Corporation Energy
Investment Co., Ltd.. He concurrently serves as a supervisor of
Zhongxin Energy and Chemical Technology Company Limited.
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Ms. Luo Li

Born in August 1971, is an employee representative Supervisor. She
holds a Bachelor’s degree, is a member of the Communist Party
of China and a senior political engineer. Ms. Luo had previously
served as a publicity officer of the Party Office of China Hydropower
Second Bureau Construction Branch (FBI/KE — @229 B); officer
of the Party Office, deputy secretary and secretary of Communist
Youth League of China Water Resources and Hydropower Second
Engineering Bureau (R EIZKFI7KEEE — T2 B); assistant director,
deputy director (in charge of work), and director of the Supervision
and Audit Department (Department of ldeological and Politica
Work) of Datang Environmental Technology Engineering Co., Ltd.
(REBRBRIE TI2AR A F); director of the Supervision and Audit
Department (Department of Ideological and Political Work) of China
Datang Group Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (FF B A B & @37
B RAMTAR A F)); director of the Supervision and Audit Department
(Ideological and Political Work Department) and secretary of the
Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch of Datang
Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERIBREXEEERAT);
secretary of the Party Committee of the Environmental Protection
Branch of the Company and secretary of the Party Branch of Datang
Electric Power Design and Research Institute (K& /&5t
Bt), secretary of the Party Committee of Environmental Protection
Branch, party secretary and vice president of Datang Electric Power
Design and Research Institute (K/EE N&RETFFER); and head
of the Discipline Inspection Commission Office of the Company;
the full-time supervisor of Technologies & Engineering Company,
and the full-time supervisor of Nanjing Environmental Protection.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
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V.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chen Song

Born in May 1968, is the chief accountant, a member of the
Party Committee. He holds a bachelor’ degree of economics,
is the member of the Communist Party of China and senior
accountant. Mr. Chen successively served as an accountant of
financial division of North China Power Institute (28155 /158 515%);
an accountant of financial department of North China Power Group
Co., Ltd. (¥4t E 15 B2 7)); senior head of financial department,
vice director of the funds division and director of property funds
division of the financial department of Beijing Datang Power
Generation Company Limited ({t RAEZEEBRMDERAR]); plant
manager assistant, deputy plant manager and concurrently chief
accountant of Beijing Gao Jing Thermal Power Plant (it &4
ZVEH); vice manager, vice general manager and vice director
of the financial department of Datang International Power Co.,
Ltd. (REEBIER 25T M AR A 7)) general manager and director of
phase Il construction preparation department of Yunnan Datang
International Honghe Power Generation Company Limited (EF A
B AL 2 E B R & £ 2 7)); director of the financial department
of Datang International Power Co., Ltd.; and chief accountant and
a party committee member of Datang Renewable.
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Mr. Liu Chundong

Born in February 1970, is a member of the Party Committee
and deputy general manager. He holds a bachelor’ degree in
engineering, is a member of the Communist Party of China and
a senior engineer. Mr. Liu successively served as a watch of
operation, chief watch of operation, deputy shift leader, specialist
engineer in operation, specialist engineer in electric operation
and maintenance of the Production Technology Department,
shift supervisor of the Production Technology Department, the
director(maintenance) of the Electrical Branch of Tongliao Power
Generation Plant (BEZELMEE D). He served as a senior
engineering supervisor of the Power Generation Management
Department of CPl Holingol Coal (FEEEZEETEIRI). He
served as deputy director of the Safety Division and Engineering
Department of the Power Generation Department of CPI East Inner
Mongolia Energy (FERE R REEEE I L2 EEETIEE) and
the deputy director of the Tender and Bid Management Center of
CPI East Inner Mongolia Energy Co., Ltd. (R EREEEREE A A
HIZEEH D). He served as the deputy general manager of Datang

Renewable Power Maintenance Co., Ltd. (KE#FRERENIRER
BR /A 7)) as well as the deputy general manager of Beurng Tanghao

N

Electricity Engineering Technology Research Co., Ltd. (bt RfEESE
HIRREMZ AR AT). He served successively as the deputy
director (in charge) of the Science and Information Department and
the director of General Manager Office Department (International
Cooperation Department, Policy and Law Department) of Datang
Renewable. He served as the dean of Datang Renewable Energy
Test and Research Institute (KXE T8 IR IR ZEPT), and the chief
engineer of Datang Renewable. He served as the deputy general
manager and member of the Party committee of Datang Overseas
Investment. He served as the deputy general manager and member
of the Party committee of Datang Overseas Investment as well as
the director of the Preparatory Office of China Datang Group Africa
Co., Ltd. (PR KXEFEEEIEIMNAF]). He served as the associate dean
and member of the Party committee of China Datang Corporation
Renewable Power Science and Technology Research Institute Co.,

Ltd. (FEIAEREFERMERMATLEARAR)
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Mr. Zhou Ce

Born in September 1969, is a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary of the Discipline Inspection Committee. He holds a
Master's degree in law, and is a member of the Communist Party
of China. Mr. Zhou successively served as an intern, technician
and assistant engineer in the power workshop of Shandong
Heze Second Woolen Textile Factory (LLIESRIEEE — FE4HLEM),
the deputy general manager of Shandong Heze Modern Office
Equipment Company (ILERSFHEBERBQEE R F]), the secretary,
judge of the fourth rank, judge of the third rank and chief judge
of Shandong Heze Intermediate People’s Court (LI FEHR AR A
RJ£PBT), the fourth-class staff of economy and law department
of State Grid Corporation of China (BEXE#A/A 7)), the deputy
director and director of economy and law department of State
Grid Corporation of China, the head of integrated administrative
team, head of party committee working group, director of office
and director of legal office of State Grid Integrated Energy Service
Group Co, Ltd. (BI#456EARTS B PR AR)), the deputy director of
corporate management and legal affairs department, the deputy
director of monitoring division (the office of disciplinary team of
the Communist Party Committee and inspection office) and the
deputy director of inspection office of the Party Committee of
China Datang.
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Mr. Liang Xiuguang

Born in January 1979, is a member of the Party Committee,
deputy general manager, the secretary of the Board, Joint Company
Secretary and the authorized representative of the Company
He holds a Master’'s degree in engineering, is a member of the
Communist Party of China and senior political engineer. Mr. Liang
successively served as the boiler operator, secretary of the general
office, deputy director of the general office and director of the
politics department of Shandong Huangdao Electric Power Plant
(IR = S ER), the head of the general economics department,
deputy chief economist, deputy general manager and member of
Party Committee of Datang Shandong Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.
(REILEFEERA R A R]), the deputy general manager of Datang
Shandong Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. (KELLEEZAE
JRFE AR A7), deputy general manager and member of Party
Committee of Datang Shandong Clean Energy Development Co.,
Ltd., a member of Party Committee and deputy general manager
of Shenyang Huachuang Wind Power Co., Ltd. (Z5ZEAIREEEGR A
7)), deputy general manager of the automation department, deputy
director of materials management department (in charge of overall
operation) and director of materials management department of the
Company, the general manager and member of Party Committee
of Technologies & Engineering Company.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
ANER

PROFILE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, we had 1,008 employees, substantially
all of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has individually
established labor union branches. Currently, the Group has entered
into employment agreements with all employees, in which the
position, duties, remuneration, employment benefits, training,
confidentiality obligations relating to trade secrets and grounds
for termination are specified pursuant to the PRC Labor Law and
other relevant regulations.

The table below sets forth the number of employees as at 31
December 2022 by their functions:

ANTERER

2022912 4318 + HFIHLEEA1,008
ZREE  EFRBAZHEBEHDH -
REFBHBEBII @S - BAT - A
SEEE2HEIIZLTEEHAR @ &
B REAEEREMBRAERNETE
BRAmAE T EEMBA - BE - FHE -
BIEA - FI - BEREWENRE
BEEMKIEEHRESH -

T&RFRA20224912 431 BizBeEElH
FE T ASK:

Percentage

of the total

Number of number of

employees employees

HEES

Function B gE EEA™ AEBEDH
Concession operation management personnel L ERAB 328 32.54%
Engineering and technical personnel TREFMAER 204 20.24%
Sales personnel HEAB 69 6.85%
Research and development personnel HEAR 309 30.65%
Administrative and management personnel THEERAER 67 6.65%
Manufacture personnel H$EAB 19 1.88%
Others H A 12 1.19%
Total il 1,008 100.00%

STAFF INCENTIVES

According to the development requirements, the Company further
established and improved the overall responsibility management
system and the whole staff performance evaluation system on the
basis of clear position objectives. In order to inspire the potential
and work enthusiasm of employees, to fully embody the incentive
and constraint behavior, and to lay a solid foundation for the orderly
career development of all the employees, the Company divides
the specific task in development planning into each department
and position, objectively and accurately evaluates the achievement
of job targets of employees by building position performance
targets and performance standard, and realizes awards and
punishments according to the score that is formed by evaluation
results quantification.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

STAFF REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration package of our employees includes salaries,
bonuses and allowances. Our employees also receive welfare
benefits, including medical care, housing subsidies, retirement and
other benefits. We carry out employee performance appraisals,
establish diversified and dynamic appraisal mechanisms. The
department heads’ salaries and remunerations will be adjusted
corresponding to the results of their performance appraisals.
Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, we have contributed to
social insurance funds, including pension plans, medical insurance,
work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance, and housing funds for our employees.

STAFF TRAINING

In order to attract and retain high-quality employees and further
improve their knowledge, skill level and professional attainments,
we place a strong emphasis on the training of our employees.
We offer in-service education, training and other opportunities to
our managers and employees to improve their professional skills
and knowledge.

In 2022, the Group provided 33 training programs on business
management, professional techniques and production skills, and
the average training hours per employee was 94 hours with 100%
talents attending the trainings.

GUARANTEE OF STAFF RIGHTS

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC and the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC in all material respects and
makes contributions to social insurance and housing provident
fund for our employees according to the above laws, among which
the social insurance includes basic pension insurance, medical
insurance, occupational injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance.

ANER(E)

BT #FHs R

HAMBINFHES RS R
AR - BRfIMEBTZHERN - B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RV R Gl

'K MOORE

To the Shareholders of Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Datang
Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to 283, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key

audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Expected credit losses on trade receivables and

contract assets

B B S ()

MEEE SR

RRETFAERERMNEXAE - RREAR
HEHYBRRNBEITRRERNTH - GLF
HAREHAHMBERRERETEITLIRER
VE R NETRIEN - A THELFEREHRE
BHER - RPIEE TXAAEFR/SERST
TUARENREREZSE

HORWRAMERAREMTAMER
L ES

Key audit matter

CEE ]

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAET PR MR

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to RMB8,677
million and RMB186 million, respectively, with loss
allowances amounted to RMB309 million and RMB2
million, respectively.
RZZEZZF+_A=+—0 E5ERKFIBEREREEN
REESFAARKS77EETRARKIS6EE T @ 18X
EESRIR/AREIVOBEETRARK2BEETT -

Provision for credit loss allowance of trade receivables
and contract assets was made based on an assessment
of the lifetime expected credit losses. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Group had considered credit
losses incurred in the past, and adjusted it by taking
into consideration of the present conditions and forward
looking factors. In assessing forward-looking information,
the Group considered factors including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in
customers’ conditions.

B RKRFIAREREENTARERBRERDRRKHTE
H{E BRI AR - Tt 2RBERELRN A&EEZE
BAEFENEREBL  WASEAMAKRAIEERZEBE

HREITHRE ERMEATEMERE  E5EZENEER
EEEBR  RELERER TXRAREEPMREL -

Our audit procedures included, but not limited to the
followings:

BT T AT EER - BEETER

o Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating and
testing the applicable internal controls relevant
to management assessment of expected credit
losses of trade receivables and contract assets;

J AR - SRR R B 5 R IR K& [ & E H) T8 B
BB KRBT A8 e i R A B

o For trade receivables and contract assets
assessed individually, we reviewed, on a sample
basis, documents for supporting management’'s
assessment of the respective financial position
and creditworthiness of the customers, historical
payment and settlement records, and forecasted
future economic conditions, in order to assess the
reasonableness of expected credit loss allowance
provided by management;

J HRERFENE SRR FIBEREREE @ HME
BEAREMEEERANTEEF BRI REBHX
B SRR A S RO R DA R 3 AR R A B AR S B0 TEDA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB RS (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

MEEERA)

Expected credit losses on trade receivables and BEBKREMNSAEENTEHRER

contract assets (continued)

wEGE)

Key audit matter

REEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEE TR ELH

We focused on auditing the expected credit losses
of trade receivables and contract assets because the
judgement and estimation of expected credit losses is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the expected credit losses
of trade receivables and contract assets is considered
significant due to the subjectivity of significant
assumptions and estimates used. Therefore, we
identified the expected credit losses of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter.

BMEIEEAESRKRIEREGREENTEREREBERSE
# - RHEREBEHERBEANAE KRG FESEONMEETT
WEM - AREANEARRRMENEEY - HEHE

WHEEEREENERERBRAABNEERREESE
R Bt - BB ESRUGKIARE REENAREREX

BRlA—AMRETER °

The accounting policy, significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures about trade receivables
and contract assets are included in Note 3(i) SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Note 4
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES, Note 22 CONTRACT ASSETS, Note 23
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES and Note 39(c)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES to the consolidated financial statements.
HEFRKFEBEREREERBNSFEE - EAFFHIE
MEFT R BEESHNEHMBRERMEINEEZSFTBRBE -
MErasE Rt HE AL - 226 REE « 72385
JEU R IE AN FE IR B2 45 % [T 5239 () B 15 /R B B 1 B AR AR ©

° For trade receivables and contract assets assessed
collectively by making reference to the credit risk
characteristics, we assessed the reasonableness
of the grouping, management’'s assumptions and
input data used in the model, and the respective
expected credit losses provision made by management
by reviewing, on a sample basis, documents
and information, such as historical credit losses
incurred, historical payment and settlement
patterns of debtors, aging profile of trade
receivables and contract assets, current conditions
and forward looking factors; and

J HRRBEARREGAEGTENESEREHIERE
ﬁﬁé’ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ$%ﬁ%?i%ﬁi%%ﬁ%‘
EEANELNREEEER - EHRKFIERER
BEMNREEN X#&ﬁﬂl%ﬁé%#ﬂ&m%
MEZE - AR “iﬂ EIREH R RAET R R A
BASBNSEERERENRNEEEBREREX
B R

° Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of
trade receivables and contract assets on a sample
basis and recalculating the historical default rate,
evaluating the basis adopted by management in
determining the forward looking adjustment, and
testing the mathematical accuracy of calculation of
the expected credit loss allowance.

J B H B 5 R WRIA K& R & E R i o 1 5 221
M WEMERLENE  HMAEREEREAE
MRABRRRANKE - WAREREREREETE
BB EREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

Bz e (48 )

MEETERA)
BESRA AR

Key audit matter

BREEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEFT PR IAELHE

Approximately 13% of the Group's total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was related to
construction contracts, which was significant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Revenue from
these fixed price construction contracts was recognised
over time, measured by reference to the completion
percentage of individual contracts of construction works.
The completion percentage was estimated by reference
to the actual costs incurred up to the end of the
reporting period over the total budgeted costs. Significant
management’s estimation was involved in estimating
the completion percentage and the total budgeted costs,
we were required to put in significant audit efforts on
it. Therefore, we identified the revenue recognition on
construction contracts as a key audit matter.
HEZ-_F+_A=+—HIFE - BEGRAKAEE
SEBALTENN13% @ HEEESHVBRRLEERX -
EEBREEARMSWARERREESRER  2EEESH
BETEEIANLEE - T LA LSEHEREHRRAA
EENERKNMEABEXRNLEOIEE - Bt = ITBED L
MBEBEKRSRERERE M @ RMAHLETAES
STIE o At - RPIKRESRBRAERENSERETF
15 o

The accounting policy, significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures about construction
contracts are included in Note 3(p) SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Note 4
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES and Note 6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME
AND LOSSES to the consolidated financial statements.
ML FAEN S BER éﬁA#%%ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
REHHBEMEMTIPEESTERME  MF4E S
FIETAEET MU A - Efbliizm R -

Our audit procedures included, but not limited to the
followings:

BAIIT T AT ERER - BRETRR

° Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the revenue recognition process related to
construction contracts and testing the relevant
controls that the Group has put in place over
its processes to record construction costs, total
budgeted costs and construction contract revenue,
and to calculate the completion percentage;

. B - AT AERES RWARRRE  AHESEER
FEERSEEARKAN ERAEENE - BESR
WAL E T B L ER RIS

° Gaining an understanding of the construction
progress based on examination of the associated
project documentation and discussion on the
status of projects with finance and project
managers of the Group;

o MBS EEER X - EESEMERIER KR
S EmIE B AR S R B AR i F
° Discussing with management to gain an

understanding of their estimates for the total
budgeted costs and the changes, checking the
nature and components of the costs and revised
the historical accuracy of such estimates;

o HEBE NN T BEEHABENARTE S
T BERAMENER - ARERELGHGTTEED
R o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

MEEERA)

Revenue recognition on construction contracts EESRIGARIR(E)

(continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HREBRITEE ZEEEB P RNAELH

Performing tests of details, such as reviewing the
key contract terms of significant projects, checking
actual costs and tax invoices of major construction
projects, and reviewing the calculation worksheets
for the completion percentage of the construction
works; and

BT T AR - EREARTIIZIEE &R
BRIEH  BEXERETRIER BREFEMNKRME
F UERRETIRTIASHFAER &

Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures of the
Group’s construction contracts.

HAERE T ESBES RMNEREEN TR -

OTHER MATTER

Hth =1/

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended &HE-ZT—-—F+-A=+—HILFENEHE
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an &k Hm B — (I EBHEET @ ZEIR -2 =

unmodified opinion on those statements on 31 March 2022.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

“FZA=tHEREREBREREER -

RN EEREAHAEMBHE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. BAFEZEEEHEMEHEE - HWELRSET
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual EHRFERERNNELR - BRAERIEAHFHTBHHRE
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's &I FIAZEEIRE -

report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB RS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Rudolf Leung Kwok Man
Practising Certificate Number: P04964

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R R EH AR S W R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E2-_C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT T
Revenue WA 6 5,322,722 5,288,416
Cost of sales SHER AR (4,533,301) (4,946,985)
Gross profit EF 789,421 341,431
Selling and distribution expenses SHEM D HRAZ (18,718) (18,151)
Administrative expenses THAX (387,802) (478,694)
Other income and losses HE e MIER 6 111,465 80,436
Other expenses, net HEMAZ F5E 7 (8,561) (42,145)
Finance costs B 8 (199,335) (221,959)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment losses) & @& EFA [FE E R E R
on financial assets and contract assets, B/ CRERK) - F58
net 9 10,325 (39,130)
Profit/(loss) before tax BAIFRIE,(&E) 9 296,795 (378,212)
Income tax expense Frsfimfx 12 (58,672) (65,058)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERFE(EE) 238,123 (443,270)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hipira Wz

Other comprehensive income that may be ~ RAZRHEME TFEHDEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent  EBzEHIHb4RE Uk ¢

periods:
Exchange differences on translation of RIBINE LB RARIE A,
foreign operations =% 1,310 1,066

/

Other comprehensive income that may be ~ REZHBGTFEFHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent  fEZEHIH A4 A Wk B 58
periods, net 1,310 1,066

Other comprehensive income that will not be RAEEZERTEEEFT HIBE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent  EzZHIHE ARSI ¢

periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value #EFENA AL BETEAE
through other comprehensive income: et A B AR & WasHY
BRI
Changes in fair value ARBEEES - (2,525)
Income tax FriS At 208 379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

EftEmNEMZEIR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Sz (42
mzc (&)

2022 2021
—E-C —ZE_—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iofza AREF T ARETFTL
Other comprehensive income/(losses) that — AEEHIRE T EEFH N A
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in EEINEMERE WS
subsequent periods, net (E518) %58 208 (2,146)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FREMGREWRE (E8)
(LOSSES) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (0BRFEE) 1,518 (1,080)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Frmaks (FE)8A%E
(LOSSES) FOR THE YEAR 239,641 (444,350)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE (R BER
Owners of the parent [SUNEIEZ YN 272,425 (208,332)
Non-controlling interests =R = (34,302) (234,938)
238,123 (443,270)
Total comprehensive income/(losses) HEKE(BR)EAERE
attributable to: hi
Owners of the parent BRAREAA 273,367 (209,881)
Non-controlling interests IR (33,726) (234,469)
239,641 (444,350)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE FEREARZSEREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY WEREF (&E)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted AR S RMB 0.09 RMB (0.07)
14 AR%0.09Tt AK¥(0.07)7T
T _FFERSE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A G HR R

2022 2021
—ZE-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - HE & AE 15 6,519,403 6,828,008
Intangible assets | EE 16 233,072 252,900
Right-of-use assets PREEE 17(a) 293,230 312,776
Equity investments designated at fair value 1EFNUAABEFTELHE
through other comprehensive income FFAHMERE W FE
®E 18 - 26,389
Deferred tax assets BEEFIREE 19 53,970 51,840
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 20 310,986 385,752
Total non-current assets IRBEELTE 7,410,661 7,857,665
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =rE 21 153,888 204,931
Contract assets GREE 22 183,725 263,765
Trade and bills receivables E SRR FIAMER = 23 8,978,204 8,169,933
Prepayments, other receivables and TERFRIE - B EYGRIE R H
other assets & = 24 657,245 565,606
Restricted cash 2RI & 25 92,338 121,604
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 25 872,196 1,244,882
Total current assets REEEMAE 10,937,596 10,570,721
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B SN FIBMERN & 26 4,813,812 4,579,064
Other payables and accruals H M ER SRIBAERT & A 27 955,516 982,683
Provisions s 28 600 123,931
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and STERITERMEMER
other loans 29 4,751,452 3,789,805
Income tax payable FET RS AR 11,967 2,716
Total current liabilities FRBAERAE 10,533,347 9,478,199
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 404,249 1,092,522
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
BRI (B)

As at 31 December 2022

RZZE_—F+=-RA=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
KtaE AR%FT ARMTFT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBAES
LIABILITIES 7,814,910 8,950,187
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Provisions BiE 28 480 480
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and SHERITERAMEMER
other loans 29 888,789 2,162,981
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBAE 28,892 31,150
Total non-current liabilities FREBEEETE 918,161 2,194,611
Net assets EEFE 6,896,749 6,755,576
EQUITY Em
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &R RIEA AEGERER
Share capital &N 30 2,967,542 2,967,542
Reserves E 31 4,092,819 3,907,884
Retained profits RAEFE 7,060,361 6,875,426
Non-controlling interests eI R 25 (163,612) (119,850)
Total equity A 6,896,749 6,755,576
Zhu Liming Shen Zhen
SR AIBH FRiE
Director General Manager
EF AEAETE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= N/
¢DD / ~ II\I:III\ Eb i%

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE— T+ A=+—HItEE
Attnhutable to ouners of the parent
n ﬁ <“~’
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Statutory ~ through other  Exchange Non-
Share capital Capital surplus comprehenswe fluctuation Retained controlling
(Note 30 reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests  Total equity
As at 1 January 2022 R-E--%-f-H 2067542 1,315,483 417,39 1,181 (30) 2173854 6875426 (119,850) 6,795,576
Profit/loss) for the year R/ (E8) - - - - - MAB M (4302 2818
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EREMEAKE :
Income tax relating to equity investments ~ HERTEUNAL BB EEEEE;
esignated t far value through other NEfesalanERR AR
comprehensive income being disposed of & - - - 208 - - 28 - 208
Exchange diference on translation of foreign 5 EEEBHER 28
operations = = - - 3 - 734 576 1310
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EREAREEE - - - 208 O Mmas M (38,726) 230,641
Approprition to statutory suplus reserve  EZFERERE - - 31,499 = s (31,499) = = =
Disposal of equity investments designated at far ERENAAEEFBARE D
velue through other comprehensive income AR HA N HERRE = = = (1,389) > 1,389 = = .
Finel 2021 cividend declared (Note 19) KR EERARE N 1) = = = = - (B4 (84) - (84)
Dividends declared by a subsidiary tots non- ~ HEATRA FEFARESHRS
controlling interests = = = = = = - (10,036) (10,036)
As at 31 December 2022 i g o 2967542 1,315,483 448,895 - 04 231731 7,060,361 (163,612) 6,896,749
As at 1 January 2021 R-2--£-§-A 2,967,542 1,315,483 406,481 330 (627) 2525453 7217,659 121619 7339278
Loss for the year Epg = = = = = (208,332) (208,332) (234,938) (443.270)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EREREARE
Change in far vaue of equity investments ~ SEEMAA BB EAZET:AL
esignated a far value through other e YaRERAN DA ER
comprehensive income, net of tax SE(NRGE) - - - (2,146) - - (2,146) - (2,146)
Exchange difference on translaion of foreign NN EEEBHE 28
ongrations - - - - 597 - 597 469 1,066
Tota comprehensive losses for the year ENGABRLE - - - (2,146) 57 (0833 (209881 (234469) (444 350)
Approprition to statutory suplus reserve. A ATRHEE - - 10915 - - (10,15) - - -
Final 2020 dividend declared (Note 13) BRI EEERERE (D) = = = = = (132,352) (132,352) S (132,352)
Dividends declared by a sbsidiary tofis non- ~ HEATRA FEFARES SRS
controlling interests - - - - - - - (7,000) (7,000)
As at 31 December 2021 WN-B-F+-A=1-H 2967542 1315483 417,3% 1,181 (300 2173854 6875426 (119.850) 6,756,576
* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ZERBRF RS AHATIRRZT A A B

RMB4,092,819,000 (31 December 2021:
consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A [1f AN =i —1

SRS M=ER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-—_F+-A=t"HILFE

2022 2021
—F_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr A EBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BAIFE(BR): 296,795 (378,212)
Adjustments for: FEIER
Finance costs g g 199,335 221,959
Interest income FEHA (8,296) (6,978)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEMZETE
equipment 15 467,658 509,722
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ERH 16 28,690 26,465
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 17 26,052 25,070
Amortisation of other non-current assets  E fth 3F 7t £h°& A= B £ 102,719 123,596
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEVE  BEMREEBEE®
plant and equipment Bk 6 167 21,904
Loss on disposal of items of intangible  EEEFEEER MIEKL
assets 6 - 2,533
Gain on disposal of items of right-of-use & #AEAEEB WS
assets 6 = (75)
Amortisation of government grants R 4 B Y 2 5 (2,095) (1,872)
Impairment losses on trade receivables, ZZEKFZIRMERE @ FHE
net 23 16,518 22,924

(Reversal of impairment)/impairment
losses on other receivables, net
Impairment loss on property, plant and

HAb U ERIBCRIERD ), 5
EEE - F58 24 (25,837) 18,717
Y - BEMREREEIE

equipment 15 - 45,638
Reversal of impairment on contract AREERERRD - FE
assets, net 22 (1,006) (2,511)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(18n) 51,043 (14,322)
Decrease in contract assets EREERD 81,046 474,153
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills B 5 MW IR T e U = i
receivables (3gm), (777,090) 432,942
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, other FE{TZIA  E b fEUFRIEFI E A
receivables and other assets BEEM), R (19,669) 48,053
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SR HIIR SR A, (35 n) 29,266 (53,877)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills Z 5 FE FRIB M FER iR i,
payab|es ()\WQ\) 21 7,470 (325,41 1)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and EfbfE{tZIBAMETE H1E N0,
accruals R ) 39,437 (200,925)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions BECRL),/#Emn (123,331) 117,091
Cash generated from operations KEFBEEANRE 598,872 1,106,584
Income tax paid EAFTISE (67,526) (119,549)
Net cash flows generated from operating #X&EFATSH & M2 F5E
activities 531,346 987,035

T _EEERE 145
AREBRREXEERNARAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
affRenER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

2022 2021
—F_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BEF B 8,296 6,978
Purchase of items of property, plant and B E®Z¥ - BMEMNRE « EFE
equipment, intangible assets and other ~ EXRHMIERSEEIER
non-current assets (325,729) (403,566)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEWE  BEMZEEE RS
property, plant and equipment FIH 27 —
Receipt of government grants for WEIBTE Y BB MR IR
property, plant and equipment BB 2,000 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EEFE MR &R EFHE (315,406) (396,588)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHELENBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings and RITIER R EME B FIR
other loans 6,801,075 7,668,037
Repayments of bank borrowings and BERRITERREMER
other loans (7,098,408) (7,775,155)
Principal portion of lease payments SRNHEERE (4,441) (20,208)
Dividends paid to shareholders IR F AR AR B (87,735) (511,726)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests J& 1~ F IF1EBEAEZS AL B (12,729) (14,080)
Interest paid BERF A (187,266) (223,596)
Net cash flows used in financing activities Bt & EENFE MR &M EFHE (589,504) (876,728)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4& MBS EMNR D B
EQUIVALENTS (373,564) (286,281)
Cash and cash equivalents at FEHREMREEEY
beginning of year 1,244,882 1,531,739
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, BN EFE
net 878 (576)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREESNREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 25 872,196 1,244,882
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERFEEEEBAR
A BERAF]) (the “Company”) was established on 25 July 2011 in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") with limited liability.
On 26 June 2015, the Company was converted into a joint stock
company with limited liability from a limited liability company.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) since 15 November 2016. The address of
its registered office is No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities: environmental
protection facility concession operation, the manufacture and
sale of denitrification catalysts, environmental protection facility
engineering, water treatment business, energy conservation
business and renewable energy engineering business.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (“Directors”), the
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company is China Datang Corporation Ltd. (“China Datang”),
a company established and domiciled in the PRC and wholly-
owned by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), the
functional currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X E s
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries

Details of the Company’'s subsidiaries are as follows:

1. —REHGR)
ARRELTHEH

ARBMEARNFELT

attributable to the Company

Percentage of equity

Place of lssued and fully __ (%
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ FRARKRRADL(%)
Name registration registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
- ERfH4R

£ MY/ B S B /e E% BE  IEEER

China Datang Technologies & Engineering Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC RMB180,000,000 56.00 - Development of environmental protection
(FEAEEERETRERLR) RELR AE 180,000,007 technology and provision of engineering
("Technologies & Engineering Company”) sei/ces ig the /P_RC

HEAESERRTRERAA ( [HEAIRAR] ) AR SRRANR SRR TR R

Datang Nanjing Environmental Protection Technology Nanjing, the PRC RMB124,630,000 9.1 - Development and sale of catalysts; and provision
Co, Ltd. (RERRERMEBRRLAR) RERR NRH124,630,0007C of testing services in the PRC
(“Nanjing Environmental Protection ) EREN Sl R EAHE N R R

AERRBRIEAREERR ( [ERER]

Datang Technologies & Engineering India Private Limited  Mumbai, India Indian rupees - 100.00  Provision of engineering services in India
(RERRTEDEERLT) (“Technologies & AEZE 1,000,000 REERI TR
Engineering India") S 51,000,000

AEMRIREEERAR ( [NRIRAEAR)

Datang Beijing Energy Saving & Technology Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC RMB10,000,000 65.00 - Provision of project management, engineering
(RESRIBERTARAR) RELR ARH10,000,0007 and technology services in the PRC
("Energy Saving & Technology | ERERZEEER  TRARES

RE (IR) BRdERAT ( [HeRmAR)

Datang Beijing Water Engineering & Technology Co, Ltd. ~ Beijing, the PRC RMB337,976,000 100.00 - Provision of technology services, energy saving
(RERKBIERIERAR) RER AE%337,976,0007C technology promotion services and water
“Water Engineering & Technology’| engineering services in the PRC

RE (1R) KBIRREARAR ( [ABIRAR] ) E¢ﬁ§$&%%%‘%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%&*%l

i

Zhejiang Datang Tiandi Environmental Technology Co., ~ Ningbo, the PRC RMB60,000,000 66.00 - Development of pollution improvement
Ltd. (I AE R BRRARAR) REER AE 60,000,000 environmental protection technology and
("Tiandi Environmental") provision of technolagy services in the PRC

PINERRRIBERAT ( [REBRAR] ) B E AU ERRR AT AR AR R

Datang (Jiangsu) Environmental Protection Equipment  Jiangsu, the PRC RMB38,000,000 100.00 - Development and sale of catalysts; and provision
Co, Ltd. (RE(THIRREBARAA) RELE ARH38,000,0007 of testing services in the PRC
("Jiangsu Environmental Protection’) Rt ER I EFENHE N RRARE

AE (I&) BREFERAA ( [IHER]

u The names of these companies referred to in this report

represent management’s best effort at translating the Chinese
names of the companies, as no English names have been
registered. The above companies are all limited companies.
Note 1:0n 28 July 2021, the Company approved the liquidation of MiEr - RZTE=Z—F+tA=+/\B ' &R

Jiangsu Nanjing Thermal Electricity Engineering Design Institute
Co., Ltd. (T#fm mAAE T2RF T AREME AR, a subsidiary
of the Company. The liquidation was completed on 29 October
2021.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows (continued):

Note 2:0n 28 July 2021, the Company approved the liquidation of
Beijing Datang Hengtong Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (3t
RAFEEBREARAT), a subsidiary of the Company. The
liguidation was completed on 31 December 2021.

Note 3:0n 23 June 2021, the Company approved the application for
Water Engineering & Technology absorbed Datang (Beijing)
Energy Management Co., Ltd. (KE (L R)EEREERER A A), a
subsidiary of the Company. The absorption was completed on
23 August 2021 which was the combination date, and Water
Engineering & Technology undertook its assets and liabilities
as at the combination date.

Note 4:0n 22 August 2022, the Company established a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Datang (Jiangsu) Environmental Protection
Equipment Co., Ltd. (RE(T#)IRREFEFRAF) in the PRC,
with its registered capital of RMB38 million.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has applied the following
amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and International Accounting Standards (“IASs") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2018-2020

The adoption of these amendments to IFRSs did not have significant
impact on the Group's financial performance and financial position.
The Group has not early applied any new or amendments to IFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_ZT-_—F+_fA=+—HILHFE

2

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to standards that have
been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and amendments to IFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date

become effective.

IFRS 17 (including the October

2020 and February 2022
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

FE PR #E & BT B P B 355 4R 5 48

RI(#&)

E MBI REBBHETRIEES

AR

ZER B I R TR B FE A TN 51 SR A SR B e B
KRB - B BAME N AR ER
Al RSERTER B RE LR - AE
BB AETENEM A MERZEES -

BB SR E 2R RERAL)
F175R(BIE
—E-FF+A
E—TB-—fF
— AR
RAEYERIFE 757
CHEN)

BEIBRBI SRR REEHEEEE
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to standards that have
been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

The above new and amendments to existing standards do not
expect to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group will adopt the new and
amendments to IFRSs to existing standards when they become
effective.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs which collective term includes all
applicable individual IFRSs, IASs and Interpretations issued
by the IASB, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all of the years presented unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new and amendments to IFRSs
and the impacts on the Group's financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in Note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain trade and
bills receivables and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity, directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e. existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary; (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests; and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received; (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment
test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& BB BRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it
is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and other infrastructure
Machinery Hees

Transportation vehicles EHTA
Office equipment and others
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under
construction and equipment under installation, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Patents
Purchased patents are stated at cost less any impairment

losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Non-patent technology

Non-patent technology represents capitalised deferred
expenditures available for use and is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Development expenditures that have been recorded in
profit or loss in previous periods will not be recognised
as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised development
expenditures are included in intangible assets as appropriate
according to their nature.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment

losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realizable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Investment and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’'s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers in accordance with the policies
set out for section “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Investment and other financial assets

(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at FVTOCI are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at FVPTL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EgBFHEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Investment and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)

For debt investments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to
profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (equity
investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at FVTOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Investment and other financial assets

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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F+A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Investment and other financial assets

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Investment and other financial assets

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are generally within 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at FVTOCI and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& BB BRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Investment and other financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

(j) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement of financial
liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables by the Group as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other loans are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortied cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

()] Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component
and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 30 to 47 years
Buildings and other

infrastructure 15 to 30 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank borrowings and other loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EFERHBREBIE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Leases (Continued) (m) HE(R)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. \When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& BB BRI A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial position of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate.

(o) Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of these subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

&
3

m—m——

=

5=

F+A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of an overseas subsidiary which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3 FESBFREEGE)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sale of industrial products

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of denitrification catalysts.

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the industrial products.

Construction contracts

The Group provides construction services with
respect to the engineering projects in relation to
desulfurisation and denitrification facilities at coal-
fired power plants, wind power plants, solar power
plants, coal-fired power plants and coal yards.

Revenue from the provision of construction services
is recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction
of the service, because the Group's performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
input method recognises revenue based on the
proportions of the actual costs incurred relative to
the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the
construction services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(c)

Rendering of desulfurisation and denitrification
services

The Group is engaged in providing desulfurisation
and denitrification services to power plants under
the concession operation contracts for a period of
the life cycle of the power plants.

Revenue from the rendering of desulfurisation
and denitrification services is recognised over
the scheduled period because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

The considerations are stipulated by the relevant
government authorities and measured at certain
amounts per kWh of the electricity generated by
the power plants.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

2022 Annual Report

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

FESBRREEGE)

e A\ w2 (#8)
HEFZMARELHBA ()

(c)  1EHEBTHERE

AEERBFFEEER
REEHMELBARREE
TR B St A At B 5 i AR TS

P i % 5t i AR 7% ) M A FE
BREMNMRAER - B
EFRBESIBEETA
SEREHAFE o

Ca T BELE T
HPE - EUBERS
FREMETERIE -

RUFFEEIKEA

A & U A 72 F8 B R 2 B R B )
EHER - MRBRIEHERD
AR AEMRAERENS TN
ERABBA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets
are subject to impairment assessment, details of which
are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control
of the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalization of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(t) Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, pension insurance, social insurance and housing
funds, labour union fees, employees’ education fees and
other expenses related to the employees for their services.
The Group recognises employee benefits as liabilities during
the accounting period when employees render the services
and allocates the related cost of assets and expenses based
on different beneficiaries.

(a) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plans is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group primarily pays contributions on a monthly
basis to participate in a pension plan organised by
relevant municipal and provincial governments in
the PRC. The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
employees payable under these plans. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations for further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
their current and past services. Contributions made
are charged to profit or loss.

Other social insurance and housing funds

The Group provides other social insurance and
housing funds to the qualified employees in the
PRC based on certain percentages of their salaries.
These percentages are not to exceed the upper
limits of the percentages prescribed by the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the
PRC. These benefits are paid to social security
organisations and the amounts are expensed as
incurred. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations for further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to their current and past services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity).

(iii) The entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain trade and bills receivables
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(y) Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate the lease.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
leases of buildings and other infrastructure due to the significance
of these assets to its operations. These leases have a normally five-
year non-cancellable period and there will be a significant negative
effect on production if a replacement is not readily available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the probability of default approach to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets with related parties.
The probability of default is estimated on the published credit rating
of the related parties while the loss given default is estimated
based on 100%, as adjusted for forward-looking information.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets with third parties. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type,
customer type and credit rating). The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The
Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

If forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's contract
assets and trade receivables is disclosed in Note 22 and Note 23
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group periodically reviews the
changes in market conditions, expected physical wear and tear,
and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the useful
life of the asset is based on historical experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The depreciation
amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed, at the end of the reporting period, based on
changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was nil (31 December
2021: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2022 was RMB958.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB655.9
million). Further details are contained in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Percentage of completion of construction contracts

Revenue from individual contracts is recognised to the progress
of completion of the project. The determination of the progress of
construction service is based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the
construction services. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction works, the date at which the activity is entered into
and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods, hence, the Group reviews and revises
the percentage of completion of construction works based on the
regular review of estimated total costs for construction. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract
costs are more than expected, a foreseeable loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development costs in Note 3(f) to the
consolidated financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was
RMB50.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB76.6 million).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group's operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to their nature. Each
of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that provides services which are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of the other operating segments.
Summary details of the operating segments are as follows:

(a) Environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions

The environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions business mainly includes flue gas desulfurisation
and denitrification facility concession operation for coal-fired
power plants; the manufacture and sale of denitrification
catalysts; engineering for coal-fired power plants, including
the engineering of denitrification, desulfurisation, dust
removal, ash and slag handling and other environmental
protection facilities and industrial site dust management
related engineering; water treatment; and energy
conservation including energy conservation facility
engineering and energy management contracting (“EMC").

(b) Renewable energy engineering

The renewable energy engineering business mainly includes
the engineering general contracting for newly-built wind
power plants, biomass power plants and photovoltaic power
plants.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B O RR I

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ﬁﬁ
5.

E-_—F+-A=t—HItEE

OPERATING SEGMENT
(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION

(c) Thermal power engineering

The thermal power engineering business mainly includes
the engineering procurement construction (“EPC") services
for thermal power plants.

(d) Other businesses

Other businesses currently mainly include various
businesses such as fiberglass chimney anti-corrosion and
air cooling system engineering general contracting.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that other income and losses, other expenses,
non-lease-related finance costs as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets and liabilities mainly comprise operating assets
and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets exclude unallocated intangible assets, unallocated
deferred tax assets, unallocated prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other loans (other than lease liabilities) for daily
operation purposes and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

BE-T

=

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
FHZA=+—RHALFE

5. WBESBEMGR)

Environmental

protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Year ended 31 December 2022 solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
RIRER nEE
BZ-Z-_F{-A=t-HLEE S HEIR KEIR R ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT AEETT ARETT
Segment revenue (Note 6) 2B (Fir3E6)
Sales to external customers FSNPEFHEE 5,088,044 195,533 = 39,145 5,322,722
Intersegment sales PEHBEE = = = 31,066 31,066
5,088,044 195,533 - 70,211 5,353,788
Reconciliation: Bk
Elimination of intersegment sales PRI EHE (31,066)
Revenue WA 5,322,722
Segment results PREE 718,914 (53,827) - (15,344) 649,743
Reconciliation: 4k -
Other income and losses HisERiEk 111,465
Other expenses, net EthF%TE (8,561)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease 81X H (P BIEFALAIFE
liahilities which is included in corporate RS EETNHEAER
and other unallocated expenses) ROFISER) (186,745)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ AAIAIEM A EHE (269,107)
Profit before tax BRI AT 296,795
Segment assets PUNEE 16,983,097 918,215 32,244 81,064 18,014,620
Reconciliation: -

Elimination of intersegment receivables &7 EBREIENZUEL #

Unallocated intangible assets RORENEE

Unallocated deferred tax assets ROREEREEE

Unallocated prepayments, other receivables AARFBENFUA « EfnfEMzT
and other assets ERAMEE

Restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents R[B#EE BLMELE

E"

Other unallocated head office and corporate  EAAPEAHMAEEE
assets

Total assets BEE

(2,273,024)

15,741,596

20,172
19,226

292,825

964,534

1,309,904

18,348,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. {EE5%88M(#E)

(CONTINUED)
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Year ended 31 December 2022 solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
RFHR CIft:
BZ-Z_-F{-A=t-HLEE S HRIR KEIR EfES &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETZ
Segment liabilities PUEE 10,248,473 994,587 43,950 128,689 11,415,699
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment payables EDBEMENTIBESE (2,273,024)
9,142,675
Unallocated interest-bearing bank FRARGTERTERNEMER
borrowings and other loans (other than (TBREHESE)
lease liabilities) 1,989,126
Other unallocated head office and corporate EMAPEASMAEEE
liabilities 319,707
Total liabilities EafE 11,451,508
Other segment information At HEER
Impairment of trade receivables B RN ERE 19,599 (3,081) = = 16,518
Reversal of impairment on contract assets &R AEHEAE (1,008) = = = (1,006)
Reversal of impairment on financial SARMTE « AfhEKTIE
assets included in prepayments, other REMEENSREERE
receivables and other assets A (7,120) (18,7117) - - (25,837)
Reversal of impairment recognised in profit RERERRHEBLER -
or loss, net et 11,473 (21,798) - - (10,325)
Depreciation and amortisation FEMEH 607,142 130 - 17,847 625,119
Capital expenditure* EARBETH 172,178 - - = 172,178
- Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and o BARTBERNREWME BMEMK
equipment and intangible assets. BAREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ot B A5 ¥R MY e (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. #EE5%88M(#E)
(CONTINUED)

Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Year ended 31 December 2021 solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
g
BHECZ--FT-A=T—HIEFE BRIR KEITE Bt a%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AEEFT T
Segment revenue (Note 6) 2B (Fir3E6)
Sales to external customers mMSBEPEE 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,694 5,288,416
Intersegment sales AEMHEE - - - 7,295 7,295
4,913,028 307,767 927 73,989 5,295,711
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment sales AEHRHERE (7,295)
Revenue WA 5,288,416
Segment results PHEE 37,670 22,550 (35) (17,884) 42,301
Reconciliation: i
Other income and losses HipaERiER 80,436
Other expenses, net HR 55 (42,145)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease  BF S i (P EERT AR RIFIE
liahilities which is included in corporate ‘rﬁﬁi Eiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ,\fﬁﬁ’@
and other unallocated expenses) RNFISER) (208,776)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2 ﬁﬂﬁifﬁﬁ IS (250,028)
Loss before tax BRERIER (378,212)
Segment assets PHEE 15,940,093 1,488,684 36,432 90,167 17,555,376
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables ERBREMERTIEEE (1,974,394)
15,580,982
Unallocated intangible assets RORENEE 21,794
Unallocated deferred tax assets RAREEHEEAE 19,905
Unallocated prepayments, other receivables ARAETERZUE « E B
and other assets EREMEE 232,839
Restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents XB#HES BLMELE
L) 1,366,486
Other unallocated head office and corporate  Eft AN FELMAEEE
assets 1,206,380
Total assets BAE 18,428,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B O RR I

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—
5.

Tt _A=1t—HBLFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. #EESIWPEME)
(CONTINUED)
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Year ended 31 December 2021 solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
ﬁ?ﬁ% g
BE-S-—F+-A=+-HIZFE EAMRES KETHE ERE Ai
FFMB 000 RMB'000 /?MB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
BT (E¥FT ANEBFIT AR
Segment liabilities PHEE 9,662,489 1,338,619 59,941 138,630 11,199,679
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment payables EDBEMENTIBESE (1,974,394)
9,225,285
Unallocated interest-bearing bank borrowings &2t st ERTRIFMEME
and other loans (other than lease liahiliies) (TEEREEE) 2,141,859
Other unallocated head office and corporate EMANEALNAEEE
liabilities 305,666
Total liabilities BaE 11,672,810
Other segment information HthAHER
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 9% « BEARERE 45,638 - - - 45,638
Impairment of trade receivables B RN ERE 11,295 629 = - 22,924
Reversal of impairment on contract assets AR &ERERE (2,511) - = - (2,511)
Impairment of financial assets included in 5T ATE{IFUR » E el FUR
prepayments, other receivables and REMEERN S REERNE
other assets - 18,717 - - 18,717
Impairment losses recognised in profit or ~ MNERBERMEERRX @ FE
loss, net 54,422 30,346 - - 84,768
Depreciation and amortisation FEMNEH 663,600 62 51 21,140 684,853
Capital expenditure* EARX 123,944 - - 5,060 129,004
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and o ERARALBREAEDE  BEMK

equipment and intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The majority of the non-current assets are located in Mainland
China, and the majority of revenue is generated from Mainland
China. Therefore, no further geographical information is presented.
Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB4,070 million (2021: RMB4,478
million) was derived from the sale of goods and the rendering of

services to China Datang and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group)
("China Datang Group").

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

EESHEMGE)

HERH

BRYITENFERBEEMRTE - £F
EEMWARERPBEARE - FLI &
25 EAE D BEF

REBEERBRMEM
KEFEAEREMBAR(RAEE
51) (TR Bl A B4 ) 365 B 2 P2 4 AR

WAL BARKL07068ETL(ZF
——F AR¥4,478EETT) ©

WA - Hfuly s R iRk

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADTAT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Revenue from contracts with customers B2 5 7 & RIELE MU A 5,322,722 5,288,215
Revenue from other sources E A ZRRBA
Gross rental income from operating B E MBI A
leases
Other lease payments, including HEMBEENR - BREEEHEE
fixed payments B¢ = 201
5,322,722 5,288,416
T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_ZT-_—F+_fA=+—HILHFE
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6. A s Httir @ RiEx(18)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BERZMSRAEEHBA
(i) BARHAE

BE-—g-_—#+=-A=t+—-A

LEE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Operating segments solutions  engineering  engineering businesses Total
BRE# AEE
KERH BARRR HRIRE AEIR Hith 2% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AR®TR ARETR
Types of goods or services ~ BERHRHERL
Sale of industrial products BETEER 364,835 - - 32,276 397,111
Construction services RiERS 466,755 195,533 - 6,869 669,157
Desulfurisation and denitrificationfi 7 K it 8 AR
services 4,256,454 - - - 4,256,454
Total revenue from contracts EEF 2 HARELN
with customers LON -+ 5,088,044 195,533 - 39,145 5,322,722
Timing of revenue recognition W AREFREGE
Goods transferred at a point in - X —HEHEBAER
time 364,835 - - 32,276 397,111
Services transferred over time  fE—EBiERREIAELANE
& 4,723,209 195,533 - 6,869 4,925,611
Total revenue from contracts EEFzBARELMN
with customers 9N 5 5,088,044 195,533 - 39,145 5,322,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& Ot S R MY (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6. WA - Hfili@RiA%K (&)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) %ﬁ! E) BEzHESREENKA
HE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) RAEE SR (#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—T-—4F+=-A=+—H
IEFE

Environmental

protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Operating segments solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
RIR %ﬁﬁ EE
BENH Y RRLIE NETR Hih %% =H
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFT ‘ T ' ARETFT ANEEFT
Types of goods or services ~ BERHRHERL
Sale of industrial products HETEER 317,464 - - 55,534 372,998
Construction services RERY 580,471 307,767 927 10,959 900,124
Desulfurisation and denitrification A7 K i fis R %
services 4,015,093 - - - 4,015,093
Total revenue from contracts EEF 2 HARELMN
with customers LN Gy 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
Timing of revenue recognition W AREFREGE
Goods transferred at a point in X —FEEBAER
time 317,464 - - 55,534 372,998
Services transferred over time  fE—EBREREIAEANE
% 4,595,564 307,767 927 10,959 4,915,217
Total revenue from contracts EZF 2BARELMN
with customers LON -+ 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BT BRI E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-__F+_HF=+—HILFE
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6. kA HfuSREx(E)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) HEFRZHSRAEENKA
(#)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) IRAEH SR (#E)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TEREINEEF 2HERELRN
contracts to customers with the amounts disclosed in the WABESBEMAEE BN
segment information: R :
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_Z2-_—_f+=-H=+-—H
LEE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable Thermal
conservation energy power Other
Operating segments solutions  engineering  engineering businesses Total
RRER AEE
KERH BARRR HRIRE REIR Hith %% At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AR®TR ARETR
Revenue from contracts with HEFZHARELMN
customers KA
External customers SEBEF 5,088,044 195,533 = 39,145 5,322,722
Intersegment sales NEEHEE = = = 31,066 31,066
5,088,044 195,533 - 70,211 5,353,788
Intersegment adjustments and &S EFESE
eliminations - - - (31,066) (31,066)
Total revenue from contracts HEEFzBMARELMN
with customers LN 5 5,088,044 195,533 - 39,145 5,322,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6. WA - EthikSREX (1)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) HEFRZHESRAEENKA
(#)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) RAEE SR (#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—T-—4F+=-A=+—H
1IEFE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Operating segments solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
RIRETRE EE
BENH Y RTIE Hih %% =H
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(REFr ARETFT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with HEFZHARELMN
customers KA
External customers SRR 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
Intersegment sales PEHEHE - - - 7,295 7,295
4,913,028 307,767 927 73,788 5,295,510
Intersegment adjustments and 7 SRR AR A
eliminations - - = (7,295) (7,295)
Total revenue from contracts HEEFzBMARELMN
with customers LON -+ 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6.

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

WA - Efhllrs R iRK (&)

BERZHAaREEHEA

€

)

=
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) IRAEH SR (#E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRET AR E B R A WA
recognised in the current reporting period that were ©R  RESERREHBUEA
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of SRBETEBENBTHAEAR
the reporting period and recognised from performance RAEIBMISARER
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2022 2021
—E=—_ —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Revenue recognised that was ARG EHYIERAENE
included in contract liabilities at the HERRULA :
beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETEEMm 2,625 26,929
Construction services BERTS 72,376 252,187
75,001 279,116
(ii) Performance obligations (i)  EHEFE

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the industrial products and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within one year
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment
is retained by customers until the end of the retention
period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment
is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Desulfurisation and denitrification services

Under the concession operation contracts, the Group is
engaged in providing desulfurisation and denitrification
services to power plants for a period of the life cycle
of the power plants. The performance obligations are
satisfied over time as customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. The
payment is generally due within 30 days from the date
of billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as

BT RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

WA -~ Efhllrs 5 iRK (&)

BERZCHEREENIA
(#%)

(ii)

Vig ok 2AC )
R R A v R 7%

ERFREART ARERH
BRUE EIR MM B EMIR LR
KBRS - BOBBEREN
HENREREER  BREF
RANESIHE T ASERHN
e - NAEMBEEERSZAR
30KRIA °

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—AHK
—E-_—4F+_-_A=1+—HB5K
ERBBEHBRECRERL I H K

follows: ERNRZERET
2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT

Amounts expected to be TERHERW AR S5
recognised as revenue

Within one year —FR 408,961 472,428

The amounts of transactions prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue within one year related to
construction services, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years.

DEZEFRKRER —FAT T
AHERBWRARNRIBREHZETH
RBERNEERS - MERT
KZKEHET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 6.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

WA - Efhllrs R iRK (&)

REFRCHMERAEEMHBA

i)

(i) ¥R (&)

Desulfurisation and denitrification services (Continued) Fi o R A i R (4B )
2022 2021
—E-C —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
OTHER INCOME H s
Interest income FBUA 8,742 8,520
Government grants (Note) BT B (B 3E) 92,014 100,564
Exchange gains b 5 Ytz 10,876 =
111,632 109,084
2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARKEFIT
OTHER LOSSES, NET HttB%k - B8
Loss on disposal of items of REWF  WMENREEEH
property, plant and equipment 8k (167) (21,904)
Loss on disposal of items of RERVEERFERAEEEDN
intangible assets and right-of- =B
use assets = (2,458)
Exchange losses b M8k - (4,286)
(167) (28,648)
111,465 80,436

Note: The amount mainly represents the income related to the VAT
refunds received by the Group. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, there were no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attaching to the government grants that had been recognised

by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER EXPENSES, NET 7. HhpAsZ - /B8
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARETF T
Compensation gains (Note a) BEE s (fisEa) - (52,671)
Exchange differences arising from RAFABBRBEEENER
provision for pending litigation losses  Z=%8 8,929 -
Estimated pending litigation losses fHETARREFFAB R (I 5ED)
(Note b) - 97,316
Other gains H e (368) (2,500)
8,561 42,145
Note a:In November 2016, the Group's subsidiary, Technologies fisfa: —T—AFE+— A BEIEAQ

& Engineering Company and two other third parties have
entered into an arrangement with Datang Hami 13th Division
Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd., (“Datang Xinjiang”)
to construct a wind farm. As required by the arrangement,
Technologies & Engineering Company purchased 33 wind
turbines from Jiangsu Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power Co., Ltd.
("Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power"). In March 2017, Jiuding Tiandi
Wind Power received a notice from Datang Xinjiang that the
construction of the wind farm may be suspended. After a
series of negotiation between the parties, Jiuding Tiandi Wind
Power brought an arbitration proceeding against Technologies
& Engineering Company in December 2018. In June 2020, the
arbitration authority ruled that Technologies & Engineering
Company shall compensate Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power for
economic losses in an aggregate amount of RMB98,865,000
(the “Ruling”).

On 21 June 2020, Technologies & Engineering Company
submitted an application to the Fourth Intermediate People's
Court of Beijing (the “Court”) to overrule the Ruling. On 6
July 2020, the application has been duly accepted by the
Court. On 3 September 2020, the Court issued a civil ruling,
dismissing the application for revocation of the Ruling by
Technologies & Engineering Company. Subsequent to the
civil ruling, Technology & Engineering Company and Jiuding
Tiandi Wind Power reached an agreement regarding the above
compensation amount.

E(K AlZMBAR)MBINEER
= ARERERE +=MFZ
BERAEARAR(KEHRE]

ARFFTTEREAEZNHE
REBHER BRI ERAFMA

IENRAREEBRAR( LR
KRR DRBET =+ =R E#
He—_FT—tF=R - h@EXi#
REEEE T REFEOBA © ZA
BISEEFER - KBEH—F
FMHE - hBRHREAER=Z
—N\F+ZAURIFTRARIRE
MBHRF ST FA M
HEBH TR TIREARERNE
KR AL B E A ER AT ARKE
98,865,000 T ([&#R]) °

—E-BFRAST—B BRI
RAR MR T AL RARAR
(T358% ) IR BN BR M =R o

—E-TELANA  ZHBER
W%ﬁ%ﬁo:?:%iﬂﬁz

CREREATRERES K
@T%#&I%”"Thﬂjﬁﬁﬁéiﬁz/?&
CELZ R BHRTRE AT
Eﬁiﬂyﬁﬁiiﬁﬂ ent DA AR E S RRE
B e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B O RR I

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T —F+-A=+—HItEE

OTHER EXPENSES, NET (CONTINUED)

ﬁﬁ
7.

Note a:

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the two parties
signed a settlement agreement, and the penalty interest on
Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power was exempted from payment.
Therefore, Technologies & Engineering Company transferred
the corresponding penalty interest of RMB3,239,000 to other
income, and the remaining compensation was repaid as of 31
December 2021.

In addition, in August 2021,
compensation agreement with Technologies & Engineering

Datang Xinjiang signed a

Company, which stipulated that Datang Xinjiang would pay
a total of RMB49,432,000 in compensation to Technologies
& Engineering Company for above matters and Technologies
& Engineering Company recorded the compensation in other
income during the year ended 31 December 2021 accordingly.

Note b:On 16 March 2019, the Group’s subsidiaries, Technologies &

Engineering Company and Technologies & Engineering India
signed construction contracts for desulfurisation and wet
chimney with Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited
("GSECL"). Due to the impact of COVID-19, the construction
progress was delayed and GSECL issued a formal notice which
stated that it might take measures such as terminating the
contract, redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
entrusting the work to others to complete. The Group fully
accrued provisions of RMB75,848,000 for the redemption of
the performance guarantee letter, and also considered that the
corresponding advance receipts of RMB25,835,000 would no
longer be obligated to be returned after the redemption of the
performance guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses
of RMB50,013,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
accordingly. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
performance guarantee letter of RMB75,848,000 has been
fully redeemed.
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SRRV EERELT - B
gt BB IRARKEENIIEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER EXPENSES, NET (CONTINUED) 7.

Note b: (Continued) BiaEb : (48)

HpAZ - BE(E)

On 6 March 2020, Technologies & Engineering Company signed
a construction contract with NLC India Limited (“NLC India").
Due to the impact of the COVID-19, the construction progress
was delayed, and NLC India issued a formal notice to request to
terminate the contract and redeem the performance guarantee
letter amounting to RMB47,303,000. In addition, the claims
brought by NLC India also include the costs incurred in re-
tendering and the arbitration progress. The Group fully accrued
a provision of RMB47,303,000 for the request of redeeming
the performance guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses
of RMB47,303,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021

RZZE-_FTF=A"H  BFIE
AFENLC India Limited ([NLC
India )5 BREABARE - BAH
BREBEVE BEIRFER
HINLC IndiaZ HIE B » B3R
RIEARI H A ELOREARE
47,303,0007T ° 4 © NLC India
RHEMFATREREENFIEE
EMEBR MEEFELENER
o AEEHHHMRRUEEEE
TR B A R#47,303,0007T ¢

THERSEZE-_Z-_—F+-A=
+—HALFEEAHMBAIARE
47,303,0007C - REZE =T ==
FE+-—A=+—RALLEE - ARK
47,303,000 K B4R B 2 50 fE

accordingly. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
performance guarantee letter of RMB47,303,000 has been
fully redeemed.

@ o
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. M#HXH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: W EATOT
2022 2021
—=E-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENF S 12,590 13,183
Interest expenses on bank borrowings — #R17 & F A E b & 7 F B 52 H
and other loans 186,880 208,776
Less: interest capitalised B BAEFE (135) =
199,335 221,959

BE_Z_—_F#+-_A=+—HL#HF

The Group's capitalisation rate for the year ended 31 December

2022 was 3.1% (for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil). B AEENFBEERER3N1% (B
E-F--F+t-A=+—RLEFE:
T)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B=
9.

T —F+-_A=+—HItFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 9. MAET(IE%) Fi#E
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREBRAFE, (BX) D& A
(crediting): B GIA) LT EEEEE
2022 2021
=8== —ZE-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
HisE ARMF 7 ARKETTE
Cost of goods sold 727 am S B B AR 298,187 277,915
Cost of services provided IR AR TSR AR 4,235,114 4,669,070
Cost of sales (Note a) SHE A (FisEa) 4,533,301 4,946,985
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BEMREITE
equipment 15 467,658 509,722
Amortisation of intangible assets & E B 16 28,690 26,465
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {EREEERE 17(a) 26,052 25,070
Amortisation of other non-current  HHIERE)E 2 1
assets 102,719 123,596
Research and development g R
expenses 38,029 59,891
Lease payments not included in the Kt AGtEHREEEH
measurement of lease liabilities FHEEE 17(c) 6,719 15,014
Auditor's remuneration ZEEM B & 2,260 3,230
Employee benefit expense EERARZ(TREE
(excluding Directors’ and =580 85 =5 557
Supervisors' remuneration (Note (fzE10)):
10)):
Wages, salaries and allowances, I & - #H<MMERL - 4
social securities and benefits SIREMEF 316,584 335,060
Pension scheme contributions BRSETEIHR (AT H
(defined contribution scheme) Sar &) (fisEb)
(Note b) 47,675 47,495
364,259 382,555
Impairment of financial and contract & B&EMMA FEER
assets, net: BE)F5E ¢
Reversal of impairment on SREERERR
contract assets 22 (1,006) (2,511)
Impairment losses on trade B 2 WG IERES
receivables i 23 16,518 22,924
(Reversal of impairment)/ T ATERTFRIE - HApb
impairment losses on JFEWRIE J EAth &
financial assets included in ENdmEECRE
prepayments, other receivables B E),/BiEEIE
and other assets 24 (25,837) 18,717
(10,325) 39,130
Impairment loss on property, plant %1% - BEMRERE
and equipment E5i8 15 - 45,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 9. #BI(i&%) FIiBE(#&)

Note a: Cost of sales include RMB420,155,000 (2021: RMB482,993,000), Mia: BHE-_T-_—F+=-_A=+—H
RMB9,646,000 (2021: RMB14,078,000), RMB26,052,000 (2021: HEFENHERKABEDE - K
RMB25,070,000), RMB101,986,000 (2021: RMB123,347,000) EMEZERTE BEEE#E -
and RMB103,900,000 (2021: RMB112,017,000) for the year ERABEENE HMFERdHE
ended 31 December 2022, relating to depreciation of property, EEHENUKEERINBIS A
plant and equipment, amortisation of intangible assets, AR % 420,155,000 ﬁ(:?:*
depreciation of right-of-use assets, amortisation of other non- F: ANE%482,993,0007T )
current assets and employee benefit expense which are also K #9,646,000 T( =& = i
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately AR #14,078,000T) - AR M
above. 26,052,000 T( =T = —F: A

K #% 25,070,000t )+ AR #

101,986,000 t( ZF = —F : A

K # 123,347,000t ) AR #

103,900,000 (= =—%F : AR

#112,017,0007T) * & FRIATRET A

R EX D FRENSEFIBERE -
Note b:Pension scheme contributions BitsEb : RIS ET B

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the

AEBFRTFBRAEIRELEN

state-sponsored retirement plan at rates ranging from 14% 14%E20% (ZE=Z—F : 14% =
to 20% (2021: 14% to 20%) of the specified salaries of the 20%) B IE X FBIR#E E 0B
employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible TRARSE - PEBFAEEZSE
for the pension liability to the retired employees. The PRC BRREINEZSEMT - ~A5EK

employees of the Group are entitled to a monthly pension
upon their retirements.

In addition, the Group has implemented a supplementary
defined contribution retirement scheme in accordance with
China Datang's policy. Under this scheme, the Group is required
to make specified contributions at a rate of 8% (2021: 8%) of
the total salaries of qualified employees. These employees will
receive the total contributions and any returns thereon upon
their retirements.

FTe B8 TRIKE T Z A BEUE
K&

RETTRERENHEREEZ S
%o@ﬁ%?ﬂ AEEFEFE
FENETHNETTERNS% (=
T=—F :8%)MKE - WEET
PORARES S S T Bl B R
PR L E A B AR B 3R

e Sk $E5T§5”¢.K%Eﬁﬁk

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 10. EFEMES=HM
REMUNERATION

The aggregate amounts of remuneration of the Directors and RAREEMESFRNTMEREDT :
Supervisors of the Company during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments: Hie
— Salaries, housing benefits, other —%He  FEEF - iR
allowances and benefits in kind MEWEF 3,653 3,103
— Pension scheme contributions (defined — &K & 5T &I CGREHEFRET
contribution scheme) Z) 281 243
Total &5t 4,234 3,646

210 2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& Ot S R MY (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 10.
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

The remuneration of each director and supervisor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Hr—-—ZT——

EFEMEEHENE)

F+=-ZA=

T—HLEE

ARG ESERESEE T _—F+
“A=t—HALFENFOT

Salaries,
housing Pension
benefits, scheme
other contributions
allowances (defined
and benefits  contribution Total
Fees in kind scheme) remuneration
7o REE Biesaf
A~ Htn2ih R(RELRRE
e NEMER g) B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®EFT AREFT ARETT AR%EFn
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Shen Zhen RIETAE (i) - 452 4 493
Mr. Zhu Liming KFIBREA (i) - 1M 1 122
Mr. Tian Dan BAEE (iii) - 223 23 246
Mr. Wang Yanwen TENEE (iv) - 267 27 294
- 1,053 102 1,155
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Wu Daging RRERLE - = = =
Mr. Chen Kan B{nEE - = = =
Mr. Wang Jungi FE/REE - - - -
Mr. Song Yunpeng REMELE - 677 59 736
Mr. Tian Dan ARTE (ii) - 318 - 318
Mr. Wang Yanwen IEXEE (iv) - 335 - 335
- 1,330 59 1,389
Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHITES :
Mr. Ye Xiang WAL 100 - - 100
Mr. Mao Zhuanijian EEREAE 100 - - 100
Mr. Gao Jiaxiang BRELAE 100 - - 100
300 - - 300
Supervisors: Ex:
Mr. Huang Yuan HERAE - 785 60 845
Mr. Zhang Xuefeng REESAE - - - -
Mrs. Luo Li #RzL = 485 60 545
- 1,270 120 1,390
300 3,653 281 4,234

T _FFERSE 211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Shen Zhen was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 30 June 2022.

(ii) Mr. Zhu Liming was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 8 December 2022.

(iii) Mr. Tian Dan was re-designated from an executive director to
a non-executive director with effect from 27 May 2022 and
resigned the position from 30 June 2022.

(iv) Mr. Wang Yanwen was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director with effect from 30 June
2022 and resigned the position from 8 December 2022.

2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ot B A5 ¥R MY e (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10.

DIRECTORS’

SUPERVISORS’

REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

The remuneration of each director and supervisor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

HE—_T—_—F#+-_fF=+—

10. EEMEEHFM(E)

BIEFE

ARG ESNESBEE T _—F+
ZA=ZT—HALEFENEFHOT :

Salaries, Pension
housing scheme
benefits, other  contributions
allowances (defined
and benefits  contribution Total
Fees in kind scheme)  remuneration
e FFEE  Biherd
A 3*%% HR(REHER
we  NEY 2l kil
Notes HMB 000 R/\//B 000 /?MB 000 RMB'000
F ‘ AREFTT
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Tian Dan AfEAE - 690 53 743
Mr. Wang Yanwen FEXEE - 909 53 962
- ,599 106 1,705
Non-executive directors: FBTES:
Mr. Wu Daqing RARELE (i) = - - -
Mr. Chen Kan BRI L4 (i) = = = =
Mr. Wang Jung FREESE (i) = - - -
Mr. Qu Bo HR LA (i) = - - -
Mr. Li Zhenyu FEFRE (i) = - - -
Mr. Liu Ruixiang BBk (i) - o - -
Mr. Liu Quancheng 2 2R EE (i) = = > -
Mr. Song Yunpeng REMELE (ii) = 685 53 738
- 685 53 738
Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES :
Mr. Ye Xiang ML 100 - = 100
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian EEREE 100 - - 100
Mr. Gao Jiaxiang BRERE 100 - - 100
300 - - 300
Supervisors: EE:
Mr. Huang Yuan BEAE (iii) = 251 31 282
Mr. Zhang Xuefeng REIERE (i) - - - -
Mrs. Luo Li BRI (iv) = 568 53 621
Mrs. Huo Yuxia ERBLT (iii) = = - -
Mr. Liu Liming My AzE (iii) = - - 5
Mr. Chen Li BRA 4 (iv) - - - -
- 819 84 903
300 3,103 243 3,646
T _FFERSE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Wu Daging, Mr. Chen Kan and Mr. Wang Jungi were
appointed as non-executive directors with effect from 9
September 2021, while Mr. Qu Bo, Mr. Li Zhenyu, Mr. Liu
Ruixiang and Mr. Liu Quancheng resigned the positions on the
same date.

(ii) Mr. Song Yunpeng was appointed as a non-executive director
with effect from 23 September 2021.

(iii) Mr. Huang Yuan and Mr. Zhang Xuefeng were appointed as
supervisors with effect from 9 September 2021, while Mrs.
Huo Yuxia and Mr. Liu Liming resigned the positions on the
same date.

(iv) Mrs. Luo Li was appointed as a supervisor with effect from
25 January 2022, while Mr. Chen Li resigned the position on
the same date.

In 2022, the remuneration of Mr. Wu Daging, Mr. Chen Kan, Mr.
Wang Jungi and Mr. Zhang Xuefeng was paid by China Datang,
and no remuneration was paid by the Company.

In 2021, the remuneration of Mr. Wu Daging, Mr. Chen Kan, Mr.
Wang Jungi, Mr. Qu Bo, Mr. Li Zhenyu, Mr. Liu Ruixiang, Mr.
Liu Quancheng, Mr. Zhang Xuefeng, Mrs. Huo Yuxia and Mr. Liu
Liming was paid by China Datang, and no remuneration was paid
by the Company. Mr. Chen Li did not receive remuneration from
the Company as a supervisor.

There was no arrangement under which the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. EEEEHEHMES
The five highest paid employees included one supervisor (Mr. BEZZT-_F+A=+—HLHF
Huang Yuan) and four senior executives during the year ended of 31 B AiaEaFMAERE —RESR(F
December 2022 (2021: two directors and three senior executives). REE)RMEZRBRITRAB(ZET = —
Details of directors’ and supervisors' remuneration are set out in FRNBEEN=ZBERRITHAE) - F
Note 10 of this section above. Details of the remuneration for the FAESMNEEH B E N0 %= M
year of the highest paid senior executives who are not directors F10° BRAWEARAIEETHEEFN&
or supervisors of the company are as follows: SHEHRRTHRAENFTEHMFIEH
FnR
2022 2021
— 22— —=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKEFT

Salaries, housing benefits, other
allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions (defined

e - EEETN - HiERER
EWEA 3,459 2,257
BREETEI MR (A EH-KETE)

contribution scheme) 238 158
Total AaEt 3,697 2,415
The number of non-director and non-supervisor highest paid FEERIIEENTREHFIMABRERI
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is TRESOASIOT :
as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
—E_— S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFIT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T 4 3
Total &5t 4 3

T _FFERSE 215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BT BRI E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHEZ

12.

T F+-A=+—HIEFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( (RZEAREFMBEMBFEFMSHE) ) and the Enterprise
Income Tax Law Implementation Regulations of the People’s
Republic of China ( (REARKEMBESEMSEERIZH) ), the
Company and its certain subsidiaries have been recognised as high-
technology enterprises and are subject to a preferential corporate
income tax rate of 15%.

Under the above tax law and regulations, except for preferential
treatments available to certain branches and subsidiaries of the
Company as mentioned above, subsidiaries within the Group are
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%.

The subsidiary of the Company in India was subject to corporate
income tax at a rate of 29.12% during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (29.12% during the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021).

The components of income tax expense for the year are as follows:

12.

FRiSRBAST

R AR K MBE & E RS TOE)M
(REARKMBEERSHREEEE
By RRARMETHEBARERN RS
B GE  Z15%HNEEWEHMMEE
PRS-

BIE FMMBOAFMER - BRARQR] © E
MEFTHARMHBRAREAEBESFS
SN - REBERRE ALK B A [ HiR25%
KA BB EAEH o

RARRENE BB A B 12 H829.12% B
MEHM—_T-_—_F—A—HE=ZT=
—HF+-A=+—HNGEMSHORE
29.12%MMEFM—_T—_—F—H—H
E-T - —F+-_A=+—HHLER
1511 o

FRPTSHF AR AT

2022 2021
—ZE_— —E—5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
Current tax BUEAFT1S it

Provision for the year FREE 65,637 64,795

(Overprovision)/under provision in UATE G /2 (RBEARHE ) BT
respect of prior years & (5,044) 5,553
Deferred tax (Note 19) FEIEFTS R (MIzE19) (1,921) (5,270)
58,672 65,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax using the statutory income tax rate applicable in the
PRC to the income tax expense at the Group's effective income
tax rate for the year is as follows:

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

FRISIRBASZ (1)

¢W1§ﬁﬁ¢iﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ£ﬁﬁﬁ/eﬁﬁ¥§f

HORBATANE, (BX)EBNMEH
X EREARENERMENHEAE
HIPT SRS HRNT -

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREF7
Profit/(loss) before tax BRALATFIE,(1BR) 296,795 (378,212)
Income tax at the statutory income tax 1%25% H)JATE BT SRR R 5T E A
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) FEH(—ZT——F : 256%) 74,198 (94,553)
Effect of a different tax rate applicable HMEZRKBEATRERENTE
in another country (2,796) (1,890)
Effect of the preferential income tax rateFT{SF BRI R/ & (29,679) 35,468
Expenses not deductible for tax NRIFLF X 6,888 1,868
Additional deduction of research and I3 & FHEEINIE
development expenses (3,791) (4,735)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ¥fLAE BB FT{SHi A A%
previous periods (5,044) 5,633
Effect of utilisation of unrecognised tax {§ /AT ARERELEMESRHEE
losses in prior years Eobsabicd opi=lEnp-Z (1,764) =
Deductible temporary differences and KRR AJ L H0EF fE M 2= EFFT
tax losses not recognised IHE 8 20,660 123,367
Income tax charge for the year FAMEH X 58,672 65,058
The Group's effective rate REERERHE 19.77% (17.20%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B O RR I

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—
13.

B+ _A=+—HILFE
DIVIDENDS 13. BRR
The dividends during the years ended 31 December 2022 and BHE_Z-_—_gk-_F-_—F+-_A=
2021 are set out below: T—BIEFEZREIIRAT
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AERET T
Dividends declared to owners of EIRTEAREE ARKE
the parent 88,432 132,352

(i)

(ii)

During 2022, the final dividend of RMB88,432,000 at
RMB0.0298 (2021: RMBO0.0446) per ordinary share (before
tax) in respect of the year of 2021, based on the issued
shares of the Company of 2,967,542,000 shares, was
declared to owners of the parent (2021: RMB132,352,000).

The Board has not resolved to recommend payment of
a final dividend for the fiscal year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Proposed 2022 Final Dividend"”) but shall
convene another Board meeting, expected to be on or
before the end of April 2023, to consider the declaration of
the Proposed 2022 Final Dividend. If the Board decides to
proceed, the declaration will be adopted and recommended
by Board resolution for the approval of the shareholders
of the Company.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China ( &
ZEARKEMBPEATSFE) ) and its implementation rules,
the Company will withhold and pay enterprise income tax
at the rate of 10% when it distributes final dividends to
non-resident enterprise holders of H shares (including any
H shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees
Limited).

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Individual
Income Tax Law of the People’'s Republic of China ( {/
= AR HEMBEAFTEHE) ) and its implementation rules
as well as the Tax Notice, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate ranging from 10% to
20% on behalf of individual holders of H shares.

2022 Annual Report
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(i)

(ii)

RZBZZF » ARARBETR
52,967,5642,000 i 15 R —ZF —
—FEMNRARKRE  SREBRIE
FARK00298TL( =T =—F ¢
AR®0.044670) (FiAT) - &5 A
R #88,432,000L( = = —4 :
AE#132,352,0007T) °
EEHABREBREHE=S
T+ A=t+—HItUHBFE
AR B ([ BE2022 F R E IR
Bl EBE#eRTRHESEESR
(TBstTR =T ==F M ABKKZA)
M%ﬁEﬁEm_j_ZEX%%

ﬁ§$ REETT  EREE
ué% RBREMLHERE - HAR
HHAE o

REB(PREARKME R EFFHR
FOREBMIGH ZERGEX - A
AEABEERHRIEEREERA
A BEARBEEPREE(REA)A
RAREEELZEMHE) KSR
HAR B 1R10% B R I R b
EMSH

BIB(CPEARKEFB@EAFEH
SED R EL B MM 2 38 ARG SUA R R
BBM - NAFREETEBREKH
%MAﬁﬁAﬁm&%@u¥w%
£20% TEZBAFER 25 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Accordingly,
the diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts are the same as the
basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is
based on:

SHARE 14.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

BATFIRERISAAEMGS
BEF(&iR)

BHE-_Z-_—_FRr=-_ZFT-_—F+=-A=
+—RHLEFE SREARAFN, (BE)
SBDHERT AR EBRIEE AENLA
B (BR)BRAEFEETHEBERM
BT HEE -

HE_T-_—_FRrR-F=-_—F+=ZA=
+—BLEE  ARRWELREEE
ERR G  EREERT, (BER)SHE
BEYREARFN,(FER)LEER -

SREANEHERF, (EB)EE T
SIEHE

2022 2021

—E-CHF —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Earnings/(loss) B, (E8) AR¥Fr AREFT
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary TEERER EERT,
equity holders of the parent, used in  18)FRRAMNE QB E @RS

the basic/diluted earnings/(loss) per BAEEFE(BX)
share calculation 272,425 (208,332)

Shares B3

Number of shares

B8
2022 2021
—E-CHF = e

AESRER EERT (B
B)RRANFAEEITER

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, used

in the basic/diluted earnings/(loss) per  MAIREFHIE(AR)
share calculation (share) 2,967,542,000 2,967,542,000
2022 2021
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,(EHER) =®—_= T —F
Basic/diluted earnings/(loss) per share EREAR HERF,(EE) RMB 0.09 RMB (0.07)
AR¥0.09T AR#(0.07)7T
T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. #%E - BEM®RM

Buildings Office Construction
and other Transportation ~ equipment  in progress
infrastructure ~ Machinery vehicles  and others (“CIP”) Total
BFA BARBRE
At BB R Ha EHTAE e ERIE as
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETH AEETT  AREFrn AREFT  ARETZT
Cost: EEZF :
At 1 January 2022 RZBZ=F—f—H 1,395,839 8,769,046 29,187 138,552 267,203 10,594,827
Addition i&ﬁ = 586 - 1,285 157,689 159,560
Transfer from CIP hERIIZEH 73,939 138,433 - 3,122 (215,494) -
Transfer from/to 1A mEREEER = 3,756 = = (4,077) (321)
Disposals RE - - (2,940) (762) - (3,702)
At 31 December 2022 RZFZ=F+-A=1+-H 1,469,778 8,911,821 26,247 137,197 205321 10,750,364
Accumulated depreciation: i*’r#ﬁé :
At 1 January 2022 R=Z--f-A-A (353,012)  (3,117,110) (27,109) (72,096) - (3,569,327)
Provision % (70,560)  (390,896) (129) (6,073) - (467,658)
Disposals RE - - 2,793 723 - 3,516
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—#+-A=+-H (423,572)  (3,508,006) (24,445) (77,446) - (4,033,469)
Impairment: WE :
At1January 2022 and 31  RZE-—F-A-RAk
December 2022 “E--F+-R
=+-A (13,508) (181,184) - - (2,800) (197,492)
Net carrying amount: EEE%E '
At 1 January 2022 RZBZZ5—H—H 1,029,319 5,470,752 2,078 61,456 264,403 6,828,008
At 31 December 2022 W-Z-—#+-A=+-H 1,032,698 5,222,631 1,802 59,751 202,521 6,519,403
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

15.

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—_T-_—F#+_fA=+—HILHFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - BEME=E(E)
(CONTINUED)

Buildings Office  Construction

and other Transportation equipment in progress

infrastructure Machinery vehicles and others (“CIP") Total
2T WAFERE
HERRE T EHTA ftr ERIE =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 /?MB 000 /?MB 000
AEETFTL Vid. oo \R&FT AEEFT i i

Cost: RA&
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-—-%-HA-H 1,330,883 8,619,673 30,334 130,365 512,167 10,523,422
Addition AE - 1,447 - 4,354 93,624 99,425
Transfer from CIP mERIRER 66,814 268,114 = = (334,928) =
Transfer from/to 1A hENEEER - 14,912 - - (3,660) 11,262
Disposals RE (1,858) (35,100) (1,147) (1,167) = (39,272)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—#+=fA=1-H 1,395,839 8,769,046 29,187 133,552 267,203 10,594,827
Accumulated depreciation: S*Hﬁi
At 1 January 2021 RZBZ—45—H—H (297,096)  (2,681,547) (27,900) (68,160) = (3,074,703)
Provision Eéf% (56,468) (447,901) 356) (4,997) = (509,722)
Disposals RE 552 12,338 1,147 1,061 - 15,098
At 31 December 2021 RZZE--F+-A=1+-H (353,012)  (3,117,110) (27,109) (72,096) - (3569.327)
Impairment: A
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-—-%-f-H (13,508) (137,816) = = (2,800) (154,124)
Provision BE - (45,638) - - - (45,638)
Disposals k=3 - 2,270 - - = 2,270
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—4+-A=t-H (13,508) (181,184) - - (2,800) (197,492)
Net carrying amount: RERE
At 1 January 2021 WZE_—%—f—H 1,020,279 5,700,310 2,434 62,205 509,367 7,294,595
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—%#+-fA=1-H 1,029,319 5,470,752 2,078 61,456 264,403 6,828,008

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has been in the process
of applying for the ownership certificates of buildings with a
net carrying amount of RMB12,960,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB13,489,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment loss
was recognised for machinery of environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions segment. During the year ended
31 December 2021, an impairment loss of RMB45,638,000 was
recognised for machinery of environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions segment as a result of technical innovation
during the year. The Group’s management assessed that the
recoverable amounts of those assets are minimal and full amount
of impairment loss was made.

R-ZTE-——FE+=-A=+—H K&
BFEREFEFNRMARESR 258
FHERAFESAREK12,960,0005T
(Z2E=Z—F+=ZA=+—H8: AR
13,489,0007T) °

BHE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HLF
B BIRERERIAT RO RS IR
BRBREBX HE-ZZT=—F+=A
—+—BLEFE AREMEH R
RETBEFR R T R D BHIK B ERA R
45,638,000 T H R EE X - AEEEE
BRAZEEENA B S ERN
Bt FAURERK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ﬁ%#&%ﬁTTHE(/H/\)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. E{ELRE
Non-patented Development

Patents  technology expenditure Software Total

R FEFRM BB Bt At

RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETn AREFH ARETR

Cost: BA

At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—_%—F—H 145,962 110,919 76,599 41,188 374,668
Addition NE = - 8,568 549 9,117
Reclassification B¥OHHE 12,528 3,807 (30,409) 14,074 =
Recognised in research and ~ RHBERHER

development expenses - - (576) - (576)
Transfer from/to PPE mvE - BEMREER - - (3,756) 4,077 321
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_%+-fA=+—H 158,490 114,726 50,426 59,888 383,530
Accumulated amortisation: ~ ZitH#s :

1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—%—F—H (41,264) (64,797) - (15,707) (121,768)
Provision B (12,526) (11,270) - (4,894) (28,690)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—#+-A=1+—H (53,790) (76,067) - (20,601) (150,458)
Impairment: WE

1 January 2022 and RZZEZ—F—f—HAK=F

31 December 2022 ——f+-A=1+—H - - - - -
Net carrying amount: BREFE -

At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—%—F—H 104,698 46,122 76,599 25,481 252,900
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-A=1+—H 104,700 38,659 50,426 39,287 233,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ot B A5 ¥R MY e (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

16. EEEE(H)

Non-patented  Development

Patents technology  expenditure Software Total
£V 2RI FE Bt At
E’MB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT
Cost: ﬁizli :

At 1 January 2021 S s R = 82,005 108,168 154,420 28,666 373,259
Addition NE - - 28,617 962 29,579
Reclassification BHHE 69,755 2,751 (81,619) 9,113 =

Recognised in research and AR ERTHR

development expenses - - (9,907) - (9,907)
Disposals HE (5,798) - - (1,213) (7,011)
Transfer from/to PPE BYE - BENREEE - - (14,912) 3,660 (11,252)
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+-A=1+-H 145,962 110,919 76,599 41,188 374,668
Accumulated amortisation: i*ﬁ?ﬁ :

1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—%—f—H (30,091) (55,372) = (12,943) (98,406)
Provision Bl (13,548) (9,425) = (3,492) (26,465)
Disposals HE 2,375 - - 728 3,103
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—%+-A=1+—H (41,264) (64,797) = (15,707) (121,768)
Impairment: ﬁfﬁ :

1 January 2021 RZZE=—%—Hf—H (1,375) = = = (1,375)
Disposals HE 1,375 = = = 1,375
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+-A=1+—H = = = = =
Net carrying amount: EEE%E :

1 January 2021 R-T-—%—f—H 50,539 52,796 154,420 15,723 273,478
At 31 December 2021 ——#+=ZRA=1+-H 104,698 46,122 76,599 25,481 252,900
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no intangible assets R-B-——FR-_FT-_—F+=-HF=+

of the Group pledged to secure bank borrowings and other loans.

—B AREENEVEEERAEE
RITEFREAL B R LR -

—T- - FEEHE

S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B O RR I

(&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-__F+_HF=+—HILFE
17. LEASES 17. #HE
The Group as a lessee FEEEREBEAN
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and AEERETEEBRERNSEETF
other infrastructure, machinery, transportation vehicles and office MEMEREE - W - E T AN
equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made /N *“ﬁﬂﬁfﬁ,%/\ B - REBERAIEL
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease RMERRAREEHARELH -
periods of 30 to 47 years, and no ongoing payments will be made Eﬁﬁ_ﬂ'i@‘i‘ti IR E L T3
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings and other HWER - BEFEESHERRIE - 18
infrastructure generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. FMEMERSENEL —RKE—Z1
Machinery, transportation vehicles and office equipment generally F oz  EHTARPLAERMENE
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of H—MAaT+-@MAXKUT - mEREE
low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and BE o —MRRFH - AEBETEFEHE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. MEEMAE B NEEMEH o
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and AEBEFERAEEENREAERSF
the movements during the year are as follows: AR EFRIAT :
Buildings
Leasehold and other
land infrastructure Total
BENEM
HEL#H HiE i &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT AEHTT
As at 1 January 2021 RZZ-_—%—H—H 18,136 311,010 329,146
Additions # 0 - 9,813 9,813
Lease termination HERLE - (2,176) (2,176)
Lease modification HEEE - 1,063 1,063
Depreciation charge TERX (465) (24,605) (25,070)
As at 31 December 2021 and R-Z-_—&F+-A=+—AFK
1 January 2022 —T-—F—H—H 17,671 295,105 312,776
Additions En - 6,506 6,506
Depreciation charge FERX (465) (25,587) (26,052)
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H 17,206 276,024 293,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

AN

A SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

17. #HE(#\E)

FREESEEAGE)
(b) HEEARE

HEREMNREEER(BREETE
RITMEMEFRT)MFEANE
gERT

2022 2021

—E-= 2 —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKEFT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHREE 308,100 319,683

New leases g 6,506 9,813

Lease termination HERIE = (2,251)

Lease modification HEEE - 1,063
Accretion of interest recognised NEFHERMNEEA

during the year 12,590 13,183

Payments [N (34,309) (33,391)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+—-A=+—HHEEE 292,887 308,100

Analysed into: DA
Current portion mEnE o 33,891 35,106
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 258,996 272,994

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEBENIEAE DTN E Gt
TR MI 39T IREE -

T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

17. LEASES (CONTINUED) 17. K (#\)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) FEEEREHEA ()
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) RIERFPEEHHEEHERZH
leases are as follows: mF:
2022 2021
—ZE_— =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGRNE 12,590 13,183
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {# REEETE
assets 26,052 25,070
Expense relating to short-term HREHHERENEA G
leases (included in cost of sales, ASHEKRA ~ ITHHAX -
administrative expenses and SHEMDHERY)
selling and distribution expenses) 6,641 14,837
Expense relating to leases of B EREEEEMRBER
low-value assets (included in BRGIAITHRAX)
administrative expenses) 78 177
Total amount recognised in profit or #&ER AR E%E
loss 45,361 53,267

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in Note
33(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its buildings and other infrastructure in China
under operating lease arrangements. No rental income was
recognised by the Group during the year (2021: RMB201,000),
details of which are included in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATEDATFAIR 18. {EELULAAEEIEALRE

18.

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Bt ARG SNRMNED
INCOME BE
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Equity investments designated EEUQAAEEFEEESH
at fair value through other STARMRE RBENERRE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair JEETRERIEE  RAREE
value (Note) (BH3E)
China Datang Overseas Power FREAEEEGINEHNEZEER
Operating Co., Ltd. (FEIKXEE£EF AA(EABIPEAESEE
HNE SBEAMR AT (formerly known  INRITIRIEER AR )
as "China Datang Overseas Electric
Technology and O&M Co., Ltd" (F [
RNESEEINATRIEER R A) - 26,389
Note: In January 2022, the Group and China Datang Group Overseas Mzt : RZZTZ—F—F  AEEESP

Investment Co., Ltd. (“Datang Overseas Investment”) entered
into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, the
Group has agreed to transfer, and Datang Overseas Investment
has agreed to acquire the 10% equity interest in China Datang
Overseas Power Operating Co., Ltd. held by the Group with
the amount of RMB26,389,000, and the fair value of the
unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as at 31 December 2021 was
measured based on the contract price.

AEEEBINEEBRAR(KE
BRDFIIREE RGBS - Bt
AEBRBERMAZSRRERK
BASEBANDEKNESEEEN
BEHEBLERAB10%ZBHE - &
%85 AR #26,389,0007T - R
——%+=ZA=+—8 ' EEAMU
AR EEFEAEEB T AHLMER
R EETEIEEENEL
BT E o

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Ft A ISR BT e (A8)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—
19.

T —F+-A=+—HItEE
DEFERRED TAX 19. EEMRIB
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the ERFTFHNERNELEHIBEEERAED
year are as follows: FENT ¢
Deferred tax assets EERIAEE
Impairment
of financial Elimination
and contract Accrued Deferred of unrealised
assets expenses income profit Total
AREERE EER EENE RERABEE &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFTL AREFT f
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—F—H 41,006 189 4,672 6,182 52,049
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to AT A/ (F1k}) BHMELT
profit or loss during the year BE(ME12)
(Note 12) 3,077 27) (338) (791) 1,921
Gross deferred tax assets at WZE-—#+-A=+-H
31 December 2022 MEEHEEELR 44,083 162 4,334 5,391 53,970
1 January 2021 R-E-_—F—f—H 31,479 423 5,159 9,718 46,779
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ ERZF A/ (F1k) BREAETT
profit or loss during the year BE(FiE12)
(Note 12) 9,527 (234) (487) (3,536) 5,270
Gross deferred tax assets at W=E-—%#+-A=+-H
31 December 2021 METHERELSE 41,006 189 4,672 6,182 52,049
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 765 e P o (4B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE T+ A=+—HItEE

19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 19. EEMIA(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EERAA R
Fair value

adjustments of
equity investments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income Total
UAREBEFERER
BEITT A ARSI
HHERRENAR
BERE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBTF T
At 1 January 2022 RZEZ=ZF—H—H 209 209
Deferred tax charged to other FRETAEMARS W A)IRIE
comprehensive income during 1A
the year (209) (209)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE_—F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2022 HIRIET 1A & B4 = =
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——F—HF—H 588 588
Deferred tax charged to other FRFTAEMER S KSR
comprehensive income during 1A
the year (379) (379)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZEZ—F+=—A=+—H
31 December 2021 HIRIER 1A & EAE 209 209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 19.

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

EFERIA(])
BIERAA F(])
BRI BIEA E R B B A BB

AR ELVFEIIR - ATRASERAR
HE B HFIRERER AN DT

2022 2021
—E=-= =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in A B TEHA N K FER BV IE T
the consolidated statement of HIEEE T
financial position 53,970 51,840
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 7 & BB 1A 0 3% FE R BV IE 1T
the consolidated statement of HIBAEFHE
financial position = =
Net deferred tax assets REHIEEEF5 53,970 51,840

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has tax losses arising in
India of RMB102,083,000 (31 December 2021: RMB33,383,000)
that will expire up to eight years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of Technologies & Engineering India, an overseas
subsidiary of the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
tax losses arising in the PRC of RMB856,372,000 (31 December
2021: RMB622,555,000). As at 31 December 2022, the Group
has deductible temporary differences of RMB218,003,000 (2021:
RMB507,269,000) in respect of impairment losses.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses or deductible temporary differences as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.
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856,372,000t( —E——F+=-_A=+
—H: AR#622,555,00070) c R=-F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.

21.

B BRI (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HfthIERENEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Long-term prepaid expenses REFEER 255,355 288,893
Deductible VAT FAEFNBET AT = 45,631
Prepayments for equipment TEfTER R 31,798 15,512
Others A, 23,833 35,816
310,986 385,752
4
INVENTORIES 21. #8
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Raw materials JRM 105,418 99,867
Work in progress F 80 2,831 12,129
Finished goods BUAK 45,639 92,935
153,888 204,931
T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

22. SFREE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E== —E-—F T
+=A=+—-HB +=A=+—H A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFTT ARETFTT

Contract assets arising from: Ty SBELENEREE:
Construction services 3 AR T 152,445 240,005 712,625
Sale of industrial products HETHEMm 33,700 27,186 28,744
186,145 267,191 741,369
Less: provision for impairment & : J{ERE (2,420) (3,426) (5,962)
Total 4B=t 183,725 263,765 735,407

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
the sale of industrial products and construction services as the
receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of construction, respectively. Upon completion of construction
and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease
in contract assets in 2022 and 2021 were both the results of the
decrease in the provision of construction services at the end of
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, RMB 1,006,000 (2021:
RMB2,511,000) was reversed as impairment loss on contract
assets. The Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers
are disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22.

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at 31 December is as follows:

22.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SRTRER)

Wt=A=+-8  AR&EERHUKE

SEHFEHEMT

2022 2021

— =22 —F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Within one year —F LR 183,725 263,765
After one year —F L E = -
Total contract assets AREERTE 183,725 263,765

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

EREEREZBREGNEFNT :

2022 2021

s —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AR F T

At beginning of year REL] 3,426 5,962
Impairment losses, net BB FE (1,006) (2,511)
Amount written off as uncollectible WEH AN AU E 2 5RIE - (25)
At end of year RER 2,420 3,426

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to
measure expected credit losses on contract assets. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. Similar to trade receivables, the contract assets
from related parties and third parties are assessed separately
based on their different credit risks characteristics, the detailed
analysis of which can be referred to Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AEERBEBRSAETAREERE
D Ut EBEA ERELREHE - BA
AREERE FRRFEXREHERNE
FE ARAEEMEABREHEERN
B IR GKBIEEABRARAER -
B S EIRGREAAL B EE=F
W& FE EKIEE TR RSB ERSE
DAL - BBAM2 RAHIEBERE
Bi7E23 o

T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on

the Group's contract assets:

As at 31 December 2022

22. SFREE(#\E)

UTHAEBAREARAEEREAAR
CEEEER

R-E-_—_F+=-A=+-—H

Related Third
Parties Parties Total
B E=5 &%
Expected credit loss rate TBEEAEAE 0.303% 1.996%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #BRmEE(ARETIT) 76,516 109,629 186,145
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TFEHA{z 18k
(AR®ETIT) 232 2,188 2,420
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
Related Third
Parties Parties Total
B2l E=h =
Expected credit loss rate TEERERBAX 0.303% 3.936%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) #BEmEE(AREFIT) 195,174 72,017 267,191
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TFEHA{E 18Xk
(ARETFTT) 591 2,835 3,426

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23. HHBKREMERRE

2022 2021

—E- —E—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARSTT
Trade receivables B S EWEIE 8,677,433 7,838,390
Less: provision for impairment B OREREE (309,483) (292,965)
8,367,950 7,545,425
Bills receivable FEU =% 610,254 624,508
8,978,204 8,169,933

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally within one year.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over the outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. TRADE

AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is

23.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

% MU IR R
(#8%)
(a) RRECHH

REREHR - B 5 EKRKAM
U REIZERARORE ST

as follows: PN
2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR®TT
Within 1 year —FR 5,852,546 4,630,198
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 677,024 1,260,312
Between 2 and 3 years ME=F 741,451 435,405
Over 3 years BR=%F 2,016,666 2,136,983
9,287,687 8,462,898
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (309,483) (292,965)
8,978,204 8,169,933

Impairment of trade receivables

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

(b) RABUREARIE

B 5 RYGRIERER B e

trade receivables are as follows: T

2022 2021

s SRS EE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFIT

At beginning of the year RE] 292,965 272,662
Impairment losses, net REEK  FE 16,518 22,924
Amount written off as uncollectible 4 §5E A UL B #4558 - (2,621)
At end of the year RER 309,483 292,965
T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables from the related parties are
RMB7,674,811,000 (2021: RMB6,827,717,000) which are
mainly due from China Datang Group and certain associates
and joint ventures of China Datang Group. The Group has
assessed the expected losses for trade receivables from
related parties by reference to the published credit rating
of China Datang Group and the corresponding probability
of default of 0.303%. The loss given default was estimated
to be 100%.

For the trade receivables from third parties, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by product type, customer type and credit rating). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B BRI (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

23. BOABKBRENEREKRIE

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

As at 31 December 2022

(#8%)

(b) HHFEURIERE ()

UTRBRERTFRAKEES
FE M FRIR S A R B i D AN FRER(E
REBRNER -

R-B-ZH+ZA=+—8H

Third parties
L]
Individually
assessed
Related Within1  Between1  Between 2 Over 3 trade
parties year and2years and 3 years years Subtotal  receivables Total
BTN
B%A - -E@F  WEZF  BBcE gt EMEE At
(Note a)
Expected credit loss rate RHERERE 0.303% 1.89% 5.47% 13.27% 38.92% 15.53% 86.72% 3.57%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EREEE
(A\RBFL) 7674811 347,444 89,694 128,401 253,756 819,295 183,327 8,677,433
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEREX
(ARETT) 23,245 6,554 4,902 17,036 98,764 121,256 158,982 309,483
As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—4+—-A=+—H
Third parties
EEY]
Individually
assessed
Related Within 1 Between1  Between 2 Over3 trade
parties year and 2 years and 3 years years Subtotal  receivables Total
EETENE
BER -Ff  -EmF  WEZE  HB@cH gt HE aif
(Note &)
a\
Expected credit loss rate REEREAE 0.303% 1.33% 8.09% 12.25% 26.65% 13.96% 86.87% 3.74%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EREEE
(ARBT) 6827717 197,158 244,263 7063 318855 830711 179962 7838390
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHERER
(ARETT) 20,688 2,623 19,752 8,652 84,911 115,938 156,339 292,965
T FEFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)
Note a:

An overseas third-party company in India of which its subsidiary
is a customer of the Group (the “Indian Customer”) is
undergoing a proceeding of bankruptcy and reorganisation. The
Group received the preliminary restructuring plan approved by
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi during the
year ended 31 December 2021. According to the restructuring
plan and considering the present value, the expected
accumulated credit loss is estimated to be RMB149,821,000.

An overseas third-party company in India, GSECL, had a dispute
over the receivables with the Group due to construction delays
and some project performance factors. During the year, the
Indian Customer issued a formal notice stating that the
Group’s construction progress had been delayed and filed
a reverse claim to the Group accordingly. Considering the
current situation, the management of the Group believes the
receivables are less likely to be recovered, and therefore a
full impairment provision of RMB4,039,000 was made as at
31 December 2022.

In addition to above two impairment provisions, there are
three third-party receivables with the amount of RMB5,122,000
that are fully made impairment provision due to their low
possibilities of recovery as at 31 December 2022.

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

23. BHOBERFREMEKRE

(%)
(b)

B 5B R TR (1)
BifzEa :

—RURENENE=HBINARIE
FEHEITHEMEMR  HFEAF
EAEENRF(HNEEF] -
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HIt
FE AEBRIFEEBRRQ
BlE EERAES AN L EHEG
- BREFEANZRERERE
BHEERTBAGETAARE
149,821,0007T °

—RUREENE=FEIAF
GSECL » MAKERETRITE R
AETEBRBARZMmMEEKKIES
FE -FN NERFBLER
BE RTASENKEIEED
TR - WA AAEBEIRE R M
RE -EREFAMN  AEET
12 [ R 4 FE 78 FE U SR IB U [B] 9 7T Bk
HEY AR -—_ZT-—F+=-A4
=+ —B2EHEREREBARE
4,039,0007T °

B ERARNIEREREN  ZHE=%
SFEARES 122,000t EURE
=75 FOIE FE U E &Y BT B AR AR i R
— T —_F+-_A=+—HB2HE:t
RRERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
(¢) Transferred financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB117,359,000 (2021: RMB163,645,000)
(the “Derecognised Bills").

The derecognised bills receivable had a maturity of one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the derecognised bills receivable have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the derecognised bills receivable.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the derecognised bills receivable and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised bills
receivable and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these derecognised bills receivable is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group's Continuing Involvement in the derecognised
bills receivable are not significant.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the derecognised bills receivable. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement,
both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.

BT RR I

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

—E-—HF+-A=+—HItFE

23. BHOBEREMEKRREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Transferred financial assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks and financial institutions
of certain large central enterprises in Mainland China
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of RMB
87,569,000 (2021: RMB91,708,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers
(the “"Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills,
and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables settled. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the
Group did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed
Bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed
Bills to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amount of the trade payables settled by the Endorsed
Bills during the year to which the suppliers have recourse
was RMB87,569,000 (2021: RMB91,708,000) as at 31
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables
amounting to RMB7,880,000 were pledged for bills payable
granted to the Group (31 December 2021: RMB5,981,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24.

& RIS AN R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-E-—F+ - A=+—HItEE

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. FfI®IA - HttERRA R

OTHER ASSETS Ht1FE
2022 2021
—E-= —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Prepayments AR RIE 221,600 100,769
Deposits RES 40,390 52,441
Other receivables E U GRIE 104,854 151,828
Other current assets HEMRsEE 292,824 288,828
659,668 593,866
Less: provision of impairment W R ER (2,423) (28,260)
Total a5t 657,245 565,606

Deposits and other receivables are mainly related to the guarantee
deposits for auction and the funds held by employees, and an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default. Except the separate item
of prepayments for certain terminated projects already impaired,
as the financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default, no
impairment was provided during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, a provision of RMB2,423,000 (2021:
RMB28,260,000) has been made for the prepayments for certain
terminated projects.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as supplier of the
Group has not returned the prepaid construction payment after
the completion and settlement of the project, the Group made a
provision for impairment at 24.24% of expected credit loss rate of
RMB18,717,000. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group won the lawsuit and the supplier has returned the prepaid
construction payment of RMB18,717,000 to the Group.

RESRHEMBERFAETER S
EERETRERFBRA AR
B REEREEHEBEOH
REEITREDT o FREFR LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
T _FT-A=+t—HIEFE

HE—

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, A TIME 25.

Beniae®Ry TUF

DEPOSIT AND RESTRICTED CASH MEZRFA S
2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTITE RS 964,534 1,366,486
Less: restricted cash (Note a) B SRR FIR 2 (MfEa) (92,338) (121,604)
Cash and cash equivalents REMREERBY 872,196 1,244,882
Cash and bank balances denominated in: IR&MERTTEEFRA TFI| EHE(E
- RMB — AR 955,130 1,358,014
— United States dollar —%7T 919 842
— Hong Kong dollar —ATT 6,870 6,283
— Indian rupee —HEEL 1,615 1,347
964,534 1,366,486
Note a: Restricted cash mainly represents deposits held for issued bills fifffa : RRFIRESERIEFIERBIER

payable and performance obligations for engineering services,
property maintenance and frozen deposits for construction
contract disputes.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
to be settled within one year.

26.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

W5 E T RIATE R

BEHRNRENENEEIASLBE
R—FREE -

2022 2021

— =22 —F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETF T AREF T
Bills payable (Note) FEATERR (B 5E) 54,053 115,091
Trade payables B S ENIE 4,759,759 4,463,973
4,813,812 4,579,064

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables, based on the
invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SN FIAMENRBENRE SO :

2022 2021

s —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

Within 1 year —F R 2,625,449 2,329,536
1 year to 2 years —EWF 472,115 579,393
2 years to 3 years ME=F 505,427 354,407
More than 3 years HBiE=F 1,210,821 1,315,728
4,813,812 4,579,064

Note: Part of the above bills payable are secured by trade and bills
receivables with a net carrying value of RMB7,880,000 (31
December 2021: RMB5,981,000) (Note 23).

MizE : ERENERBOEE@FEFERAA
R#7,880,000t( =T =—F+=
A=+—H8: AR¥H5,081,0007t)
K E 5 FE LKL IE 0 Uk = AR AR (B
££23) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HtifEFTRIAMEREA

2022 2021
— 2= —=F -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥FiT ARKEFT
Contract liabilities ARBE (a) 232,089 145,420
Taxes payable, other than  BRFTSHi MY FEART B 18
income tax 55,296 41,163
Interest payables FETAIE 10,222 13,232
Dividends payable FERTARE 28,925 30,920
Other payables E b RIAR (b) 628,984 751,948
955,516 982,683
Notes: BiRE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AREEPMAYIRET ¢

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E=-= —E-—& —E-—F
+=A=+-H +=—A=t+—~H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF7 AREFT AREFT
Short-term advances received SEHEKREF R
from customers
Sale of industrial products HETEER 4,239 3,533 27,484
Construction services BERY 227,850 141,887 310,639
Total contract liabilities ERBES 232,089 145,420 338,123
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to EREERFEHE LXERRIEH
deliver industrial products and construction services. The BIiE RS WA EHTERR - =&
increase in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the ——FERABEMNENFELSHARN
increase in short-term advances received from customers in FREZEREEBNEHEBERE
relation to the provision of construction services at the end PRIERE I ©
of the year.
(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms (b) HMEMNRIBESAERNS BE

of repayment. EEME o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

28. PROVISIONS

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. BfH

Warranties Other losses Total
RES Higx =
(Note a) (Nore b)
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ANEETT
At 1 January 2022 NZZE-_—_F—HF—H 1,260 123,151 124,411
Additional provision RIMNEE 600 - 600
Amounts utilised during the year FAERAEHE (780) (123,151) (123,931)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ=Z=F+=-A=+—H 1,080 - 1,080
Portion classified as current liabilities S &ARBEEDD (600) = (600)
Non-current portion FERBES 480 = 480
Note a: Bff3Ea
The Group provides one to three years of maintenance service to REEHBEFEHETEPNBY IEE
its customers for certain industrial products sales related to the MR- =FNHERS - AEEER
prior year sales. The amount of the provision for the warranties is THE RAESIRISK T BAE LR ERIEH
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the level of MNEBSE  AEESTEERZET R
maintenance service. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing FEREMRER - WHEEERBEET -
basis and revised where appropriate.
Note b: BiaEb :
Other losses of provisions mainly represented the accrued liabilities Hbh B8k = i85 £ xXMisE7 (o) Fradi =
recognised for the provisions for the litigations or contract disputes ZHEREEESERBNFRHERF
mainly related to the issues of the Indian construction projects EITERNETAE  EREREEI(T -

mentioned in Note 7(b), which have been fully paid during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& Ot B aR MY e (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

29.

T —F+_A=+—HIEFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 29. RSfTERINEMER
AND OTHER LOANS
Effective 31 December 31 December
interest rate Maturity 2022 2021
ZBICET ZECET
1 il 3R =A=t-B ZA=1-H
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETT
Current )
Bank borrowings: RITHEA
- unsecured —®HR 2.80%-4.10% 2023 2,746,495 2,676,495
Other loans; EHER
- unsecured —EHA 3.10%-4.50% 2023 600,000 78,080
- short-term bonds (Note a| — R E 5 (Mita) 2.00% 2023 500,000 500,000
3,846,495 3,254 575
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings &HBTEZNEMEZHEDHES
and other loans
Bank borrowings - unsecured IR — B 3.10%-4.11% 2023 856,666 404,574
Bank borrowings - guaranteed (Note b) RITfEH — BER (D) 4.25% 2023 5,500 9,000
Other loans - unsecured EER — BEH 3.95% 2023 8,900 86,550
Lease liabilities (Note 17b) REBEMEF17D) 4.41% 2023 33,801 35,106
904,957 535,230
4,751,452 3,789,805
Non-current FHH
Long-term bank borrowings and other loans: RESTREAREMER -
Bank borrowings - unsecured RITleH — BER 3.10%-3.96%  2024-2027 519,793 1,275,587
Bank borrowings - guaranteed RITfEH — BER - 5,500
Other loans - unsecured EER — BER - 8,900
Other loans - bonds EtER— &5 3.39% 2024 110,000 600,000
Lease liabilities (Note 17b) REBEMT1TD) 441%  2024-2038 258,996 272,99
888,789 2,162,981
5,640,241 5,952,786
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans LA T3 &% tHE -
denominated in:
-RMB — AE% 5,640,241 5,952,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

Note a:

On 5 July 2021, 20 January 2022, 30 March 2022 and 20 July 2022,
the Company issued four tranches of super short-term bonds at a
par value of RMB100 amounting to RMB500 million each. The bonds
had annual effective interest rates of 2.69%, 2.40%, 2.20% and
2.00% respectively. The first, second and third tranches of short-term
bonds were already matured in April 2022, April 2022 and July 2022,
respectively, and the fourth tranche of short-term bond was matured
and repaid in February 2023.

Note b:

The above secured bank borrowings were guaranteed by the Company
for certain subsidiaries.

29.

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

HERRITERMEAME R
(#8%)

Bff5Ea :

R-ZBE-_—F+AHA  —E-—F—#
—+H -ZE=_=F=ZA=t+HEK=Z=
ZFtA=+H  ARRBTOHTHE
AR%500,000,000 TH B BRLE S - =
HLBHABARKI00T - %SMESFNE
BREFIED R E2.69% +2.40% ~ 2.20%
2.00% - F—H - = Hﬁ&’*‘%@ﬁﬂ
HMEFEDR=_T=_=_FMNA -

T FMNARZEZ=F+LAEH - %E
HBEHmESEN R =F = AREY
8ig -

Bi&Eb

FHERITERAAR AR AE THIE A BETT
ER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z-_—+-_A=1t—HIFE
29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 29. RS RfTRZMEMER
AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) (#8)

The maturity profile of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other loans as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

FRRITERMEMERRZREHR
EEIBIERAT

248

2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Analysed into: DI ¢

Bank borrowings repayable: FETRTTER
Within one year —FR 3,608,661 3,090,069
In the second year F_F 331,992 781,294
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EZERF(BREEREMTE) 187,802 494,711
Beyond five years AF% - 5,082
4,128,455 4,371,156

Other loans repayable: FEREMERK
Within one year —FR 1,142,791 699,736
In the second year F_F 140,735 38,993
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEERF(REERMT) 84,608 682,836
Beyond five years AF% 143,652 160,065
1,511,786 1,581,630
Total &t 5,640,241 5,952,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

31.

32.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SHARE CAPITAL 30. B&&E
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Shares [:80) AR FT ARMTF T
Issued and fully paid: BEITHEC :
2,967,542,000 2,967,542,000%
(2021: 2,967,542,000) ordinary shares (ZZ——% : 2,967,542,000
%) Ak 2,967,542 2,967,542
RESERVES 31. %W

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 32.

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below:

BE-_Z-_—_#K-_FT-_—F+-A=
+—HIEFE  AEENFERES S
BENTEEIERZERA -

BAEXHFERERZNFESR
BB 27

BEB FERERNARENRE QR
HEHIMT

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Percentage of equity interests held by  3E3EAR#E R 335G HORRRELL I

non-controlling interests:
Technologies & Engineering Company £HE T2 A F] 44% 44%
Nanjing Environmental Protection AR IR IR 7.89% 7.89%
Tiandi Environmental RHERIR 35% 35%

T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 32. SFEXERERRESHNIESR

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BEMELT ()
(CONTINUED)
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to R EEBNIEEREZEH

non-controlling interests: FE(BK):

Technologies & Engineering Company  BHE T2 F] (52,870) (247,994)
Nanjing Environmental Protection ARIRR 3,357 1,621
Tiandi Environmental RHIRIR 14,340 10,651

Dividends declared to non-controlling BX M FIEERERNRS

interests:

Technologies & Engineering Company BT A F] - -
Nanjing Environmental Protection A RERIR = -
Tiandi Environmental RHIRIR 9,586 7,000

Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥R B BiFFIE AL S Y

interests at the reporting date: RETeREE

Technologies & Engineering Company ~ RHEX T2 A F] (292,981) (240,687)
Nanjing Environmental Protection IR R 40,198 36,841
Tiandi Environmental RHERIR 84,071 79,318
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Technologies & Engineering Company, Nanjing Environmental
Protection and Tiandi Environmental. The amounts disclosed are

before any inter-company eliminations:

32.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

BAEXHFREREZNFESR
BRELF (&)

TREAMKIEAR - BRREEX
WRERNMBEABE - IRENEHE
REERQRREIEHERNESE -

Technologies Nanjing
& Engineering  Environmental Tiandi
2022 —E-CF Company Protection Environmental
BEIEAR ARERR RiIRR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AREF7 AREFT ARMFT
Revenue WA 455,628 483,930 103,673
Total expenses B (575,788) (441,382) (62,703)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFIE/(BK) (120,160) 42,548 40,970
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the — FER4RA e/ (18K )&%
year (118,850) 42,548 40,970
Current assets RENEE 2,092,371 1,212,973 92,936
Non-current assets ERBEE 287,231 433,997 173,310
Current liabilities MEAEE 3,028,927 1,006,590 25,324
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 16,539 130,899 718
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) e EEmE/ (FR)RERE
operating activities pcsc] 38,884 (9,229) 84,144
Net cash flows used in investing activites ~ REEBIAESREFE (2,574) (16,341) (21,616)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EZHMEESREFEE (22,647) (11,785) (27,469)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE &5 2% 298 = =
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ~ BREMBALEEBMEM,/CiD)
equivalents FER 13,961 (37,355) 35,059
T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FIIT R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ZT-_—_F+-A=1+—HIFE

32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 32. SFEXERERRESHNIESR

252

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BRELT (&)

(CONTINUED)
Technologies Nanjing
& Engineering Environmental Tiandi
2021 T F Company Protection Environmental
BHR T2 AT BARER RiIR R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB0O0O
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 560,923 423,317 91,321
Total expenses BHY (1,124,546) (402,777) (60,889)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHE,/(BE (563,623) 20,540 30,432
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the — FER4RA Uz ( TE ) 4%
year (562,557) 20,540 30,432
Current assets mEBEE 2,594,057 1,208,082 93,522
Non-current assets FRBEE 310,670 464,305 169,483
Current liabilities mEaE (3,310,953) (968,571) (35,624)
Non-current liabilities E A=K (140,790) (236,883) (759)
Net cash flows generated from operating K& EHHMEESAEFE
activities 105,838 44,022 312
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ RETZHMAE S REFE (5,442) (4,877) (15,652)
Net cash flows used in financing activities Hﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁbﬁﬁﬁqfﬁi MEFE (24,621) (41,463) (20,073)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE &5/ £ %% (388) - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ~ BREMRLZEMEN,/CiD)
equivalents FE 75,387 (2,318) (35,313)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash reductions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of nil (2021: RMB8,700,000)
and nil (2021: RMB8,625,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for buildings and other infrastructure.
The difference was due to the early termination of two
leases during the year ended 31 December 2021, with
the amount of RMB75,000 for gains on disposal of right-
of-use assets.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

33. EfHRKRERME

(a) EEFREXH

REE  SREFREMEPER
MHRELHE - ANEEERE
EERHEABHRESRBL ©HE
PAABE(ZEZ—F: AR¥
8,700,0007T) R E(ZF=—4F :
AR #8,625,0007T) - =& ZH
REZE-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFEBMMHELRATL L -
EERBTAEEENREAR
#75,0007T °

(b) MBEFDELHRREE

activities
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
and other loans
(other than lease Other payables
2022 “E-CF liabilities) Lease liabilities and accruals
STERTHER
MEER Hith S FE
(BREEEEM) HEAE MESER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2022 = = 5,644,686 308,100 982,683
Changes from financing cash flows B&EZR & REMNE (297,332) (4,441) (275,140)
Non-cash flow impact FheREVE = (29,868) -
New leases e - 6,506 -
Interest expenses FEZH - 12,590 199,335
2021 final dividends - FREKRE = = 87,734
Dividends declared by a subsidiary P& A 72K T IE15 Ak i 2
to its non-controlling shareholder & AHIIE S = = 12,729
Changes from operating cash flows &4 EEHE &R EHE S = = 16,881
Exchange gains and losses I B s et - = (484)
Changes from investing cash flows R&ESHE & RENE S - = (68,222)
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZ—F+=A=+—H 5,347,354 292,887 955,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& Ot B aR MY e (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. &#R&RERME(HE)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METHEEMNEMRED
activities (Continued) (#)

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
and other loans

(other than lease Other payables
2021 —E-—fF liabilities) Lease liabilities and accruals
FRRITER
FEMER Hftn e R
(BRHEZEEEMN) HEERE FETER
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2021 R-Z-—4%—fA—H 5,751,206 319,683 1,789,559
Changes from financing cash flows B&EEIRERENEE) (107,118) (33,391) (736,219)
New leases EHE - 9,813 =
Lease modification HEEE - 1,063 =
Lease termination HELKIE - (2,251) =
Interest expenses FEZH 598 13,183 208,178
2020 final dividends _1_7@&%@}% - - 132,352
Dividends declared by a subsidiary B8R &0k T3 Hﬂ& 3
to its non-controlling shareholder ﬁ)\E’JHXE - - 7,000
Changes from operating cash flows &4 EEHE &R EHE D - - (200,925)
Exchange gains and losses I B s e - - (4,286)
Changes from investing cash flows R&EHE & RENE D - - (212,976)
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+-A=+—H 5,644,686 308,100 982,683
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HARHALRHEHE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated AORERERTNEER M
statement of cash flows is as follows: MBI -
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBFT
Within operating activities R TEE) 6,913 13,133
Within financing activities BhEEED 4,441 33,391
11,354 46,524

254 2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B PR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

India Gujarat Project

As mentioned in Note 7(b), on 16 March 2019, the Group's
subsidiaries, Technologies & Engineering Company and
Technologies & Engineering India signed construction
contracts for desulfurisation and wet chimney with GSECL.
Due to the impact of COVID-19, the construction progress
was delayed and GSECL issued a formal notice which
stated that it might take measures such as terminating the
contract, redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
entrusting the work to others to complete. The Group fully
accrued provisions of RMB75,848,000 for the redemption
of the performance guarantee letter, and also considered
that the corresponding advance receipts of RMB25,835,000
would no longer be obligated to be returned after the
redemption of the performance guarantee letter, and
incurred other expenses of RMB50,013,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 accordingly. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the performance guarantee
letter of RMB75,848,000 has been fully redeemed. The
likelihood of occurrence of other compensations about
these contract disputes cannot be estimated reliably.

India NLC Project

As mentioned in Note 7(b), on 6 March 2020, Technologies
& Engineering Company signed a construction contract
with NLC India. Due to the impact of COVID-19, the
construction progress was delayed, and NLC India issued
a formal notice to request to terminate the contract and
redeem the performance guarantee letter amounting to
RMB47,303,000. In addition, the claims brought by NLC
India also include the costs incurred in re-tendering and the
arbitration progress. The Group fully accrued a provision
of RMB47,303,000 for the request of redeeming the
performance guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses
of RMB47,303,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
accordingly. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the performance guarantee letter of RMB47,303,000 has
been fully redeemed. The likelihood of occurrence of other
compensations about these contract disputes cannot be
estimated reliably.

BE

- —F+-_A=1+—HItFE

34. XFAER

(a)

(b)

ENE GujaratIi B

o bt EE7(b) Bt - R =F —
NEZA+RE » XREBZHWE
AREE TRRARMEHL T2
FEARIEEGSECLER] TR - B
BEREEBRAR - AXHEREE
M2 - BRI TEIERR - GSECL
BHEBN  WREAJESF
B IEAR ~ ATRE - BIRE
L THATKERE - ~AEH
$HE N R EKE BB RS
AR #75,848,0007T * R A
JE #0FB Uk A R 5 25,835,000 7T
ERNBORNETBEELR
g YHERBEE-_T-—F+
AT RAUEFEELHEMHE
S AR#50,013,0007T ° REZE
T F+ZA=+—HL#F
g+ AR¥75,848,0007TH) B 4
REELZER - HEZSAR
A EA B ESBEE R
i

EPENLCIRE
fm R FEE7(0) AT - R ==
TEZAANE - BRTRAASR

~

NLC IndiaZZBE@EBAR %
AHEEREreE #EIRE
JEFR - #INLC IndiaZt i E A&
Ao B IEARI SN ED
R A R ¥ 47,303,0007T ° It
4 » NLC Indiae H ) 5F 54 £ 3R
EOREVHREELANER -
HEBEFEENERE - A&
B SR M EBE AT R
5 A R ¥ 47,303,000 @ I 47
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

35. COMMITMENTS

35. i

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (a) REERERERREBNTE
end of the reporting period: AEIE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT A BT T
Contracted, but not provided for EEFOIEIDES
Buildings BF 322 827
Plant and machinery % B & fE 61,571 155,018
Equity investment (Note) R E () 15,048 15,048
76,941 170,893
Note: On 30 December 2021, the Company has entered Max: RZZE-_—F+=-A=+
into the joint venture agreement with Datang Henan H AXAREPBEKEZ
Power Generation Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary 2EWBRRIANEEESE
of China Datang, in relation to the proposed formation BRABEREZKILEE
of the joint venture company with a registered capital NARI LA B - i
of RMB30,096,000. Pursuant to the joint venture &R B AR30,096,000
agreement, the Company shall make a capital T o BREAERE AR
contribution of RMB15,048,000, representing 50% A& AR # 15,048,000
equity interest in the joint venture company. The capital JC 15 A &R A50% KR
contribution has not been paid as at the reporting date. #eBERER  REE
R ARZAT o
(b) The Group had no lease contracts that have not yet (b) R-ZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H -

commenced as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36.

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. FAMARZS
The Group is part of China Datang and had significant transactions RAEBRTFBEKRNENKE AR @+ RAF
with China Datang Group during the year. FRAESEEBREERNRS °
The related party transactions in respect of the sales and purchase MPBRAESEEREETAEBEAAD
of goods, the rendering of and receiving of services to and from ENEERY RHIEZRBE@AN
China Datang Group and certain associates and joint ventures AT 225 - A RRMIEE36(a) Tt EY B
of China Datang Group, and loans from/to and interest expense/ BEAEEEESED MPEAEER
income to/from China Datang Group as detailed in Note 36(a) REEREAFTEAESBEZGHF S
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected MY/ WA BFBRXEEEESHF
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Bt WA LEK ETRAIE14AZEFT
EENBAERX SN FEBER S °
In addition to the related party transactions disclosed elsewhere BREVBHRREMIBOIFEENBE 5
in the financial statements, the following is a summary of the SN - T Xl AN S B N R T R
significant related party transactions entered into the ordinary RNEEBBEFBERRILEKXN B
course of business between the Group and its related parties RS o
during the year.
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXRBAXS
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ffaF AR FT ABREF T
Sales of goods and rendering BHFBEAEEEEES
of services to China Datang Y& R R
Group (i)
Environmental protection and IRIRETEBERRR T &R
energy conservation solutions 4,241,863 4,142,999
Renewable energy engineering A AARRLIIE 199,563 334,714
Others Hih 889 126
4,442,315 4,477,839
Sales of goods and rendering of [EHE AKEEBESEE
services to the associates and A FEEY RIZH
joint ventures of China Datang  fR#
Group (i)
Environmental protection and IRTRENRE AR T 22
energy conservation solutions 395,286 277,575
Purchases of goods and BHEAEEEBEER
receiving of services from Y &% 32 R
China Datang Group (i)
Water supply and electricity supply #t/K&HEE 744,019 708,703
Ancillary services under the FRETAS & 518 T A
concession operations B AR %5 102,713 91,577
Logistics services & E RS 79,518 69,328
Wind power electricity and other — EAEE 1 R HAE
products 854,646 564,980
1,780,896 1,434,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BT BRI E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HIFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. FRABAZH(IE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXFEBAZH(IE)
(Continued)
2022 2021
—g== —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARMFT ARBFT
Purchases of goods and BEFEAEEESHE
receiving of services from the AREESYRES
associates and joint ventures R
of China Datang Group (i)
Water supply and electricity supply K &tE 93,400 84,289
Wind power electricity and other  [EEEE 11 R EAhEE T
products = 274
93,400 84,563
Loans from subsidiaries of EHEAEEEHEA
China Datang Group GREEA (i)
China Datang Finance Co., Ltd. RREAXEIEER AT
(“Datang Finance") (Note a) ([ REE# ) (Fif5Ea) 2,312,500 1,408,080
Datang Commercial Factoring Co., KEEEREFRE A A
Ltd. (“Datang Commercial ([ REERHAREE |) (Y
Factoring”) (Note a) Fa) - 70,000
2,312,500 1,478,080
Interest expense on loans from @A EAEEEHBEQ
subsidiaries of China Datang AMERNAEZH
Group (1)
Datang Finance RNEME 8,926 2,776
Datang Financial Lease Co., Ltd.  AEmEHEAFR AT
(“Datang Financial Lease") ([REMERE]) 7,254 15,398
Datang Commercial Factoring ANEEERE 726 3,163
16,906 21,337
Interest income from a mAEXEEEHE LD
subsidiary of China Datang FFEREE R 2 W
Group A (1)
Datang Finance KE S 3,732 5,1€%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RELATED
(CONTINUED)

(a)

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

All transactions with related parties were conducted at
prices and on terms mutually agreed by the parties involved,
which are determined as follows:

(i)

Sales of goods and rendering of services to China
Datang Group and its associates and joint ventures,
purchases of goods and receiving of services from
China Datang Group and its associates and joint
ventures (excluding property leases)

Pricing policies for products: The pricing
policies for products are as follows:

(a) the bidding price where the bidding
process is required; or

(b) where no bidding process is involved,
the market price.

Pricing policies for concession operations
(desulfurisation and denitrification) services:
The desulfurisation and denitrification tariffs
under the concession operation services
are determined based on the government-
prescribed price, while the prices for by-
products are determined based on the
market price. In respect of the auxiliary
services offered to the Group by China
Datang Group under the desulfurisation
and denitrification concession operations,
the price is determined in accordance with
the costs of human resources in connection
with the auxiliary services and related
management expenses as well as relevant
maintenance expenses for the equipment
of power plants and with reference to the
industry average level.

BT RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEE

36. FMAEZH(HE)

(a)

EXRBA XS (M)

MERB IR RETRE
HRE M ERMIEFETT - B

TREEE :

(i) FFEXERERRSH
BN FIHERYE EHhIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

(i) Sales of goods and rendering of services to China
Datang Group and its associates and joint ventures,
purchases of goods and receiving of services from
China Datang Group and its associates and joint
ventures (excluding property leases) (Continued)

c. Pricing policies for services other than
concession operations services: The pricing
policies for these kinds of services are as
follows:

(a) the bidding price where the bidding
process is required; or

(b) where no bidding process is involved,
the market price.

d. Pricing policy for procurement of equipment:
In respect of equipment procurement from
China Datang Group, in most circumstances,
bidding procedures shall apply for the
determination of the price. Only in exceptional
circumstances, such as urgent purchases
by the Group, bidding procedures can be
skipped by the Group where the purchase
price shall be determined by experts of the
Group based on the fair market value and
historical records of the procurement price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

36. FBARXH(IE)

36. RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Significant

related party transactions

(Continued)

(ii)

Financial services

Datang Finance provides loan services, deposit
services and other financial services to the Group.

Pricing policy: The pricing policies for financial
services are as follows:

(a) the interest rate for the Group's deposits
with Datang Finance shall not be lower
than the equivalent deposit interest rate as
provided by other financial institutions in the
PRC by reference to the benchmark interest
rates published by the PBOC;

(b) the interest rate for loans granted to the
Group by Datang Finance shall not be higher
than the equivalent loan interest rate as
charged by other financial institutions in the
PRC by reference to the benchmark interest
rates published by the PBOC; and

(c) the fees charged by Datang Finance for the
provision of financial services to the Group
other than deposit services and loan services
shall not be higher than the rate charged by
other financial institutions in the PRC for the
same or similar type of services.

China Datang Group Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.
("Datang Capital”) provides financial leasing and
commercial factoring services to the Group.

Pricing Policy: Datang Capital has undertaken to
provide the aforementioned financial services to
the Group based on the following pricing principles:

(a) EXEBARS(HE)

(ii)

LFRE
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FIRTE - AR ARS S E A
& RARTS
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EERRWT
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17 1 o 1) & 2 R
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SRR A B E A
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FETEGERAE
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0 A % B %A
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BRI IA SN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

36. RELATED

(CONTINUED)

(a) Significant

PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

related party transactions

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

2022 Annual Report

Financial services (Continued)

(a)

financial leasing service — the rent paid
by the Group to Datang Capital includes
(i) procurement costs and (ii) interest. The
relevant interest is determined based on the
benchmark interest rates for borrowings as
implemented by the PBOC;

loan service — the interest rate for loans
granted to the Group by Datang Financial
Lease and Datang Commercial Factoring
shall not be higher than the equivalent loan
interest rate as charged by other financial
institutions in the PRC by reference to the
benchmark interest rates published by the
PBOC. During this year, all the loans granted
form Datang Financial Lease and Datang
Commercial Factoring are unsecured.

The above services are provided by Datang Financial
Lease and Datang Commercial Factoring, the
subsidiaries of Datang Capital, respectively.

Purchases of lease services from China Datang

Group

Pricing policy: The rental for property leases is
determined via negotiations between the parties
with reference to the market rental for properties
with similar conditions.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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EXRBA XS ()

(ii)

(iii)

LR (#8)

(a)

BMEMRERB-A
SERMAEER
AT R & B ()
BB A AD () F
B BT SR
PEARRITE M
BB R EL R
R °

BT — KE R
EHERAERE
REMAEERH
M E R X &
2EHEARR
17 % 4 1 & 7
K ABREAM
T BB
FERHME - F
n REMEMR
ERREMERE
BRHHmAEERS
A o

A £ AR KB B A 2 [
BRRRKEREBREMA
EEERIBDRIRME -

FPEXEREERHE
RIR#H

EEREK - HEMENHE
ERES2E ABRLRME
KD R T 5 (B i 875 13
RERE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RELATED

(CONTINUED)

(b)

PARTY

TRANSACTIONS 36.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the outstanding balances with related parties
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

MBS XS (R

(b) RABARMGEERER

BREERRPATIEEN KT
TR E-_—F+=-A=+
—B - BB REEEHDT

2022 2021
—E-C —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents ReENESEEY
Datang Finance RNEH 759,183 1,115,765
Trade and bills receivables B S REWRENEREE
China Datang Group FEIAEEE 7,453,084 6,632,222
The associates and joint ventures of REIAEEE A & AT
China Datang Group 538,093 547,274
7,991,177 7,179,496
Prepayments, other receivables  FE{1318 - HAibFEWEIE
and other assets REMEE
Prepayments TERTRIR
China Datang Group FREAEEER 188,642 17,356
Other receivables H fh fE U 5RIE
China Datang Group FEIAESE 77,267 51,116
The associates and joint ventures of FFEIAJE & B4 B & A A
China Datang Group 213 866
77,480 51,982
266,122 69,338
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE
China Datang Group FREAEEE 3,046 33,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B GRS R I R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-__F+_HF=+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.
(CONTINUED)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

(Continued)

ABA S (E|)

(b) RABEARMEERERE)

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBTF T
Contract assets EREE
China Datang Group FREAEEE 73,645 173,777
The associates and joint ventures of FEIAEEE S & A7
China Datang Group 18,800 21,397
92,445 195,174
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it ERITEHRME M E R
and other loans
(other than lease liabilities) (T eiEHEaE)
Datang Finance RNEMT 608,900 22,780
Datang Financial Lease REREHRE - 80,750
Datang Commercial Factoring AEEERE - 70,000
608,900 173,530
Trade and bills payables ZEEEASEBNESEZE
China Datang Group FRAESE 1,893,145 1,283,103
The associates and joint ventures of REIAEEE A < AT
China Datang Group 73,317 28,449
1,966,462 1,311,552
Other payables and accruals HitEREMETER
China Datang Group FRERESEE 75,671 115,070
The associates and joint ventures of RHEIAEEE S S AT
China Datang Group 5,491 10,354
81,162 125,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Transactions with other government-related

entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government and numerous government authorities and
agencies (collectively referred to as “government-related
entities”). China Datang, the parent and ultimate holding
company of the Company, is a PRC state-owned enterprise
and these government-related entities are also considered
the related parties of the Group in this respect.

Apart from the transactions with China Datang Group
mentioned above, the Group also conducts some business
activities with other government-related entities in the
ordinary course of business. These transactions are carried
out on terms similar to those that would be entered into
with non-government-related entities.

The Group prices its services and products based on
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established
its approval process for the sale of goods, provision of
services, purchase of products and receiving of services
and its financing policy for borrowings. Such approval
process and financing policy do not depend on whether
the counterparties are government-related entities or not.

Having considered the possibility for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group's approval
processes and financing policy, and what information would
be necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of
the relationship on the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors are of the opinion that further information
about the following transactions that are collectively
significant is required for disclosure:

— Deposits and borrowings

Except for the cash and cash equivalents deposited
in Datang Finance and Wing Lung Bank in Hong
Kong, the Group deposits most of its cash in
government-related financial institutions, and also
obtains short-term and long-term loans from these
financial institutions in the ordinary course of
business. The interest rates of the bank deposits
and loans are regulated by the PBOC.

BT RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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(c)

EhEHfhily FFHRERE
X5

AEEREBEAPBERFNRZ
BT R AN M 18 B R S R IR 4R
B - KRZEHSREEEEATE
MER(RREA BUFERER])
RENRERGTESE - AAF
B AR MRZZER AR HER
ERTPEEELE  ButmE
B AE B B8 TR AR (E AR SR B Y
BT

B EXRR R EPEREEED
BN AEBERAREERBRE

FEREMRFEMERGET
LEBED - RERXHREIFK
FF 8 B8 B R P AT 3L 2 5 O {6 SR AR
BB IBRFAETT -

AEEERBE XGRS HREN
EmEE  AKETEEIERH
HEEY  BHERY  BEEM
AR B B HEAE Fr A S fE SR A Bl
BHR - R EMEF B ERK
MAERRHET R SBUTHE

BHER -

REBBEMORR  AEENE
HAZFMERE BRBEH R 5EK
WEBEEZE - ARIERZEERY
BOM B RRIEKRHBEZED
VWEER  EERRBRERRE
TR SE—TER

- RIS R

BREARBEHBREBK
BIRITHIR MBS FE
moh - REBBEKRED
Rer AR AR < B
- WERAEEBPRE
ZECREBERSRE M
RHER - RITEFNE
KA EZHEARRITH

= o

B

T _FFERSE
AEBRFEXRERNHARAR

265



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BBKAEH (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) FEEEEEBAENH
of the Group A
2022 2021
—E-C —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Short-term employee benefits EHEEREF 7,870 6,810
Post-employment benefits BB 18 1R A 625 503
Total compensation paid to key TRTEEERASNEH
management personnel ek 8,495 7,313
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEMEEMEHE—PFRHE
are included in Note 10 to the consolidated financial RAA B S wERMIEET0 -
statements.
(e) Property leases (e) WXRHERA
As a lessee, the Group leases buildings for desulfurisation EEEBA » AEERKERE
and denitrification facilities from Datang Financial Lease HERFBRAESEETBEER
and some power plants from the China Datang Group, with HEMBHBRERENESF
a general lease term of 20 years. The related right-of-use HEHRRBE A20F - BEH 5 E
assets and lease liabilities, payment of lease liabilities as at RAEEENHEEAR RHREH
the end of the reporting period and the related expenses NEMNEEEERRFRER
recognised during the year are as follows: RMEEFAZAT
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARKEFIT
Right-of-use assets EREEE 271,238 289,940
Lease liabilities HEBE 289,216 304,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37.

B BRI (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BABKAZH(#E)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Property leases (Continued) (e) PMEBEGE)
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%F ARETFT
Depreciation charge ERHE 25,208 24,190
Interest expense MEER 12,431 12,976
Payments 3% 33,901 32,702
iy =1
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. #ENESHIEMTIR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the Group’s RBEHR - AEESEH SR TAN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as REEDT
follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
“E--E+-R=t-R ZET-F+ZA=1-A
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
Financial fair value fair value
assets at  through other Financial  through other
amortised comprehensive assets at - comprehensive
Financial assets cost income Total amortised cost income Total
WAAEEGE IR BEE
BEBHFAR BESHHAL
BRRAATE tEEUENE FERIATE ftiRaNENE
SREE HWemERE REE Rt HeREE HEE At
RIMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEEFR AEEFR AEEFR AREFT AREFT AREFT
Equity investments designated RENLABETEEEES
at fair value through other AR A ENER
comprehensive income e - - - - 26,389 26,389
Trade and bl receivables BRRMTENENRE 8,860,322 117,882 8,078,204 7,989,440 180,493 8,169,933
Financial assets included in STABFE - AfER
prepayments, other receivables BREpEENGRAE
and other assets 142,820 - 142,820 176,009 - 176,009
Restricted cash TREBES 92,338 - 92,338 121,604 - 121,604
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLZEY 872,196 = 872,196 1,244,882 = 1,244,882
9,967,676 117,882 10,085,558 9,531,935 206,882 9,738,817
T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. BRMERNBIZHEMIA(E)

(CONTINUED)
31 December
t=A=t+—-8
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost amortised cost
REBER AT E REERRC AT B
eRAa% HWEmas ofazi=Ei
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARETFT
Trade and bills payables B 5 eI BN R & 4,813,812 4,579,064
Financial liabilities included in other ST AR FRIE M E ST 2
payables and accruals MemaRE 723,427 776,886
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and 5T BIRITEFRMEM E K
other loans 5,640,241 5,952,786
11,177,480 11,308,736

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38 @MIRARBEMLAR

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EF®
Fair value LRRE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial %%E’gfﬁ%ﬂlﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’&ﬁ%‘;ﬁﬁlj
instruments are as follows: R
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AREE
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-C-F —E-—F —E-CEF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT

Financial liabilities SHEE

Long-term interest-bearing bank borrowings £&ist SRITERMELMER (T E
and other loans (other than lease FHERRE) (M529)
liabilities) (Note 29) 629,793 1,889,987 603,870 1,879,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, and the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings and other loans, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value disclosure of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to management. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the corporate finance team analysed the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determined the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation was reviewed and
approved by management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

o The fair values of the non-current portion of long-term
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans (other
than lease liabilities) have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair values as a result of the
Group’s own non-performance risks for interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other loans as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 were assessed to be insignificant.

o The fair values of the bills receivable which are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using the one-year bank loan interest rate published
by the People's Bank of China.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. €M I AAREBEEMAOAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) EER(E)
Fair value hierarchy LRBEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy T%lﬁﬁﬂ$%l%vaﬂlﬁﬁﬁ R BERT
of the Group’s Financial Instruments: £
Assets measured at fair value Lo RIREFENEE
Fair value measurement using
FRUATAREBSERFTE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EZUHE EEFUEE
EETEN BAEN BAER
RE(E-R) (F=@) (E=8) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+ZRA=1—H
Equity investments designated at fair value EEANAABEGEALEH
through other comprehensive income AR W E R ER R E - = = =
Trade and bills receivables B RNGENENEE = 117,882 = 117,882
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-Z—F+-RA=1+—H
Equity investments designated at fair value 3EEANAALBEEALED
through other comprehensive income FTARMERAS W R R E - 26,389 = 26,389
Trade and bills receivables B S EUEAEKEE - 180,493 - 180,493
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during RERNUE=ZR AR BEFENEHN
the year are as follows: R &
2022 2021
s =EE = E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR FT
Equity investments at fair value through #E8E AN AR EE =B HE
other comprehensive income — Rt AHALAR A WS RS
unlisted: TE—REm :
At 1 January Rn—H—H 26,389 28,914
Total losses recognised in other HAib#r & WA R EEERE
comprehensive income - (2,525)
Disposal i 5 (26,389) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - 26,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& Ot S R MY (48D

38.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. €M TAARBEMNMAOAE

EHE®R(])
LRMBEFEGE)

HELREMRRE

Fair value measurement using

RAUTAABESEHHE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EZUBER EZFAHE
ERTEN BAER BAEHR
RE(E-R) (E=8R) (B=8) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+=A=+—H
Long-term interest-bearing bank borrowings &E1Et B R1TE A E (0 E3x
and other loans (other than lease (TEEREEARE)
liabilities) - 603,870 - 603,870
As at 31 December 2021 RZZZ-F+-A=+—H
Long-term interest-bearing bank borrowings &1zt B RTHEZAE M E
and other loans (other than lease (TEEREAE)
liabilities) - 1,879,888 - 1,879,888
T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

39. FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTOBJECTIVES 39. M B R EEHEMBEE
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest- AEENFTESH T ABETBRITE
bearing bank borrowings and other loans, and cash and cash RIMEMER  HeMBLFEY - %
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments ZoMTETERARAAEENKESE
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has EES - AEEBEEERBEEEEN
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills ZEAMNSREENAE MBS EK
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from SRIBFIE U I8 & E 5 e OB M R
its operations. ES7
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are rEEeRTAEEANEIERRAFE
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. R - SNER R - = AR R A B R
Generally, senior management of the Company meets regularly to B o —ME F AAFEREEEST
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group's exposure HERASZHMMGIEREE EEAE
to these risks. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to EAEBRMNZERR - ARAEEBZE
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other [RU B i 35 AE B KK 2E - IR BIR(EA
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold ERTETAME M TEES HAR -
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. AEEWESBERBITRAEISINITE
Management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for EHTEHE - ARRBEEERANMILEE
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below: EREREOBE - ABEWT
(a) Interest rate risk (a) %3 m Pz
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market AEEARZ T EENEFIRZE
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term MNEGFTENRAEHBELEEN
debt obligations with floating interest rates. TSHEEEMER -
The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed AEE ST HHERKERETEM
and floating interest rate borrowings in order to manage FEARERNES  AEEE
its interest rate risk. The Group's interest-bearing bank FEREE - NEBMGTERITHE
borrowings and other loans, restricted cash, and cash and HKEEMER - ZBR GRS
cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not e IR e FEMIRER AT
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income B BTecHEGRAEE - F
and expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as B R F) S U A TR A BRER,
earned/incurred. EAEREBEET A B -
As at 31 December 2022, if there had been a general R=ZZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8 -
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 10 mSHERE®E EH TEAE
basis points, with all other variables held constant, the 22 MAAAEEMEHERFD
Group's consolidated pre-tax profit would have decreased/ g RIAREEN S OFR A
increased by approximately RMB1,843,000 (31 December gD Bl D InA A R
2021: RMB2,041,000) and there had been no impact on 1,843,000 c( — T = —F + =
other components of the consolidated equity, except for A=+—8: AR%2,041,000
retained profits, of the Group. The estimated 10 basis L) BEBRARSEFEN - T'
points, increase or decrease represents management'’s N B S i o 1 E h 78 A ED
assessment of a reasonably possible change in market DEKFE o fhar T EER LA
interest rates over the period until the next annual year end. K NEEEREEHHRARNET —
BFEERTSHEAESIZE )
BIFTIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS (CONTINUED)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain significant
foreign currency deposits, trade receivables, and trade
payables denominated in United States Dollars (“USD"),
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD"), and Indian Rupee (“INR").
The treasury management department of the Group closely
monitors the international foreign currency market on the
change of exchange rates and takes this into consideration
when depositing foreign currency deposits and borrowing
loans. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had significant
exposures to USD and INR.

The Group has transactional currency exposures which arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The exposure
was insignificant for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021.

A ISR R R BT e (48

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—

B —F+-A=t—HItEE

39. MERREEBRMBE

(%)
(b)

&1 B R P&

SMERFRFERBENETIUET
(TEx]) BBl RNE
EL(TENERELE DFHENE T
EFER  BEHRUGFIERE S E
NFRIE - REFEIBE @%fw
5 122 B B NG 77 355 ) B 3R 2

WA TF AINE 77 30 R & )\gr
MAZER - RZTZ=_F+=A
=+—H FAEEHETRDE
ELLBEEAHA o

REBEZHMERZFEKRR - %
FRERIDEBKEEMAEN
MBI EBHEITEEM
EE HEZTZZ_F+=ZA=
+—BAR-—_B-_—Ft+-A=+

—HILFE  FAEEXSFEKE
B FEA
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate after tax in equity
ExtH BRBLER BEEm
/(TR) WM//ﬁ¢ /(D)
% RMB000
% ARBETT
2022 T —F
If RMB weakens against USD WARBHZTRE 5 6,230 6,230
If RMB strengthens against USD S AREHETHE (5) (6,230) (6,230)
2021 —T--F
If RMB weakens against USD WARBHELLE 5 5,703 5,703
If RMB strengthens against USD S ARBHETHE (5) (5,703) (5,703)
T FEFERE

AEBRREXEEENERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEr—ZT——

F+A=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. Mi#EBEE HIEMBE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(#8%)

Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) SMERPE(#E)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate after tax in equity
ExtH BRB % A BEEm
J(TE) /(D) /(D)
% RMB’000 RMB000
% ARETT  ARETR
2022 -
If RMB weakens against INR WARBHOEELRZE 5 (2,850) (2,850)
If RMB strengthens against INR WAREUIEELFE (5) 2,850 2,850
2021 —T--F
If RMB weakens against INR WAREHINEELRE 5 310 310
If RMB strengthens against INR W AREHEEELAE (5) (310) (310)
Credit risk (c) (SFRBE

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 83% (2021:
80%) of the total trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, and contract assets were due from China Datang
Group, the Group's largest customer. As the Group's
major customers are China Datang'’s subsidiaries or other
state-owned enterprises, the Group believes that they are
reliable and of high credit quality, and hence, there is no
significant credit risk with these customers. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Senior management of the Company keeps reviewing and
assessing the creditworthiness of the Group's existing
customers on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. M#EBEE HIEMBE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#8)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) {ERRBE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRABEEHOLIREER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRINTERAREEBEABERR
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, ERARE - ERERRAMA
which is mainly based on past due information unless UE+ZA=+—HBHFREE
other information is available without undue cost or effort, gl FEERBENEA(R
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. R EMEMER L BERK
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for KAREN) - 25 & B AR
financial assets. BENLKEEEM -
As at 31 December 2022 R=B==%+=A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 R 5
EREX KRERHERBX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total

LY &2 BB3  EEhE at
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARKET (EEFIT

AR

CIT

Contract assets* AREE - - - 186,145 186,145
Trade and bills receivables* B RN ERER SR 117,882 - - 9,169,805 9,287,687
Financial assets included in prepayments,  FTAFENFIE « HiERFENLM

other receivables and other assets EERGREE

- Normal** =EE™ 142,820 - - - 142,820

- Doubtful** —gERE - - - - -
Restricted cash RRHRS

~ Not yet past due — AR5 92,338 - - - 92,338
Cash and cash equivalents ReMESEEY

- Not yet past due — R 38 872,196 - - - 872,19

1,225,236 =

9,355,950 10,581,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

39. FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. Mi#EBEE HIEMBE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) {EFRPE(#&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BARBHOLIBREE ()
As at 31 December 2021 R-F_—%+_H=+—8

Lifetime ECLs
RABHERER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
g fEER2 B&R3  @Hh% ait

NI

=4

RMB00O0  RMB0O0O  RMBOOO — ARMB00OO  RMB000

T

AEEBFIL

Contract assets* AREE - - - 267191 267,191
Trade and bills receivables* B REENRSRE 180,493 - - 8282405 84623898
Financial assets included in prepayments, s ARNFIE « EitEWGENES
other receivables and other assets EERGREE
- Normal** = 117,510 58,499 - - 176,009
- Doubtful** —gER* - - - - -
Restricted cash XR#FE
- Not yet past due — iR 38 121,604 = = - 121,604
Cash and cash equivalents RefMRe%EY
~ Not yet past due —hREIE 1,244,882 - - - 1,244,882
1,664,489 58,499 - 8,549,596 10,272,584
o For contract assets and trade receivables to which the 2 HRAEERAGZ 5 AT RBE
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, HARBENRE SEWIE - &
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed REEBEHE D RN E 8 %
in Notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial WMERMITE22 R MIFE235 5 -

statements, respectively.

o0 The credit quality of the financial assets included in )3 EETATAMNRIE - A EKRIEN
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is HinEENEMEERDE - IFE
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due B&RAB VR REREEEARR
and there is no information indicating that the financial BEBERME  AIURAEERS

assets had a significant increase in credit risk since BARIEE] - B8 REEEAS
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the FaE[AIE] -
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure ERAASERE SR HKAMEENER
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in RO EMECERRE FTIEREN
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. 23 EE o

276 2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability
to obtain external financing to meet its committed future

capital expenditure.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. MERREEBRMBE

(#8%)

(d)

e BY 1 L B

AEBENREB T REBEEER
RAREERSRAUNNEHEE
BIEARS FE1TARRE A (£ RO BE 0 AN ER
BINBREABITEAERRE
AFXHEES -

RZEZZFRZFTZ—F+=
A=+—8  A&£ENLHBARE
BIKA B AREIR A FE L A 5 H
7 N

31 December 2022

“E-__F+-HA=1-H
Within 1to 2to More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —-EZmE MELE AFLE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Lease liabilities HEa’E 34,059 34,059 102,177 219,894 390,189
Trade and bills payables BHRMAFENENSZE 4,813,812 - - - 4,813,812
Financial liabilities included in other &t A fE(TFIBRER
payables and accruals EBRMSREE 723,427 - - - 723,427
Short-term interest-bearing bank & HiEH BBITESRME M
borrowings and other loans ER(BREEEEIN)
(excluding lease liabilities) 4,717,561 - - - 4,717,561
Long-term interest-bearing bank  REEHBEFEZTNEM
borrowings and other loans ER(BREEEEIN)
(excluding lease liabilities) - 261,231 434,299 - 695,530
10,288,859 295,290 536,476 219,894 11,340,519
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. M#EBXEE HIEMBE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#&)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEEMERBE(HE)
31 December 2021
“E-—$tZA=+—H
Within 1to 2to  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR  —E@ME MERF  IENE G

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000
ABEFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT

Lease liabilities HEAE 34,962 34,962 104,887 271,612 446,423
Trade and bills payables BHEMNFEANENZE 4,579,064 - - - 4,579,064
Financial liabilities included in other &t A fE(IF B ER

payables and accruals BRMSRAE 776,886 = = = 776,886
Short-term interest-bearing bank & Eist BBITEFME M

borrowings and other loans BER(BREEEEIN)

(excluding lease liabilities) 3,754,699 - - - 3,754,699
Long-term interest-bearing bank Rzt BETEZTNEM

borrowings and other loans ER(BREEEEIN)

(excluding lease liabilities) 242,986 873,769 1,154,553 5,308 2,276,616

9,388,597 908,731 1,259,440 276,920 11,833,688
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives for managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratio in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debts. No change was made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans, less
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash. Capital includes
the equity attributable to owners of the parent and non-
controlling interests stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

BE

—E-—HF+-A=+—HItFE

39. MEERREHEHBRMER

(%8)
(e)

BFER

FEEEAEENEEARRR
EARENRER LN MBS
RENERLE - UXHEBR
RBEREREANEER °

REFEZRBREIZEELRS
B o AEBEBELCEM RS EF
M & E R R Be 15 B B IR AN B
BAREE - REFIHABERLE
B AEEXERABIRMS TRE
MRESEE  MBREBEER
BITHMBRKEEEEUNR LD E
HoBET__FRZT=—
F+-_A=1+—HLFE EX
EEAR  BURSIEF W EEM
BE) o

AEBUNEERBLXEEE
R ZHEEAEBFRERAE AR
MERFEAE - BEFFEERE
BHERMNFRNENRE - Hit
FERT SRIRMFERT B A A SRt B R
TEFMEMERRRE MRS
FEYMZRGRE - EABRE
BHMBRRKRMIIGRARHES
ARG S MIEE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEr—ZT——

F+A=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, but are
not limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

39.

MR ERE B RMBE
(#8%)

(e)

BEEEGE)

AEENBRASRFEEARL
RERREAKE » AFFHE
%o ARERBHN TR
BRARRBAIRRRSREFTK
0 18 765 1) A i 422 B ) 2R 58 SR A9
S #FTBHARTHEES
BKEARFBIZEEIMBE
AE(WAFRE) - RBMEHMKR

reporting periods were as follows: MEEBBLLENT :
2022 2021
s —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Trade and bills payables (Note 26) & 5 & RIB M B E 1%
(Mi7E26) 4,813,812 4,579,064
Other payables and accruals HE e FIBEMERT & A
(Note 27) (FF=E27) 955,516 982,683
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  HBSRITERMEMETK
and other loans (Note 29) (FfF3E29) 5,640,241 5,952,786
Less: cash and cash equivalents e MREEEY
(Note 25) (M47E25) (872,196) (1,244,882)
Less: restricted cash (Note 25) B TR HIZR & (MY EE25) (92,338) (121,604)
Net debt (E ] 10,445,035 10,148,047
Total equity B 6,896,749 6,755,576
Capital and net debt BB FEE 17,341,784 16,903,623
Gearing ratio BEEBBHE 60% 60%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company is as follows:

B P SRR M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE

FLFMERRAR

ARBFHRRARERAT

2022 2021
—E-= —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx AR F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 5,339,154 5,588,149
Intangible assets | EE 157,493 167,424
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 278,113 302,734
Equity investments designated at fair HEFENAAABEEAHES
value through other comprehensive FFAH AR A W MR
income "E - 26,389
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARRIRE 623,010 585,010
Deferred tax assets R IR E 45,598 42,677
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 479,268 518,592
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 6,922,636 7,230,975
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =& 81,295 80,175
Contract assets AREE 40,570 64,732
Trade and bills receivables B S EBGRIEF R EE 6,754,282 5,514,102
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFRIE ~ E M FEYGRIE R H A
other assets AE 1,978,697 1,641,142
Restricted cash ZRHIE S 42,012 32,316
Cash and cash equivalents BReMAeEEY 615,845 1,010,998
Total current assets B EEMAEE 9,512,701 8,343,465
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables B S EMNRIBEFEMNEE 3,128,243 2,378,748
Other payables and accruals Hih e RIBMETE R 656,551 1,116,876
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BT R 4,614,987 2,980,627
Total current liabilities REEEARE 8,399,781 6,476,251
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,112,920 1,867,214
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRREBAR
LIABILITIES 8,035,556 9,098,189

T _FFERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B RS M e (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. FZAFRMBHRRE ()
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2022 2021
—E_-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKEFIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 771,178 2,057,621
Other non-current liabilities EfIEmBasE 17,374 20,327
Total non-current liabilities kARBABEREE 788,552 2,077,948
Net assets BEFE 7,247,004 7,020,241

EQUITY S

Share capital N 2,967,542 2,967,542
Reserves (Note) R (KEEE) 4,279,462 4,052,699
Total equity EREsE 7,247,004 7,020,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B BRI (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. FATMBERATR(IE)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: Mz -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RAvlFEERZNT
Statutory
Capital surplus Fair value Retained

reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Exfis  LERHEE OAAEERE RABFE &t

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

AREFT  AREFIL 57 AREFT  AREFI
As at 1 January 2021 WZZE=—-F—-F—-H 1,299,413 406,481 3,327 2,368,823 4,078,044
Total comprehensive income FalmeE = = (2,146) 109,153 107,007
Appropriation fo statutory surplus reserve  BEETREE - 10915 - (10,915) =
Dividends declared to owners of the parent FWRAAEAASERE - = = (132,352) (132,352)
As at 31 December 2021 RZZZ—-F+ZA=1-H 1,299,413 417,396 1,181 2,334,709 4,052,699
As at 1 January 2022 R-E-—%-F—H 1,299,413 417,396 1,181 2,334,709 4,052,699
Total comprehensive income FalmeE - - (1,181) 316,377 315,196
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve  BE AT B - 31,499 - (31,499) -
Dividends declared to owners of the parent FEARESAS RS - - - (88,433) (88,433)
As at 31 December 2022 W-E-—f#+-A=1-H 1,299,413 448,895 - 2,531,154 4,279,462
41. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 41. #t§S##HMHEHRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These consolidated financial statements were approved and AREFHMBHRRER-ZE-_=F=A=
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023. +HB&EEES I E MR -
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DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Fe 5% L4 ARl AR AR

"2022 AGM"

2022 ERRBFAE]

'

"Articles of Association’

[RR|EiE]

"Board”

=33

"China Datang”

[FREIRE ]

"China Datang Group”

[PEAEEE)

"Company”

VNG

"Controlling Shareholder”

[ERAR |

2022 Annual Report

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

the annual general meeting of the Company for the year of 2022, to be
held at 3:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 June 2023 at No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

AREHN2023F6 A30R(EHE) TF=R=1ToRH Bt RTEER
SMBE1205 BHN2022FEREBF ARG

the articles of association of the Company, as amended on 9
September 2021
RAAR2021F9 AR EFTH AR ETR

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREZE

China Datang Corporation Ltd. (FEIAESEEER A7), a state-owned
enterprise established on 9 April 2003 in accordance with the PRC
laws and the Controlling Shareholder and a promoter of the Company
REAEEEERAR - A—HR2003F4 AR REFEEEKINESE
¥ - WRAKRANERBRERERA

China Datang and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group)

REIAE R EKE QB (AEERIN)

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (KERBELEERD
BBR7AF]) which was converted to a joint stock limited company on 26
June 2015, unless otherwise stated, including its predecessor China
Datang Corporation Environment Technology Co., Ltd. (FEIAEEER
BRMAR AT (a limited liability company established on 25 July 2011
pursuant to the PRC laws and was renamed to Datang Technology
Industry Co., Ltd. (KERHEXEXERAF]) in September 2013 and
further to Datang Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERHRE%E
BB AR in December 2013)

RERREZSEROERAT - B201556 A 26 A HIK L ARHER
DR RIENESZEME  GREEEAMSTPEARSRERERMERA
A(R2011F7 A2 ARBHEERRUNBEREERR - R2013FIAE
BARERBEZLARDR @ YHR2013F 12— S ERARERBEE
SERRAT)

has the meaning ascribed under the Listing Rules, and in this annual
report, refers to the controlling shareholder of the Company, China
Datang

A FTHRAPR FEORE - RAFRIERRAINERRRTRAE



"CSRC”

[FEEES ]

"Datang Capital”

[KEEX]

"Datang Finance”

[REMH]

“Datang Huayin”

[RE#ER]

"Datang Renewable”

[RE#EER ]

"Director(s)"”

3

"

"Domestic Share(s)

[AER]

DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)

BxmRmmaE(E)

China Securities Regulatory Commission (FRBEAEBERELZEg),
a regulator responsible for supervising and regulating the Chinese
securities market

TRESEEEEZEE AREENMAETRESMENEERE

China Datang Group Capital Holding Co., Ltd. (TR AKEEEE R HE
fR 72 7)), a company established on 30 November 2011 in accordance
with the PRC laws, and a subsidiary of China Datang, the Controlling
Shareholder
hEAEEBERNERAERAR - R2011F11 B0 B REPEARK A
NA - RERREPEAEOHEAR

China Datang Finance Co., Ltd. (FEIAEEEE AR A7), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Datang

FEAEEEMEAERAR - NFEIMKIOARAR - FEAEHI
2EMBELR

Datang Huayin Electric Power Co., Ltd. (KEERENBRHERA
7)), a joint stock limited company established on 22 March 1993 in
accordance with the PRC laws and a subsidiary of China Datang, which
is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600744)
AEEZERENRMHAERAR - W19935F3 822 BREH BUEAEK L HRND
BRAR  RHBEAEMEBRR - IR EBBFHFZIZM ET(RHAR
600744)

China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Ltd. (FEAEEE
BRI AR AR, a joint stock limited company established on 23
September 2004 in accordance with the PRC laws and a subsidiary of
China Datang, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1798)
REAEEEHERRNARAF - 7200459 H23 RRE T BIERKL
MROBRAR - RPEAEMEAR - WHRERAER M (RORR -
1798)

the director(s) of the Company

ARAIER

ordinary shares in the Company’s share capital, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB
ARAIRAREREBEARE1.00THEBR - UARERERIZ M
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DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)

BxERmmaE(E)

"EMC”

"EPC”

[EPC I3[ T2 f ]

"Group”, "our Group”, “we" or "us”
[REE k[ M)

"H Share(s)”

[HA% |

“Joint Company Secretary” or "Joint
Company Secretaries”
[t R AIMWE]

"Latest Practicable Date”

& RI{TEH

“Listing”
[ 7]

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

a business model that the energy conservation companies provide
energy-conservation services to customers according to the energy
conservation service contracts entered into with customers, and
recover the investment and gain profit from the energy efficiency
achieved upon the completion of energy conservation facilities
refurbishment

BB R RIRIBREF AT MR ER - AR RS - I
feEnpe R UE R B G ETR M a P I B E MG N B R — TR B (E
B

contracting arrangement whereby the contractor is commissioned
by the customer to carry out works, such as design, procurement,
construction and trial operations, either through the contractor’s
own employees or by subcontracting part or all of the works, and
be responsible for the quality, safety, timely delivery and cost of the
project

RE C FKEREE  ABRRHZERFER  DABEXEPZETETHR
ioRE RIS IZFIE(RGRRARREHATZEEXSBHBIK
FELIE) THEECEE - %2  IHRKFEE

the Company and all or any of our subsidiaries (as the context so
requires)

ARARREMAREPEN—FHBRAR(RXEME)

overseas listed foreign shares in our ordinary share capital with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each, subscribed for and traded in Hong
Kong dollars and listed and traded on the Stock Exchange

AR LEABRBRATEREABEARE.00THEN ETINER - ABTR
BEREE  WRBRXMLEMKES

joint company secretary/secretaries of the Company
ARAINERERRAIWE

19 April 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this annual report for ascertaining certain information contained in this
annual report

2023F4R198 - AR ARERMNENAEE S P HAEE TERNKEATH
H

listing of our H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FAIRHBA B P R B



“Listing Rules”

[ Em#iAl]
"Model Code”

ol

"PBOC" or "People’s Bank of China”

[FEARRT]

"PRC”

[

"Prospectus”

[ARER ]

"Reporting Period”

[R5

"RMB”
[ARHE]

"SASAC"

"Senior Management”

BREERE]

" "

w
n

3

5

€
[EEE

"SFO"

[&5 LA 5]

"Shareholder(s)"”
[ |

DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)

BxmRmmaE(E)

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B s EmR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FRRIMEETPE M E M BT AERETESF R HNRETA

the People’s Bank of China
B ARRIT

the People's Republic of China, unless it has specifically specified, it
excludes Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan

REARLNE - BRIEFRFHE - XX BEFEFITRE  RPE
ATRERMN S E

the prospectus of the Company dated 3 November 2016 with respect
to the listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ARAEER2016511 ASEMERER - ABEBARANB R ER
il

the year ended 31 December 2022
HZ2022F12A31BLEFE

Renminbi, the current lawful currency of the PRC

AR - HEEEE®

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the State Council of the PRC (BB AELEEEREELZE ),
responsible for the management of state assets
FEEERE A EEEEERLZEY AEEEBAEE

senior management of the Company
ARAIRREEE

the Securities and Futures Commission
EHERBEEREREES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEAEBIEST ERESF R RE - ETRHERT » s A E M B
holder(s) of the Share(s)
BB A
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DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)
BxERmmaE(E)

“Share(s)" ordinary share(s) with nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the share
capital of the Company, composed of the Domestic Shares and H
Shares

[R5 ¥ ARARAPEREEARE1.00THEER - AAERKHRATAERK

"Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ g6 32 P | B BEBERZMERAT

"Supervisor(s)” or "Supervisory supervisor(s) or supervisory committee of the Company

Committee”

e B ARAESHEFE

%" per cent

[%] ¥ Bok

If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of entities or KA B 37 ) B B2 gl (> 2 1) A SC2 T8 il 75 BE 25 S
enterprises established in the PRC and their English translations, the EZNF @ AR EEAE o
Chinese names shall prevail.

2022 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*



CORPORATE INFORMATION

LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY
AERAEXEEARNERARA
ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Liming (Chairman of the Board)
(appointed in December 2022)

Mr. Shen Zhen (temporarily performs the responsibilities of
the Chairman of the Board from June 2022 to December 2022)
(appointed in June 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junqi

Mr. Wu Daging

Mr. Chen Kan

Mr. Song Yunpeng

Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned as the Chairman of the Board
and re-designated as a non-executive Director in June 2022,
and resigned as a non-executive Director in December 2022)

Mr. Tian Dan (re-designated as a non-executive Director in
May 2022, resigned in June 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ye Xiang

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Huang Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xuefeng
Ms. Luo Li

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Mr. Zhu Liming (appointed in December 2022)
Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned in December 2022)

NS

DFREERE
RERREXSERNER QA
AREXRTE

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
=E

RiITEE
RMAFLE(EFR)(R2022F12 AEZR )

FRIA % & (R2022F 6 A 220224 12 A BRI E i
BITEFERBE)(R2022F6 AEER(T)

FRITES

FEMEE

SRExLE

PR AT S 4

REPE LA

FEXEAE(R2022F6 ABIEEER EFAMLE
SEHITES - 202212 ABTIENITESE)

B EER2022F5 A AT AIERITES -
(72202246 B &{T)

BIUFRITES
MBS
EYEEL
BRRES A

E¥
BREE(ER)

REBIESEA
FEFIL L

FRREEAER

RFBBSE A4 (7220224612 B EE(E)
FECEA (FR2022F12 ABHE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

~ElER(E)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhu Liming (appointed in December 2022)
Mr. Liang Xiuguang
Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned in December 2022)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Liang Xiuguang
Mr. Leung Chi Kit (ACG; HKACG) (appointed in May 2022)

Ms. Wong Sau Ping (resigned in May 2022)

COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD
Audit Committee

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ye Xiang
Mr. Chen Kan

Nomination Committee

Mr. Zhu Liming (Chairman) (appointed in December 2022)

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned in December 2022)

Mr. Shen Zhen (temporarily perform the duties of the chairman of
the Nomination Committee from June 2022 to December 2022)

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee

Mr. Ye Xiang (Chairman)

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Wu Daging

Strategy and Investment Committee

Mr. Shen Zhen (Chairman) (appointed in June 2022)

Mr. Wang Junqi

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian
Mr. Tian Dan (resigned in June 2022)

REGISTERED OFFICE

No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC
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BHEAE

RFBBSE A (FA20224512 B EE(E)
FEXEA (FR2022F12 ABHE)

BELFIRE
RGBS A (ACG + HKACG) (R202245 8

EZT)
|+ (7202245 A BHE)

EFRHTEAR
FHEAY
BRFELE(EE)

HA5E A
BRI e 4

REEA®

RABAEA(FE) (FR2022F 12 REERE)

EZELE

SER: P

FEX A (R2022F12 ABHT)

EREASE A (7202296 A £20224 12 A HAME & &
BITIREZECEIREBE)

FHREZERT

Mk (EE)

FEEEE

SRERAE

BREEREIERT

FREB A (F/E) (722022F6 A EE(T)
FERUEE

FTEEEE
B A4 (72202246 A BHE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Da Hua CPAs (Special General Partnership)
Floor 12, Building 7,

Yard 16, West Fourth Ring Road,

Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong law

Zhong Lun Law Firm LLP
4/F, Jardine House,
1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong

As to the PRC law

Zhong Lun Law Firm

23-31/F, South Tower of CP Center

20 Jin He East Avenue, Chaoyang District
Beijing, the PRC

PRC PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Development Bank Corporation

China Development Bank 11088,

Fortune Resource International Center,

No. 16 Taipinggiao Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

Beijing Xuanwu Sub-branch

No. 314 Guang'anmennei Street, Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Beijing Haidian Sub-branch

No. 100 Zhongguancun East Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the PRC

NEER(E)

FEEETEERME

EBINBEWEEH15
B ES —HI318

BB
AESHESTMEKBERA A
B

BELYIR
ERB3057

HEF 01 FEB01 =806 E

RESHMSEEM(ERLREE)
PRI RTERE

PR 1655

TSRIEN12/E

p3ed )
Fax@

TREMEBMAREREEAR
HEPR
FRES I MAEE

hRE%E

iR EISAT

B TRk @

S MEF 2055
EERF35RERE23-31

FEERBIT

BREZERITRDBRA A
FR B b R Th PR 3

KB A 1657 L mh BERE A L
B A EER1711088

FR BRI D AR A )
I RERLT

FR B b R Th PR 3
BRI A#3145

R TERITIRDBRA R
I FEEL T

PRI ETEER

R B AT R BS 10057
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RRIER ()

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Xuanwu Sub-branch

No. 1A Xuanwumenwai Avenue,
Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.
Shangdi Sub-branch

No. 1 Shangdi Xinxi Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

Ningbo Bank Corporation

Beijing Zhongguancun Sub-Branch

1st Floor, Dream Laboratory, 1 Haidian Avenue,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Beijing Luoma City Sub-branch

F1, Block A, Fenghua Haojing,

No. 6-4 Guang'an Men Nei Da Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

China Minsheng Bank Wanliu Branch
Block 2, 6 Wanliuzhong Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the PRC

Post Savings Bank of China
Dashanzi Branch
13 Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

China Merchant Bank
Beijing East Third Ring Branch
1 East Third Ring North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

Bank of Jiangsu Beijing Branch
1 Building, Guangxi Homeland,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK ABBREVIATION AND STOCK CODE
DATANG ENVIRO (1272)
INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Investor Hotline: +86 10 5838 9858
Fax: +86 10 5838 9860

Website: www.dteg.com.cn

E-mail: ir@dteg.com.cn

* For identification purpose only
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